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APPALACHAIN BANCSHARES, INC,
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On the Cover

For Appalachian Bancshares, Inc., our communities and the people that
call them home are the very heart of our business. The oil painting on our
cover and throughout our report is by Joyce Norwood. The subject is a
beautiful farm she encountered in Blue Ridge, Georgia and the painting
is simply titled, The Blue Ridge Farm.

2 A Letter from the CEO & Board of Directors
It is abundantly clear that we stayed and will continue 1o be
clearly focused en our original commitment to each and every § Executive Team

community we serve.
¢ Community Board & Management
4 Financial Highlights

n spite of the more challenging economic conditions, we had /2 Bank Locations
strong financial results throughout the year.

Financial Report (10-K
L A Letter from the Chairman /3 P ( )

On March 3, 1995, we opened our doors for business with a
commitment to serve the local community of Gilmer County.
Now, thirleen years later, we have expanded that commitrnent
to include nine counties in North Georgia, Tennessee and
North Carolina.

Appalachian Bancshares, Inc., based in Ellijay, Georgia, is the bank holding company of Appalachian Community Bank, a
state-chartered bank organized under the laws of the State of Georgia, and Appatachian Community Bank, F.S.B., a federally chartered
thrift. Through its subsidiaries, Appalachian Bancshares provides a full range of community banking services to individuals, small and
medium-sized businesses, real estate developers, contraclors and farmers. Appalachian Community Bank, which also operates under
the trade name of Gilmer County Bank, has full-service banking offices throughout North Georgia in Ellijay, East Ellifay, Blue Ridge,
Blairsville, Chatsworth, Dawsonville, Dahlonega and Dalton. Appalachian Community Bank, F.5.B. has full-service banking offices in
McCaysville, Georgia, Ducktown, Tennessee and Murphy, North Carolina. The common stock of Appalachian Bancshares is traded on
the Nasdag Global Market, under the symbol APAB.
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A LETTER FROM THE CEO

Dean Shaneholdens,

This year, our annual report theme — Committed lo Community -
dates back to our original covenant when we opened for business
in 1995. We continue to believe that we got to where we are loday
by investing time and resources in the communities which we serve.
During the more challenging economic times that we faced in 2007,
it is abundantly clear that we stayed and will continue to be clearly
focused on our oniginal commitment to each and every community
we serve.

in 2007, our community investment was predominately focused on the
changing needs of our customers. We found that established, as well
as new refationships, can be strengthened by listening to the needs
at hand. We then spent a considerable amount of time studying the
feedback received from our customers and prospective cusiomers
and redirected a substantial amount of our marketing dollars and
human resources to support those needs.

We quickly discovered that the fear of declining asset values and in-
flated cost of living were among the top concerns in our communities.
Qur directors, officers and staff have spent a substantial amount of
time working one-on-one with our customers to customize a financial
plan for continued success. Listening to the needs of our communities
has been and will continue to be our primary focus.

Thankfully, the slowing real estate market in our communities has not 2007 Milestones

been as severe as the Metro Atianta area. However, the slowdown During the first quarter of 2007, we converted our lean production

has had a financial impact on the majority of our customers in one offices in Ducktown, Tennessee and Murphy, North Caralina to branches
way or ancther. This is due to many of our service businesses being of our newly formed thrift, Appatachian Community Bank, F.S.B., head-
connected to the real estate market. In spite of these more challeng- quartered in McCaysville, Georgia. In late April, these offices began

ing economic conditions, we had strong financial results throughout full service banking operations, which allowed us to begin to build our
the year, including: deposit market share in those markets. During 2008, we will continue to

explore ways to better serve these communities.

* Total assets of $971.2 milfion, up 28 percent from 2006;

® Loan growth of 28 percent or $176.5 million with 48 percent We also entered the Dahlonega/Lumpkin County market in April of
of this growth coming from our new expansion markets; 2007, allowing us 1o fill in our footprint between Blairsville/Union County

* Deposit growth of 24 percent or $156.5 million with 43 and Dawsonville/Dawsan County. Local, veteran banker, Eddie Wayne,
percent of this growth coming from our new expansion markets; joined us as the Market President for this expansion effort, This year

® Net income totaling $5.6 million, only a 7 percent decrease we will further invest in this community by moving out of the temporary
from 2006; space that we currently lease and into a permanent facility.

* Diluted earnings per share (EPS) of $1.06, alsc only a 7
percent decrease from 2008.

2 &muttedta@omlutl/




During 2007, Gary Middleton joined us as Regional President. Gary's
long-term banking career and reputation have allowed us to strengthen
our market share in Chatsworth/Murray County as well as enter into

the DallonWhitfield County market in May. In addition to serving the
traditional banking market in Dalton, we decided to expand our services
to the under-served Hispanic market.

Leveraging our new expansion markets with our mortgage services was
another prionity initiative in 2007. We added Rober {Bob) Sams to assist
us with this strategy. Bob has extensive, long-term roots in the mortgage
industry. This effort allowed us to increase our mortgage revenue to $2.0
million in 2007 from $1.3 million in 2006 without additional investment of
fixed assets and capital.

Management Team

We firmly believe that we must invest in veteran bankers with the skills
necessary to meet our community commitments now and in the future.
With the departure of Joe Moss as President and Chief Operating Officer
during 2007, we promoted a thirty-year, seasoned, bank operations
professional, J. Keith Hales to Executive Vice President and Chief
Operating Officer. Keith joined us almost three years ago and has
excelled in every task we have asked of him,

In October, we were afforded the opportunity to add Danny F. Dukes,
CPA to our team as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.
Danny came to us with over twenty-five years of extensive experience
within the financial sector and has served over eleven years as a Chief
Financial Officer. With an undergraduate degree from Mercer University
and a MBA degree from Georgia College and State University, he has
proven to be a valuable addition to the management team.

Community and Corporate Commitment

Whether our staff is asked to do concession stand duty at tocal high
school sporting events, contribute to a local food pantry or walk in 2
fund-raiser, they have responded time and time again, from the heart with
overwhelming kindness. it is more than financial contributions. Itis hours
of dedicated commitment. During a recent rabbery attempt, our Blairsville
staff exemplified corporate commitment by doing all the right things under
extreme pressure, leading to the capture of the robber, These are just a
few examples of how our team continuousty performs above and beyond
professional responsibilities and you, our shareholders benefit repeatedly.
Qur community rooms and conference centers are equipped with state-
of-the-art technology and available to the community, giving individuals
and organizations a place to meet privately or hold public events.

When the economy softened in the second half of 2007, our staff
responded. They rolled up their sleeves and worked even harder

to ensure that Appalachian Bancshares monitored asset quality
proactively, not waiting to be a victim of extemnal indusiry economic
forces, As we enter 2008, our commitment to continuing these mea-
sures has strengthened. | am proud to be associated with this fine,
unselfish team of individuals. We will continue to execule our business
plan in our expanded family of communities and strive for market
share in the months to come. Our long-term commitment to manage
growth as cost effectively as possible stands as tall today as it did in
1995,

As always, we appreciate your dedication as shareholders of
Appalachian Bancshares.

R

Tracy R. Newton
President and Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Assets
(in millions) 71
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Deposits
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Net Interest Margin
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2003 2004 2005 20068 2007

Shareholders’ Equity
(in millions)
$74
67
$80 [

L

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

$36

Selected Consolidated Financia! Data

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended Decembar 31, 2007 and 2006
{in thousands)

2007
Interest Income $72,127
Interest Expense 44800
Net Interest income 37,327
Provision for Loan Losses 4,726
Net Interest Income After Pravision
for Loan Losses 32,60
Noninterest Income 5,518
Noninterest Expense 29,786
Income Befora Taxes 8333
inceme Tax Expense B 2763
Net Income 5570
Per Share Data

Years Ended Decernber 31, 2007 and 2006
{in thousands, except shares and per share data)

_ mr

Eamings per Commen Share

Basic $1.06

Diluted 1.06
Cash Dividends Declared per

Commen Share
Book Vatue per Commaon Share 13.94
Total Sharehoiders’ Equity 73,663
Weighted Averaga Shares Outstanding

Basic 5,265,555

Diluted 5,276,200
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
{in thousards)

2007

Total Loans $807,522
Total Depasits 807,597
Average Equity 70,238
Average Assels 863,329
Totat Assets 971,200

. } __2005
$53,193
289

30,69%
8288

27 446
3,971
22561
8,856
282
_Sons

2008

$1.16
1.14

1283
66,763

5,170,687
52718711

2006
$631,053
651,134
62,735
661,303
758,214




Dean Sharcholders,

On March 3, 1985 we opened our doors for business with a commit-
ment to serve the local community of Gilmer County, Now, thirteen
years later, we have expanded that commitment to include nine
counties in North Georgia, Tennessee and North Carolina.

Commitment to Civic and Community
Appalachian Community Bank's presence is visible throughout the
region as many of our employees serve on the boards of civic
organizations, city development committees, and in leadership/role
madel positions of local youth programs. We are committed to
supporting our youth through athletic, academic and feadership
programs, investing in the development of our future leaders.

Commitment to Education

In 2007, we maintained our strong support of the local school
districts through our Educational Grant Program. We also serve
and supporl many of the academic, vocational, agricultural and
extra-curricular programs of each local school district through
contributions and employee volunteenism. Appalachian Community
Bank supports early literacy programs on the state and local level
through partnerships with our public libraries, mentoring programs

in the local schools and as a major contributer to the Ferst Foundation.

Commitment to Health

We maintained our commitrent to supporting healthcare organizations

at the local, state and national levels through charitable donations and
hundreds of volunteer hours as many of our employees served on and
chaired committees for these crganizations throughout the year.

Commitment to the Arts and Culture

Just as Appalachian Communily Bank's roots are planted firmly within
this region, so are most of our families. We are proud of our heritage
and support the many local musicians and artists who capture the
beauty and spirit of this region.

Commitment to our Customers

As we expand our market throughout North Georgia and beyond, we
continue to deliver the same local and personal service our customers
have grown accustomed to over the past thitteen years. In June of
20086, Appalachian Community Bank entered Murray County by open-

ing in a temporary location with limited accessibility and conveniences.

Despite these challenges, it did not take our Chatsworth banking team
long to make a presence within their community, proving that people

A LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

bank with people, not a building. The Murray County Chamber of
Commerce recently recognized Appatachian Community Bank

of Chatsworth as the county's 2007 Business of the Year

and Lesa Downey, our local president,

as the 2007 Business Person of Spots At/
the Year. 15%  Culture

Civic/

We believe that to best serve )
Community

Education

our shareholders as a successful

community bank, it is imperative for
us to support the growth and prosperity
of our local region, towns and neighbarhoods.
Our company and our employees are strongly committed to being both

leaders and stewards of the communities in which we live and serve.

O Bt Pcfp

Ronald Knight
Chairman of the Board

Committed, to Community s
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“ooneln 2 Warren

Kenneth D. Warren, age 57, has been a
director of the Company since 1996 and a
director of the Bank since 1934. He currently
serves as Chairman of the Community Board
Committee and a member of the Directors’
Loan Committee. Mr. Warren is the
President and owner of

Warren's Auto

Sales, Inc.

*
I
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an S. Dover
Alan S. Dover, age 51, has been a director of
the Company since 1995 and a director of the
Bank since 1994. He currently serves as a
member of the Directors' Loan Commitiee.
Mr. Caver is the Chief Executive Officer and
owner of A.S. Dover Construction, Inc.
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Joseph C. Hensley, Secretary

Joseph C. Hensley, age 50, has been a director of the Company since 1996 and
a director of the Bank since 1994, He currently serves as Secretary of the Board
of Direciors of the Company, Chairman of the Audit Committee and the 401(k)
Commitiee, and member of the Information Technology Committee and ALCO
Committee. Mr. Hensley is a CPA and is Vice President of A.S. Dover

Construction, Inc.

Tra-s R Nevston
Tracy R. Newton, age 52, has been a
director of the Company since 1996 and
a director of the Bank since 1994. He
currently serves on the Directors’ Loan
Committee and 401(k) Committee. Mr.
Newton: is President and Chief Executive
Officer of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.
and Appatachian

Community Bank.



Rohert E. Futch, Assistant Secretary Charles A. Edmondson, Vice Chairr“‘van

Roger E. Futch, age 62, has been a director of the Com- Charles A, Edmondson, age 60, has been a direcior of
pany since 1996 and a director of the Bank since 1994, the Company since 1996 and a directgr of the Bal k since
He currently serves as Assistant Secretary of the Board 1994, He currently serves as Vice-Chairman of t»{; Board
of Directors of the Company, Chairman of the Directors’ of Directors of the Company and a member of both the
Loan Committee and a member of the 401(k) Committee Community Boar¢ Committee and ALCO Commitiee.

and Corporate Governance/Executive Compensation Mr. Edmondson is an Agent with State Farm InsuI[ance.

Commitiee. Mr. Futch is Chief Operations Officer and
Executive Vice President of ETC, Inc.

. t‘\\:\f.

5 Frank E. Jones
* Frank E. Jones, age 55, has been a director of

\‘ ‘ j the Company since|1996 and a director of the Bank

since 1994. He currpntly serves as Chairman of the

J. Ronald Knight, Chairman - ALCO Committee apd a member of the Community

J. Ronald Knight, age 65, has been a director of the Company since 1996 and a director Board Commitiee, Corporate Governance/Executive

of the Bank since 1994. He currently serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the  Compensation Conmittee and Audit Committee.

Company, Chairman of the Cerporate Governance/Executive Compensation Commitiee Mr. Jones is the minjister of the Ellijay Church of Christ.

and a member of both the Directors’ Loan Commitiee and Audit Committee. Mr. Knight

is President and co-owner of Twin City Motors, Inc. Committed to Community




EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

~

Left to right: Keith Hales, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer; Tracy Newton, President
and Chief Executive Officer; and Danny Dukes, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

COMMLINITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Appalachian Community Bank - Dawson County & Lumpkin County

Standing feft to right: Greg Tyre, Charlie Ridley, Roger Slaton and Tracey Phillips
Seated left to right: Greg Gorden, Charfie Edmondson, Nicky Gilleland and Eddie Wayne
Not pictured: John Megel

¢ Committed to Community
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Left fo right: Jim Sisson, Ken Castle, Charlie Edmonson, Morgan Arp, Ruth Jordan and Melissa Liltard

Appalachian Community Bank - F.5.B.




Standing left to right: Dorothy Logan, Kyle Ray, Wally Stover, Bart Nunley and Darrell Jones
Seated left to right: John Harrison, Kenny Warren, Virginia Cochran and Adam Teague

b

Left to right: Gary Middleton, Herran Davis, Ronald Knight, Darrell Lents and Lesa Downey

w0 Committed to &Wu&/




COMMUNITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

| Appalachian Community Bank - Union County

Standing left to right: Ken Castle, Michael Nix, Gary Davenport and Mike Hemphill
Seated left to right: Jason Karnes, Myron Turner and Frank Jones

Appalachlan Commumty Bank whitfield County

Leﬁ fo rrght V|cky Loza, Rogeho Paniagua, Ronald Knight, Fernando Paniagua and Gary Middieton

Commitied to Community



BANK LOCATIONS
Apvalachian

Bancshares, Inc.

Appatachian Community Bank

Blairsville Office {Union County}
P.O. Box 1149 | 236 Highway 515
Blairsville, Georgia 30512

Phone: 706-745-5571

Blue Ridge Office (Fannin County)
150 Orvin Lance Connector

Blue Ridge, Georgia 30513
Phone: 706-258-4000

Chatsworth Office {Murray County}
1006 Highway 76

Chatsworth, Georgia 30705

Phone: 706-517-3911

Dahlonega Office (Lumpkin County)
24 Alicia Lane | Suite 4

Dahlonega, Georgia 30533

Phone: 706-867-1400

Dawsonville Office (Dawson County)
28 Main Street

Dawsonville, Georgia 30534

Phone: 706-265-3140

Dawson 400 Office {Dawson County)
258 Beartocth Parkway | Suite 120
Dawsonwville, Georgia 30534

Phone: 706-265-5090

Dalton Office (Whitfield County)
204 West Cuyler Street

Dalton, Georgia 30721
706-277-7000

Gilmer County Bank

Eliijay Office (Gilmer County)
829 Industrial Boulevard
Ellijay, Georgia 30540

Phone: 706-276-8000

East Eltijay Office (Gilmer County)
696 First Avenue

East Ellijay, Georgia 30540
Phone: 706-276-8000

East Ellijay Highlands Office (Gimer County)

19 Highland Crossing
East Elljay, Georgia 30540
Phone: 706-276-8000
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[:| Appatachian Bancshares, Inc. Market Area
] Atlanta Metropolitan Statistical Area

Appalachian Community Bank, FSB

Ducktown Office (Polk County}
125 Five Points Drive
Ducktown, Tennessee 37326
Phone: 423-548-8550

McCaysville Office (Fannin Counfy)
109 Blue Ridge Drive

McCaysville, Georgia 30555
Phone: 706-964-8500

Murphy Office {Cherokee County)
3000 West US 64 | Suite 123
Murphy, North Carolina 28906
Phone: 828-837-4150
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PART 1
[TEM L. BUSINESS

This Report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, such as statements relating to future plans and expectations, and are thus prospective. These
statements are based on many assumptions and estimates and are not guarantees of future performance. Our actual
results may differ materially from those projected in any forward-looking statements, as they will depend on many
factors about which we are unsure, including many factors which arc beyond our control. The werds “may,”
“would,” “could,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” and “estimate,” as well as similar
expressions, are meant to identify such forward-looking statements. Potential risks and uncertainties include, but are
not limited to, those described below under [tem 1A, entitled “Risk Factors.”

General Overview

We are a Georgia corporation organized in 1996 to serve as the bank holding company for Appalachian
Community Bank (formerly Gilmer County Bark), a state-chartered bank located in the foothills of the Blue Ridge
Mountains in North Georgia. We are headquartered in Ellijay, Georgia, and, in March 2006, we opened our new
headquarters and operations center, also located in Ellijay. As of April 2007, we also scrve as the bank holding
company for Appalachian Community Bank, F.8.B., a federally-chartered thrift headquartered in McCaysville,
Georgia with offices in Murphy, North Carolina and Ducktown, Tennessee.

In 1995, Gilmer County Bank opened its first branch office in Ellijay, Georgia. In November 1998, we
acquired a bank with one location in Blairsville, Georgia, and changed its name to Appalachian Community Bank to
reilect our strategy to build a community bank franchise in our geographic market area. In May 2000, we opened a
branch office in East Ellijay, Georgia, and in August 2001, we opened a loan production office in Blue Ridge,
Georgia, which we converted 1o a full-service branch in February 2002. In August 2001, we merged Appalachian
Community Bank into Gilmer County Bank, although we continue to operate our branches in Ellijay and East
Ellijay under the trade name “Gilmer County Bank.” During 2006, we opened full-service branches in Chatsworth,
McCaysville, Dawsonville, Georgia. a second branch in East Ellijay, Georgia, as well as loan production offices in
Murphy, North Carolina and Ducktown, Tennessce. We received our final regulatory approval to form and open a
federally-chartered thrift subsidiary on February 16, 2007, which opened and began operating, under the name
Appalachian Community Bank, F.8.B., on April 23, 2007. The thrift acquired, as its headquarters, our branch in
McCaysville, Georgia and we converted our loan production offices in Murphy, North Carolina, and Ducktown,
Tennessee, into full-service branches of the thrift, Additionally, in 2007, we opened a second bank branch in
Dawsonville, Georgia, as well as bank branches in Dahlonega, Georgia and Dalton, Georgia.

We provide a full range of retail and commercial banking products and services to individuals and small- to
medium- sized businesses through our community banking relationship model. Such products and services include
the receipt of demand and time deposit accounts, the extension of personal and commercial loans and the furnishing
of personal and commercial checking accounts. As of December 31, 2007, we had total assets of approximately
$971.2 million, total loans of approximately $807.5 million, total deposits of approximately $807.6 million and total
shareholders’ equity of approximately $73.7 million. Our website is located at www.apab.com.

Our Market Area

Our markct area is located approximatety 80 miles north of Atlanta and is primarily comprised of Gilmer,
Fannin, Union, Murray, Dawson, Lumpkin and Whitficld Counties in Georgia, as well as Cherokee County North
Carolina and Polk County Tennessee. Our markcet area includes both “North Georgia™ and the “Tri-State Area”, the
latter consisting of the contiguous three-county area (Fannin, Polk and Cherokee Counties) where Georgia,
Tenncssee and North Carolina come together. Our market area provides a number of outdoor recreational activities,
including hiking, canoeing, fishing, swimming, rafting, hunting and mountain biking. We believe that the natural
resources of our market area and its proximity to metropolitan Atlanta are two of the main reasons that our market
area has experienced significant population growth. In particular, our market area’s abundant outdoor and
recreational activities have made it a popular area for second-home buyers and retirees.  We believe that the
demographic trends and growth characteristics of our market area will continue to provide us with significant
growth opportunitics in the future.




Operating and Growth Strategy

Our stratcgy is to build a community bank franchise servicing real estate developers, small business owners
and primary and second home buyers in our market area and surrounding fast-growing conmununitics. We believe we
can ¢xecute this strategy and grow our business by building personal relationships with our customers, emphasizing
superior customer service and communicating a consistent set of operating principles 10 our employees. Further, we
believe that the continued growth in our market area offers us the opportunity for growth at our current branches and
the potential for new branches in our existing markets. We are always looking for qualified bankers and new
markets that fit with our culture.

Lending Activities

General. We offer a variety of loans, including real estate, construction, commercial and consumer loans
to individuals and small 1o mid-size businesses that are located or conduct a substantial portion of their business in
our market area. Although we offer a variety of types of loans, we cmphasize the use of real estate as collateral and
our underwriting standards vary for each type of loan, as described below. As of December 31, 2007, 89.5% of the
loans in our loan portfolio were secured by real estate. At December 31, 2007, we had total loans of $807.5 million,
representing 83.1% of our total assets. We have focused our lending activities primarily to small busincss owners
and residential real estate developers. At December 31, 2007, loans to the construction and development industry
amounted to $389.7 million, or approximately 48.3% of our total loan portfotio, loans to the poultry industry
amounted to $19.6 millien, or approximately 2.4% of our total loan portfolio and loans to the hospitality
(hotel/motel) industry amounted to $14.3 million, or approximately 1.8% of our 1otal loan portfolio.

Our underwriting standards vary for each type of loan. In underwriting all of our real estate related loans,
we seek to minimize our risks by giving careful consideration to the property’s operating history, futurc operating
projections, current and projected occupancy, location and physical condition. Our underwriting analysis also
includes credit checks, reviews of appraisals and environmental hazards and a review of the financial condition of
the borrower. We attempt to limit our risk by analyzing our borrowers’ cash flow and coilateral valuc on a regular
basis. After a loan is approved, our credit administration group focuses on the toan portfolio, including regularly
monitoring the quality of the loan portfolio. Further, we also engage outside firms to evaluate our loan portfolio on
a quarterly basis for credit quality and compliance issucs.

In addition, we engage in secondary-market mortgage activities by obtaining commitments from sccondary
mortgage purchasers for loans originated by our bank and thrift. Based on these commitments, we originate
mortgage loans on comparable terms and generate fee income and commissions to supplement our non-intcrest
income.

Real Estate Loans. Loans sccurcd by real estate are the primary component of our loan portfolio. To
increase the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of the loan, we obtain a security interest in the real estate whenever
possible, in addition to the other available collateral. At December 31, 2007, loans primarily sccurced by real estate
amounted to $722.6 million, or 89.5%, of our total loan portfolio.

These loans consist primarily of construction and development foans, commercial real estate loans and
residential real estate loans. Interest rates for all categorics may be fixed or adjustable. We generally charge an
origination fee for each loan and may collect rencwal and late charge fees. Real estale loans are subject to the same
general risks as other loans and are particularly sensitive to fluctuations in the valuc of real cstate. Fluctuations in
the value of real cstate, as well as other factors arising after a loan has been made, could negatively affect a
borrower’s cash flow. creditworthiness and ability to repay the loan.

{1 Construction and Development Real Estate Loans. We offer adjustable and fixed rate real estale
residential and commercial loans to builders and devetopers for both construction and development
and to consumers wishing to build their own homes. The duration of our construction and development
loans is typically 12 months, although payments may be structured to amortize longer. Construction
and development loans generally carry a higher degree of risk than long-term financing of existing
properties because repayment depends on the ultimate completion of the project and usually on the sale
of the property. Specific risks include:

o] COSt OVermnuns;



¢ mismanaged construction;

o inferior or improper construction techniques;

o economic changes or downturns during construction;

o adownturn in the real estate market;

o rising interest rates which may prevent sale of the property; and
o failure to sell completed projects in a timely manner.

We attempt to reduce the risk associated with construction and development loans by obtaining
personal guarantees where possible and by keeping the loan-to-value ratio of the completed project at
or below 80%. At December 31, 2007, total construction and development loans amounted to $389.7
million, or 48.3% of our loan portfolio. Residential construction and development loans totaled $311.1
million, or 38.5% of our loan portfolio. and commercial construction loans represented $78.6 miliion,
or 9.7% of our loan portfolio.

(1 Commercial Real Estate Loans. Our commercial real estate loans generally have terms of five years or
less, although payments can be structured to amortize longer. We evaluate each borrower on an
individual basis and attempt to determine the business risks and credit profile of each berrower. We
attempt to reduce credit risk in the commercial real estate portfolio by emphasizing loans on owner-
occupied propertics where the loan-to-value ratio, established by independent appraisals, does not
exceed 80%. We also generally require that a borrower’s cash flow exceeds 110% of monthly debt
service obligations. In order to ensure secondary sources of payment and liquidity, we typically
review all of the personal financial statements of the principal owners and require their personal
guarantces. Thesc commercial real estate loans include various types of business purpose loans secured
by farmland and nonresidential commercial real estate. At December 31, 2007, commercial real estate
loans (other than commercial construction loans) amounted to $154.7 million, or approximately 19.2%
of our loan portfolio.

[} Residential Real Estate Loans. At December 31, 2007, our residential real estate loans consisted
primarily of loans sccured by one- to- four family residences and mutti-tamily (five or more)
residences. These loans are generally secured by residential real estate. We also offer, through our
mortgage banking department, fixed and adjustable-rate residential real estate loans which we sell
under fixed price commitments to third party lendcers rather than originating and retaining these loans
ourselves. We will not close these residential real estate loans without a fixed price commitment to
sell from a correspondent lender, and we do not service these loans. At December 31, 2007, total
residential real estate loans amounted to $178.2 million, or 22.1% of our loan portfolio. Loans secured
by one-to-four family residences totaled $168.0 million, or 20.8% of our loan portfolio, and loans
secured by multi-family residences totaled $10.2 million, or 1.3% of our loan portfelic.

Commercial Business Loans. We make loans for commercial purposes to various lines of businesses.
Commercial loans are generally considered to have greater risk than first or second morigages on real estate because
commercial loans may be unsecured or, if they are secured, the value of the collateral may be difficult to assess and
more likely to decrease than real estate. At December 31, 2007, commercial business loans amounted to $48.7
million, or 6.0% of our total loan portfolio, excluding for these purposes cominercial loans secured by real estate
which are included in the real estate category above,

Consumer Loans. We make a variety of loans to individuals for personal and houschold purposes,
including secured and unsecured installment and term loans, home equity loans and lines of credit and revolving
lines of credit such as credit cards. Consumer leans are underwritten based on the individual borrower's income,
current debt level, past credit history and valuc of any available collateral. Consumer loan rates are both fixed and
variable, with negotiable terms. Qur installment loans typically amortize over periods up to 60 months. We wiil
offer consumer loans with a single maturity datec when a specific source of repayment is available. We typically
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require monthly payments of interest and a portion of the principal on our revolving loan products. Consumer loans
are gencrally considered to have greater risk than first or second mortgages on real estate because they may be
unsecured or, if they are secured, the value of the collateral may be difficult to assess and more likely to decrease in
value than real estate. At December 31, 2007, consumer loans amounted to $30.6 million, or 3.8% of our loan
portfolio.

Loan Approval. Certain credit risks are inherent in making loans. These include prepayment risks, risks
resulting from uncertainties in the future value of collateral, risks resulting from changes in 2conomic and industry
conditiens and risks inherent in dealing with individual borrowers. We attempt to mitigate these risks by adhering to
internal credit policies and procedures. Our policies and procedures include officer and client lending limits, a
multi-layered approval process for larger loans, documentation examination and follow-up procedures for any
exceptions to credit policies. Our loan approval policics provide for various levels of officer lending authority, We
have an officers’ loan committee and a board of directors’ loan committee for each of the bank and the thrift. When
the amount of aggregate loans to a single borrower exceeds an individual officer’s lending authority, and is below
3500,000, the loan request will be considered by senior lending officers of the bank or thrift. The members of our
officers” loan committee can approve loans up to $1.0 million. [f total aggregate loans to a single borrower exceed
31.0 million, then the board of directors’ loan commitice may approve the loan. On a monthly basis, any actions of
the respective board of directors’ loan committee are further ratified by the bank or thrift’s entire board of directors.
We do not make any loans to directors or executive officers of the bank or the thrift unless the loan is approved by
the board of directors of the bank or the thrift and is on terms not more favorable to such person than would be
available to a person not affiliated with the bank or thrifi.

Credit Administration and Loan Review. We maintain a continuous loan review system and use an
independent consultant to review the loan files on a quarterly basis. Each loan officer is responsible for rating each
loan he or she makes and for reviewing those loans on a periodic basis. Our credit underwriting and credit
administration groups assist us in strengthening our credit review processes and establishing performance
benchmarks in the areas of nonperforming assets, charge-offs, past dues and loan documentation. Our credit
administration meets weekly with all loan officers 1o review the status of all past due loans, nonperforming loans
and any relationships placed on our internal watch list,

Lending Limits. Our lending activitics are subject 10 a variety of lending limits imposed by state and
federal law. In general, the bank and the thrift are subjeet to a legal limit en loans to a single borrower equal to 15%
of the bank or thrift’s capital and unimpaired surplus for unsccured loans and 25% of the bank or thrift’s capital and
unimpaired surplus for fully secured loans. This limit will increase or decrease as the bank or thrift’s capital
increases or decreases. Based on the capitalization of the bank at December 31, 2007, the bank’s legal lending
limits were approximately $18.2 million for secured loans and $10.9 million for unsecured loans. Based on the
capitalization of the thrift at December 31, 2007, the thrift’s legal lending limits were approximately $2.0 million for
fully secured oans and $1.2 million for unsecured loans. We sell participations in our larger loans to other financial
institutions, which allow us to manage the risk involved in these loans and to meet the lending needs of our
customers requiring cxtensions of credit in excess of this limit. At December 31, 2007, we had participations
totaling $56.2 million.

Deposit Services

Our principal source of funding is core deposits, supplemented by brokered deposits, Federal Home Loan
Bank (“FHLB™) advances, federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. We offer a
full range of deposit services, including checking accounts, commercial accounts, savings accounts and other time
deposits of various types, ranging from daily money market accounts to long-term certificates of deposit. All
deposit accounts are insured by the FDIC up to the maximum amount allowed by law.




Other Products and Services

We provide a full range ol additional retail and commercial banking products and services, including
checking, savings and money market accounts; certificates of deposit; internet banking and bill payment; credit
cards; safe-deposit boxes; money orders; cashier’s checks; electronic funds transfer services; travelers’ checks and
automatic teller machine access. We are also a member of the STAR ATM network, which permits our customers to
perform certain banking transactions, both within and outside of our market arca. We currently do not offer trust or
fiduciary services.

We are commitled to modifying existing, or developing new, products and services that arc responsive to
the banking demands of our customers. For cxample, in 2006 we began offering an internet-based cash
management system for small businesses, as well as an enhancement to personal checking accounts that improves
the overdraft process. In the future we intend to upgrade and expand our services to ensure that we remain
competitive in our product offerings.

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive, and we experience competition in our market from many other
financial institutions, Competition among financial institutions is based upon interest rates offered on deposit
accounts, interest rates charged on loans, other credit and service charges relating to loans, the quality and scope of
the services offered, the convenicnce of banking facilities and, in the case of loans to commercial borrowers, relative
lending limits. We compete with commercial banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, mortgage banking
firms, consumer finance companies, sccuritics brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market funds and other
mutual funds, as well as super-regional, national and international financial institutions that operate offices within
our market area and beyond.

As of Junc 30, 2007, the most recent date for deposit data complied by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC™), in Georgia, three locally owned banks and three non-locally owned banks had offices in
Gilmer County, one locally-owned bank and three non-locally owned bank had offices in Union County, one locally
owned thrift and five non-locally owned banks had offices in Fannin County, two locally owned banks and three
non-locally owned banks had offices in Murray County, one non-locally owned thrift, three locally owned banks and
four non-locally owned banks had offices in Dawson County, six non-locally owned banks had offices in Lumpkin
County, and two locally owned banks and cleven non-locally owned banks had offices in Whitficld County. In
addition, as of June 30, 2007, there was one locally owned bank, ane non-locally owned thrift and four non-locally
owned banks in Cherokee County, North Carolina, and there was one non-locally owned thrift and four non-locally
owned banks in Polk County, Tennessee.  Many of our competitors, such as BB&T and United Community Bank,
are well-established, larger financial institutions which have substantially greater resources and lending limits. These
institutions offer some services, such as extensive and established branch networks and trust services that we do not
provide. We also compete with small banks and thrifis in our markets. In addition, many of our non-bank
competitors are not subject to the same extensive federal regulations that govern bank holding companies and
federally insurcd banks and thrifts.

Market Share

As of Junc 30, 2007, according to the most recent data compiled by the FDIC, our “North Georgia™ market
area (Gilmer, Fannin, Unien, Murray, Dawson, Lumpkin and Whitfield Counties) had total deposits of
approximaiely $5.4 billion, which represented a 13.6% deposit increase from 2006, As of June 30, 2007, we had
over 53% market share in Gilmer County, an 11% share in Murray County, an 8.6% share in Union County, a 4%
share in Fannin County, an 11% share in Murray County, a 3% share in Dawson County. and a 0.3% sharc in
Lumpkin County. Qur Whitfield County branch did not open until August 2007. In Polk County, Tennessee, as of
June 30, 2007, total deposits amounted o approximately $187.8 million, of which we had $3.2 million, or 1.7%. In
Cherokee County, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2007, total deposits were $485.6 million of which we had $2.4
million or a 0.5% share of these deposits. Prior to April 23, 2007 the North Carolina and Tennessee locations werc
strictly loan production offices and could not accept deposits.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 283 full-time equivalent employces.
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Monetary Policies

The operations of the bank are significantly affected by the credit policies of monetary authorities,
particularly the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System {the “Federal Reserve™). The instruments of
monetary policy cmployed by the Federal Reserve include open market operations in U.S. government securitics,
changes in discount rates on member bank borrowings, and changes in reserve requiremenis against bank deposits.
In view of changing conditions in the national economy and in the money markets, as well as the effect of action by
monetary and fiscal authoritics, including the Federal Reserve, no prediction can be made as to possible future
changes in interest rates, deposit levels, loan demand, or the business and eamings of our banking subsidiaries.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Our business is subject to extensive state and federal banking laws and regulations that impose specific
requirements or restrictions on, and provide for general regulatory oversight of, virtually all aspects of our
operations. These laws and regulations, generally, are intended to protect depositors, not sharcholders. Changes in
applicable laws or regulations may have a material cffect on our business and prospects. Beginning with the
enactment of the Financial Institutions Reform Recovery and Enforcement Act in 1989 and followed by the FDIC
Improvement Act in 1991, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act in 1999, and including the USA PATRIOT ACT of 2002,
numerous additional regulatory requirements have been placed on the banking industry in the past several years and
additional changes have been proposed. Our operations may be affccted by legislative changes and the policies of
various regulatory authorities. We cannot predict the cffect that fiscal or monetary policics, econemic control, or
new federal or state legislation may have on our business and earnings in the future,

The following discussion provides a brief summary of certain of the material provisions of the regulatory
and statutory framework that are applicable to the business of the company, the bank and thrift, and is qualified by
reference to the statutory and regulatory provisions discussed below:

The Company, the Bank and the Thrift. The company owns 100% of the outstanding capitat stock of
each of Appalachian Community Bank, our bank subsidiary, and Appalachian Community Bank, FSB, our thrift
subsidiary. As such, we therefore, are a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956. The
company, as a result, is subject, primarily, to the supervision, examination and reporting requirements of the Federal
Rescrve, pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act and the regulations of the Federal Reserve. Further, as a bank
holding company located in Georgia, the significant aspects of the company’s operations are also regulated and
monitored by the Georgia Department of Banking and Finance (the “Georgia Department”™), pursuant 1o its
regulations and the Financial Institutions Code of Georgia.

The bank is a Georgia state-chartered, commercial bank and is regulated and examined by the Georgia
Department, as the bank's primary regulator, under the regulations of the Georgia Department and the Financial
Institutions Code of Georgia. Thc bank is also regulated and examined by the FDIC, as the bank’s primary federal
repulator, under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and the regulations of the FDIC.

The thrift is a federally-chartered savings institution, regulated and examined by the Office of Thrift
Supervision (“OTS™), as its primary regulator, under the regulations of the OTS and the Home Owners’ Loan Act.
The thrift, because of its federal charter, is not regulated or examined under state law or regulations and, therefore,
does not have a state regulator.

The Bank Holding Company Act. Under the Bank Holding Company Act, the company is subject to
periodic examination by the Federal Reserve and is required to file periodic reports of its operations and any
additional information that the Federal Reserve may require, and the activities of the company are limited to:

0 managing or controlling banks;

0O furnishing services te or performing services for our subsidiaries; and

0 engaging in other activities that the Federal Reserve determines 1o be so ¢loselv related to banking and
managing or controlling banks, as 10 be a proper incident thereto.

With certain limited exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act requires every bank holding company to
obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before:

6




O acquiring substantially all the assets of any bank;

O acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank, if after the
acquisition it would own or control more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank (unless it already
owns or controls the majority of such shares); or

0  merging or consolidating with another bank holding company.

In addition, and subjcct to certain exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act, together with the Change in
Bank Control Act and the Federal Reserve regulations promulgated thereunder, require Federal Reserve approval
prior to any person or company acquiring “control” of a bank holding company. Control is conclusively presumed to
exist if an individual or company acquires 25% or more of any class of voting securities of a bank holding company.
Control is rebuttably presumed to exist if a person acquires 10% or more, but less than 25%, of any class of voting
securities and either the company has registered securities under Section 12 of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934
or no other person owns a greater percentage of that class of voting securities immediately after the transaction. Qur
common stock is registered under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, The regulations provide a procedure for
rebutting contrel when ownership of any class of voting securities is below 25%.

Under the Bank Holding Company Act, a bank holding company is generally prohibited from engaging in,
or acquiring direct or indirect control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any company engaged in, nonbanking
activities unless the Federal Reserve, by order or regulation, has found those activitics to be so closely related to
banking or managing er controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. Some of the activities that the Federal
Reserve has determined by regulation to be proper incidents to the business of a bank holding company include:

making or servicing loans and certain types of lcases;

engaging in certain insurance and discount brokerage activitics;

performing certain data processing services;

acting in certain circumstances as a fiduciary or investment or financial adviser;

owning savings associations; and

making investments in cerlain corporations or projects designed primarily to promote community
welfare.

ooocooo

The Federal Reserve imposes certain capital requirements on the company under the Bank Helding
Company Act, including & minimum leverage ratio and a minimum ratio of “qualifying” capital to risk-weighted
asscts. These requirements are described below under “— Capital Regulations”. Subject to our capital requirements
and certain other restrictions, the company is able to borrow money to make a capital contribution to the bank or the
thrift, and these loans may be repaid from dividends paid from the bank or the thrift to the company. The ability of
the bank or the thrift to pay dividends to the company will be subject to regulatory restrictions, as described below in
“—S8ubsidiary Dividends.” The company also is able to raise capital for contribution to the bank or the thrift, by
issuing equily securities, without the receipt of prior regulatory approval from the Federal Reserve, subject to
compliance with federal and state securities laws.

Financial Institutions Code of Georgia.

The company, although regulated by the Federal Reserve, pursuant to the provisions of the Bank Holding
Company Act, is also subject the provisions of the Financial Institutions Code of Georgia. As such, the company is
also regulated by the Georgia Department, pursuant to the Financial Institutions Code of Georgia and the rules and
regulations of the Georgia Department promulgated thereunder. In this regard, the company, among other things,
must register with, and is subject to examination by, the Georgia Department and, further, must obtain its approval
prior to engaging in the acquisition of other banks and financial institutions, and prior to entering into certain other
lines of busincss.

The bank was chartered by the state of Georgia, pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Institutions
Codc of Georgia and possesses such corporate and operational powers, as set forth therein for Georgia state-
chartercd banks. Pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Institutions Code of Georgia, the bank is regulated and
examined by, and is subject to the rules and regulations of, the Georgia Department.



The Home Owners’ Loan Act. The thrift was chartered by the OTS in February, 2007, pursuant to the
provisions of the Home Qwners’ Loan Act of 1933, which Act provides that the thrift will be: regulated and
examined by the OTS, as the thrift’s primary regulator. Pursuant to the provisions of the Home Owners’ Loan Act
and the regulations of the OTS promulgated thereunder, the thrift is required to maintain its status as a “qualified
thrift lender” and, additionally, to conduct its lending and investment activities within certain prescribed categories.

To meet the OTS requirements as a “qualified thrift lender”, a thrift institution is required to either qualify
as a “domestic building and loan association” under the Internal Revenue Code or maintain at least 65% of its
“portfolio assets” (total assets less: (i) specified liquid assets up to 20% of total assets; (ii) intangibles, including
goodwill; and (iii) the value of property used to conduct business} in certain “qualified thrift investments” (primarily
residential mortgages and related investments, including certain mortgage-backed securities) in at ieast 9 months out
of each 12 month period. An institution that fails the qualified thrift lender test is subject to certain operating
restrictions and may be required to convert to a bank charter. Appalachian Community Bank, F.S.B. met the OTS
requirements as a qualified thrift lender in each of the three quarters of 2007 in which it operated and will continue
to calculate the ratio at least quarterly,

Further, unlike commercial banks, thrifts may generally make the following categories of loans, only to the
extent specified:

« Commercial loans up to 20% of assets (50% of which must be in small business loans).

+ Nonresidential real property loans up to 400% of capital {the OTS may grant increased authority if it is
determined that the increased authority poscs no significant threat to the safe and sound operation of the
institution and is consistent with prudent operating practices).

« Consumer loans up to 35% of assets (all loans in excess of 30% of assets must be direct loans).
* Education loans up to 5% of assets.

* Non-conforming loans up to 5% of assets.

» Construction loans (residential} without security up to 5% of assets.

We received approval from the OTS of our application for permission to organize Appalachian Community
Bank, F.S.B. on February 16, 2007, and began operations on April 23, 2007. This approval includes, but is not
limited to, the following conditions that must be complied with in a manner satisfactory to the Regional Director of
the OTS:

+ independent audit reports must be submitted to the Regional Director for the first three years of operations;

* the thrift must operate within the parameters of the business plan submitted with the application and submit
any proposed major deviations or material changes from the plan for the prior, written non-objection of the
Regional Director. The request for change must be submitted no later than 60 catendar days prior to the
desired implementation date with a copy sent to the FDIC Regional Officer;

+ the thrift must receive prior written non-objection of the Regional Director of the OTS for any proposed
new directors or senior executive officers or any significant change in responsibilities of any senior
executive officer during the first two years of operation; and

= the thrift must submit quarterly business plan variance reports, detailing the thrift’s compliance with its
business plan and explaining any deviations therein, to the Regional Director of the OTS, within 45 days of
the end of each quartcr, for the first three years of operations.

USA PATRIOT Act. In October 2002, the USA PATRIOT Act of 2002 was cnacted in response to the
terrorist attacks in New York, Pennsylvania, and Washington D.C. that occurred on September 11, 2001. The
PATRIOT Act is intended to strengthen U.S. law enforcement’s and the intelligence communities” abilitics to work
cohesively to combat terrorism on a variety of fronts. The potential impact of the PATRIOT Act on banks and thrifts
is significant and wide ranging. The PATRIOT Act contains sweeping anti-money laundering and financial
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transparency laws and imposes various regulations, including standards for verifying client identification at account
opening, and rules to promote cooperation among financial institutions, regulators and law enforcement entities, in
identifying parties who may be involved in terrorism or moncy laundering.

Capital Regulations. The federal banking regulators have adopted risk-based capital guidelines for bank
holding companies and their subsidiaries that are designed 1o make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to
differences in risk profiles among bank holding companies and their subsidiaries and account for off-balance sheet
items. The guidelines are minimums, and the federal banking regulators have noted that bank holding companies
and their subsidiaries contemplating significant expansion programs should not allow expansion 1o diminish their
capital ratios and should maintain ratios in excess of the minimums. We have not received any notice indicating that
the company, the bank or the thrift is subject to higher capital requirements.

The current guidelines require all bank holding companies and federally-regulated banks and thrifts to
maintain a minimum risk-based total capital ratio equal to 8%, of which at least 4% must be Tier 1 capital. Tier |
capital includes common shareholders’ equity, qualifying perpetual preferred stock, and minority interests in cquity
accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, but excludes goodwill and most other intangibles and excludes the allewance
for loan and lcasc losses. Tier 2 capital includes the excess of any preferred stock not included in Tier 1 capital,
mandatory convertible securities, hybrid capital instruments, subordinated debt and intermediate term-preferred
stock, and general reserves for loan and lease losses up to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets.

Under these guidelines, the financial institution’ assets are given risk-wceights of 0%, 20%, 50% or 100%.
In addition, certain oft-balance sheet items are given credit conversion factors to convert them to asset equivalent
amounts t¢ which an appropriate risk-weight applies. These computations result in the total risk-weighted asscts.
Most loans are assigned to the 100% risk category, except for first mortgage loans fully secured by residential
property and, under certain circumstances, residential construction loans, both of which carry a 50% rating. Most
investment securities are assigned to the 20% category, except for municipal or state revenue bonds, which have a
50% rating, and direct obligations of or obligations guaraniced by the United States Treasury or United States
Government agencies, which have a 0% rating.

The federal banking regulators have also implemented a leverage ratio, which is equal to Tier | capital as a
percentage of average total assets less intangibles, to be used as a supplement to the risk-based guidelines. The
principal objective of the leverage ratio is to place a constraint on the maximum degree to which a bank holding
company may leverage its equity capital base. The minimum required leverage ratio for top-rated institutions is 3%,
but most institutions are required to maintain an additional cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis poinis.

[n addition, the FDIC Improvement Act established a new capital-based regulatory scheme designed to
promele early intervention for troubled banks and thrifis, which requires the FDIC 10 choose the least expensive
resolution of bank failures. The new capital-based regulatory framework contains five categories of compliance with
regulatory capital requirements, including “well capitalized,” “adequatcly capitalized,” “undercapitalized.”
“significantly undercapitalized™ and “critically undercapitalized.” To qualify as a “well capitalized™ institution, the
institution must have a leverage ratio of no less than 5%, a Tier | risk-based ratio of no less than 6% and a total risk-
based capital ratio of no less than 10%, and the institution must not be under any order or directive from the
appropriate regulatory agency to meet and maintain a specific capital level. At December 31, 2007, based on our
calculations, the bank and the thrift each qualified as “well capitalized.”

Under the FDIC Improvement Act, the applicable regulatory agency can treat an institution as if it were in
the next lower category, if the agency determines {afler notice and an opportunity for hearing) that the institution is
in an unsafe or unsound condition or is engaging in an unsafc or unsound practice. The degree of regulatery scrutiny
of a financial institution increases, and the permissible activities of the institution decrease, as it moves downward
through the capital calcgories. Institutions that fall into one of the three undercapitalized categories may be required
to do some or all of the following:

'] submit a capital restoration plan;

[1 raise additional capital;

U restrict their growth, deposit interest rates and other activities;
[1  improve their management;

1 eliminate management fees; or




0  divest themselves of all or a part of their operations.

These capital guidelines can affect the company in scveral ways. [f the bank or the thrift grows at a rapid
pace, its capital may be depleted too quickly, and a capital infusion from the company may be necessary, which
could impact the company’s ability 10 pay dividends. Each of the capital levels of the company, the bank and the
thrift currently, are more than adequate; however, rapid growth, poor loan portfolio performance, poor carnings
performance or a combination of these factors could change our capital position, in a relatively short period of time.

Failure to meet these capital requirements would mcan that the bank or the thrift would be required to
develop and file a plan with its primary federal banking regulator, deseribing the means and a schedule for achieving
the minimum capital requirements. In addition, such institution would generally not receive regulatory approval of
any application that requires the consideration of capital adequacy, such as a branch or merger application, unless
the institution could demonstrate a reasonable plan to meet the capital requirement within a reasonable peried of
time. An institution that is not “well capitalized™ is also subject 10 certain limitations relating to so-called “brokered”
deposits. Bank holding companies controlling financial institutions can be called upon to boost the institutions’
capital and to partially guarantee the institutions’ performance under their capital restoration plans,

Source of Strength; Cross-Guarantee. [n accordance with Federal Reserve policy, the company is
expected to act as a source of financial strength for the bank and the thrift and to commit resources to support them
under circumstances in which the company might not otherwise do so. Under the Bank Helding Company Act, the
Federal Reserve may require a bank helding company to terminate any activity or relinquish control of a nonbank
subsidiary, other than a nonbank subsidiary of a bank, upon the Federal Reserve’s Board determination that such
activity ot control constitutes a serious risk to the financial soundness or stability of any depository institution
subsidiary of the bank holding company. Further, federal banking regulators have additional discretion to require a
bank holding company to divest itself of any bank or nonbank subsidiary, if' the agency determines that divestiture
may aid the depository institution’s financial condition.

Interstate Banking and Branching. The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of
1994 permits nationwide interstate banking and branching, under certain circumstances. As a result, the company,
(subject to the provisions of the Home Owners’ Loan Act, applicable to our thrift subsidiary, as discussed below)
and any other bank holding company located in Georgia, is able to acquire a bank located in any other state, and a
bank holding company located outside of Georgia can acquire any Georgia-based bank, in either casc, subject to
certain deposit percentage and other restrictions.

De novo branching by an out-of-state bank is permitted, only if it is expressly permitted by the laws of the
host siate. Georgia law, however, generally authorizes the acquisition of an in-state bank by an out-of-state bank,
only through a merger with a Georgia financial institution that has been in existence for at least 3 years prior to the
acquisition.

With regard to interstate bank branching, out-of-state banks that do not slready operate a branch in Georgia
may not establish de novo branches in Georgia, However, notwithstanding contradictory state law, the Home
Owners’ Loan Act permits nationwide interstate branching for federal thrifts, subject to certain approvals and
restrictions under federal law and regulations. As a result, we have branches of our thrift subsidiary that are located
in Georgia, Tennessee and North Carolina.

Transactions with Affiliates. The company and its subsidiaries, including the bank. the thrift and their
respective subsidiaries, are deemed to be “affiliates” within the meaning of the Federal Reserve Act, and
transactions between affiliates are subject to certain restrictions. Generally, subject to certain “exempt” transactions,
the Federal Reserve Act limits the extent to which a financial institution or its subsidiaries may cngage in “covercd
transactions” with an affiliate. Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act defines “covered transactions,” which
include extensions of credit, and limits a financizl institution’s covered transactions with any one affiliate to 10% of
such financial institution’s capital and surplus and with all affiliates to 20% of such financial institution’s capital and
surplus. All covered and exempt transactions between a financial institution and its affiliates must be on terms and
conditions consistent with safe and sound banking practices, and financial institutions and their subsidiaries arc
prohibited from purchasing low-quality assets from the financial institution’s affiliates. Finally, Section 23A
requires that all of a financial institution’s extensions of credit te an affiliate be appropriately secured by acceptable
collateral, generally United States government or agency securities. The company and its subsidiaries are also
subject 1o Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act, which generally limits covered and other transactions between a
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financial institution and its affiliates to terms, and under circumstances, including credit standards, that are
substantially the samc or at least as favorable to the financial institution as prevailing at the time for transactions
with unaffiliated companies.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 repealed the restrictions on banks
affiliating with securities firms contained in sections 20 and 32 of the Glass-Steagall Act. The Act also permits bank
holding companies that become financial holding companies to engage in a statutorily provided list of financial
activities, including insurance and securities underwriting and agency activities, merchant banking and insurance
company portfolio investment activities. The Act also authorizes activities that are “complementary” to financiai
activitics, We have not elected to become a financial holding company.

Further, under the Act, subject to certain conditions imposed by their respective banking regulators, bank
and thrifts are permitted to form “financial subsidiaries™ that may conduct financial or incidental activities, thereby
permitting bank and thrift subsidiaries to engage in certain activities that previously were impermissible. The
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act imposes several safeguards and restrictions on financial subsidiaries, in¢luding that the
parent institution’s equity investment in the financial subsidiary be deducted from the parent’s tangible equity for
purposes of calculating the parent’s capital adequacy. In addition, the Act imposes new restrictions on transactions
between a parcnt institution and its financial subsidiaries, similar to restrictions applicable 1o transactions between
banks or thrifts and their nonbank affiliates.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act also contains requirements for banks and thrifts, regarding consumer privacy
for the personal financial information of their customers. These provisions require banks and thrifts to disclose their
policies for collecting and protecting the personal financial information of their customers. Customers generally
may prevent financial institutions from sharing personal financial information with nonaffiliated third parties, except
for third parties that market an institution’s own products and services. Additionally, financial institutions generally
may not disclose certain personal financial information, in¢cluding consumer account numbers, to any nonaffiliated
third party, for usc in telemarketing, direct mail marketing or other marketing to the customer.

Subsidiary Dividends. The company is a legal entity, separate and distinct from its subsidiaries. The
company is entitled to receive dividends when, and as, declared by the bank or the thrift. The approval of the
Georgia Department of Banking and Finance must be obtaincd before the bank may pay cash dividends out of
retained earnings, which approval will be granted only if (i) the total classified assets at the most recent examination
of the bank exceeded 80% of the equity capital, (i) the agpregate amount of dividends declared or anticipated to be
declared in the calendar year exceeds 50% of the net profits, after taxes but before dividends, for the previous
calendar year, or (iii) the ratio of equity capital to adjusted assets is less than 6%. Further, the OTS must approve
any dividend payment made by the thrift, during its first three years of operation, pursuant to the business plan that
was filed with the OTS as part of its charter application.

In addition, the company is subject to various general regulatory policies and requirements relating to the
payment of dividends, including requirements to maintain adequate capital above regulatory minimums. The
appropriate federal banking regulator is authorized to determine, under certain circumstances relating to the financial
condition of a bank, a thrift or a bank holding company, that the payment of dividends by the subsidiary would be an
unsafe or unsound practice and to prohibit payment thereof. The federal banking regulators have indicated that
paying dividends that deplete a bank’s or thrift’s capital basc to an inadequate level would be an unsound and unsafe
banking practice and that banking organizations should generally pay dividends only out of current operating
earnings.

Deposit Insurance. The FDIC, pursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, has adopted a risk-based
assessment system for determining an insured depository institutions’ insurance assessment rate. The system takes
into account the risks attributable to different categories and concentrations of asscts and liabilities. An institution is
placed into one of three capital categories: (1) well capitalized; (2) adequately capitalized; or (3) undercapitalized.
The FDIC also assigns an institution to one of three supervisory subgroups, based on the FDIC’s determination of
the institution’s financial condition and the risk posed to the deposit insurance funds. Assessments generally range
from 5 to 7 cents per $100 of deposits, depending on the institution’s capital group and supcrvisory subgroup. The
FDMC may increase or decrease the assessment rate schedule on a semiannual basis. An increase in the assessment
rate could have a material adverse effect on the company’s earnings, depending on the amount of the increase. In
early 2006, Congress passed the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005, which made certain changes to the
Federal deposit insurance program. These changes included increasing retirement account coverage to $230,000
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and providing for inflationary adjustments to general coverage beginning in 2010, providing the FDIC with
authority to sct the fund’s reserve ratio within a specified range, and requiring dividends to banks and thrifts, if the
reserve ratio exceeds certain levels.

The FDIC approved Appalachian Community Bank, F.S.B.’s application for federal deposit insurance on
January 19, 2007, subject to the condition that the Tier | capital to assets leverage ratio be maintained at not less
than 8%, throughout the first three years of operation, and that an adcquate allowance for loan and leasc losses be
provided.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, in connection with
examinations of financial institutions within their respective jurisdictions, the appropriate federal banking regulator
shall evaluate the record of each financial institution in meeting the credit needs of its local community, including
low and moderate income neighborhoods. These factors are also considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitions, and
applications to open a branch or facility. Failure to adequately meet these criteria could impose additional
requirements and limitations for the bank or the thrift.

Lending Limits. Lenders create a form of loan-concentration risk when they extend a significant amount
of credit to any one borrower or to borrowers who are related in a common enterprise. As such, banks and thrifts are
subject to regulatory and statutory limitations on the amount of loans that they can make to vne borrower.

The bank, pursuant to the Financial Institutions Code of Georgia and the regulations of the Geergia
Department, generally, is limited in the amount of loans it can make to any one borrower to 15% of the statutory
capital base of the bank, provided that upon approval of the bank’s board of directors prior to 2 loan that would an
exceed this 15% limit, the bank may make additional loans te such borrower, if the entire amount of all loans to such
borrowers is secured by good collateral or other ample security and does not exceed 25% of the bank’s statutory
capital base. There are exceptions to these limits that are provided for certain types of obligations, certain types of
collateral and certain types of borrowers.

Generally, the bank’s “statutory capital base” includes the aggregate of the bank’s capital stock, paid-in-
capital, the amount of the bank’s retained earnings that have been set aside by the board of directors as unavailable
for the payment of dividends or distributions to shareholders, and the face-value amount of any subordinated
securities issued by the bank.

With regard to the thrifi, under the general lending limit established by regulations of the OTS, the total
loans and extensions of credit, outstanding to one borrower, at any one time, can not exceed 15% of the thrift’s
unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. If certain qualifications are met, the thrift can make additional loans and
extensions of credit to one borrower, if fully secured by readily marketable collateral, as detcrmined by reliable and
continuously available price quotations, equal to 10% of the thrift’s unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus.
There are also other exceptions to the general lending limit based on the loan type. The Director of the OTS may
impose more stringent restrictions on a thrift’s loans 10 one borrower, if the OTS determines that such restrictions
are necessary to protect the safety and soundness of the thrift.

Unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus are defined under OTS regulations as: core capital and
supplementary capital included in total capital, plus any allowance for loan losses not included in supplementary
capital, plus the amount of investment in, and advances to, subsidiaries not included in calculating core capital,

Commercial Real Estate Lending. The lending operations of the bank and the thrift may be subject to
enhanced scrutiny by federal banking regulators, based upon the concentration of commercial real estate loans. On
December 6, 2006, the federal banking regulators issued final “interagency™ guidance to remind financial
institutions of the risk posed by commercial real estate (*CRE™) lending concentrations. CRE loans generally
include land development. residential and commercial construction loans, as well as loans secured by multifamily
property, and nonfarm, nonresidential real property where the primary source of repayment i3 derived from renial
income associated with the property.

Other Regulations. Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by the company, the bank and
the thrift are subject to state usury laws and certain federal laws concerning interest rates. The company’s loan
operations, as conducted by the bank and the thrift, are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions,
such as:
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[ the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

[0 the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring financial institutions to provide information
to enable the public and public officials to determine whether a financial institution is fulfilling its
obligation to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves;

[0 the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other
prohibited factors in extending credit;

0 the Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1978, governing the use and provision of information 1o credit
reporting agencics;

[0 the Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by
collection agencies; and

[0 the rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of
implementing such federal laws.

In addition, the deposit operations of the bank and the thrift are subject to:

[0 the Right 1o Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer
financial records and prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of
financial records;

{0 the Electronic Funds Transfcr Act and Regulation E issued by the Federal Reserve Board to
implement that Act, which govern automatic deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts
and customers’ rights and liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines and other
electronic banking services; and

{1 the Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act, also known as Check 21, which gives “substitutc
checks,” such as a digital image of a check and copies made from that image, the same legal
standing as the original paper check.

Enforcement Powers. The Financial Institutions Reform Recovery and Enforcement Act expanded and
increased civil and criminal penalties available for use by the federal regulatory agencies against depository
institutions and certain “institution-affiliated parties.” Institution-affiliated parties primarily include management,
employees and agents of a financial institution, as well as independent contractors and consultants such as attorneys
and accountants and others who participate in the conduct of the financial institution’s affairs. These practices can
include the failure of an institution to timely file required reports or the filing of false or mislcading information or
the submission of inaccurate reports. Civil penalties may be as high as $1,000,000 a day for such violations.
Criminal penalties for some financial institution crimes have been increased to 20 years. In addition, federal banking
regulaters are provided with greater flexibility to commence enforcement actions against institutions and institution-
affiliated parties. Possible enforcement actions include the termination of deposit insurance and cease-and-desist
orders. Cease-and-desist orders may, among other things, require affirmative action to correct any harm resulting
from a violation or practice, including restitution, reimbursement, indemnification or guarantees against loss. A
financial institution may also be ordered to restrict its growth, dispose of certain assets, rescind agreements or
contracts, or take other actions as determined by the ordering agency to be appropriate.

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies. The company’s earnings are affected by domestic economic
conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies. The Federal
Reserve’s monelary policies have had, and are likely to continue to have, an important impact on the operating
results of commercial banks through its power to implement national monetary policy in order, ameong other things,
to curb inflation or combat a recession. The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve have major effects upon the
levels of bank loans, investments and deposits through its open market operations in United States government
securities and through its regulation of the discount rate on borrowings of member banks and the reserve
requirements against member bank deposits. 1t is not possible to predict the nature or impact of future changes in
monetary and fiscal policies.

Proposed Legislation and Regulatory Action. New regulations and statutes are regularly proposed that
contain wide-ranging proposals for altering the structures, regulations, and competitive relatienships of the nation’s
financial institutions. We cannot predict whether or in what form any proposed regulation or statute will be adopted
or the extent to which our business may be affected by any new regulation or statute.
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ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

The following are certain risks that management believes are specific to our business. This should not be
viewed as an all inclusive list or in any particular order.

An economic downturn, especially one affecting Gilmer, Union and Fannin counties, could adversely affect our
business.

Our success significantly depends upon the growth in population, income levels, deposits and housing
starts in our primary market arcas of Gilmer, Union, Fannin, Murray, and Dawson counties in Georgia, as well as
Polk County, Tennessce and Cherokee County, North Carolina. 1f these communitics do not grow or if prevailing
local or national cconomic conditions are unfavorable, our business may not succeed. An cconomic downturn
would likely harm the quality of our loan portfolio and reduce the level of our deposits, which in turn would hurt our
business. [ an cconomic downturn occurs, borrowers may be less likely to repay their loans as scheduled. Unlike
many larger institutions, we are not able to spread the risks of unfavorable local cconomic conditions across a large
number of diversified economies. An economic downturn could, therefore, result in losses that materially and
adversely affect our business.

If real estate values in our market decline or become stagnant, our business could be adversely affected.

Real estate values in our market area have risen substantially over the last several years. There continues to
be a significant amount of speculation that the United States, or at least certain parts of the country, is in the midst of
a real estate “bubble”, meaning that current real estate prices exceed the true values of the properties. If this is the
case, or if the market generally perceives that this is the case, then real estate prices could become stagnant or
decline, and there could be a significant reduction in real estate construction and housing starts.

In addition, the value and liquidity of the real estate or other collateral securing our loans could be
impaired. A significant portion of our loan portfolio is dependent on real estate. At December 31, 2007, real cstatc
served as the principal source of collateral with respect to approximately 89.5% of our loan portfolio. While we are
not a subprime lender, a decline in the value of residential and commercial real estate securing our loans could
adversely impact our financial condition. Given our heavy reliance on real cstate lending, this could have a
significant adverse affect on our business.

Our loan portfolio includes a substantial amount of commercial real estate and construction and development
loans, which may have more risks than residential or consumer loans.

As of December 31, 2007, our commercial real estate loans amounted to $154.7 million, or approximately
19.2% of our loan portfolio, and our construction and development loans totaled $389.7 million, or 48.3% of our
loan portfelio. These loans gencrally carey larger loan balances and involve a greater degree of financial and credit
risk than home equity, residential or consumer loans. The increased financial and credit risk associated with these
types of loans is a resull of several factors, including the concentration of principal in a limited number of loans and
to borrowers in similar lines of business, the size of loan balances, the effects of general economic conditions on
income-producing properties in our primary market area and the increased difficulty of evaluating and monitoring
these types of loans,

Furthermaore, the repayment of loans secured by commercial real estate in somc cases is dependent upon the
successful operation, development or sale of the related real estate or commercial project. 1{'the cash flow from the
project is reduced, the borrower’s ability to repay the loan may be impaired. This cash flow shortage may result in
the failure to make loan payments. [n these cases, we may be compelled to modify the terms of the loan. Asa
result, repayment of these loans may, to a greater extent than other types of loans, be subject to adverse conditions in
the real estate market or cconomy. These risks may become more acute during a general economic dewnturn like the
one we are currcntly cxperiencing.

Many of our borrowers have more than one loan or credit relationship with us.

Many of our borrowers have more than onc commercial real estate or commercial business loan
outstanding with us. Consequently, an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit relationship can
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expose us to a significantly greater risk of loss compared to an adverse development with respect to, for example, a
one- to- four-family residential mortgage loan.

Our decisions regarding credif risk and reserves for loan losses may matevially and adversely affect our business.

Making loans and other extensions of credit is an essential element of our business. Although we seck to
mitigate risks inherent in lending by adhering to specific underwriting practices, our loans and other extensions of
credit may not be repaid. The risk of nonpayment is affected by a number of factors, including:

the duration of the credit;

credit risks of a particular customer;

changes in economic and industry conditions; and

in the case of a collateralized lean, risks resulting from uncertainties about the future value of the
collateral,

oooOoo

We attempt to maintain an appropriate allowance for loan losses to provide for potential losses in our loan
portfolio. However, there is no precise method of predicting credit losses, since any estimate of loan losses is
necessarily subjective and the accuracy depends on the outcome of future events. Therefore, we face the risk that
charge-offs in future periods will exceed our allowance for loan losses and that additional increases in the allowance
for loan losses will be required. Additions to the allowance for loan losses would result in a decrease of our net
income, and possibly our capital.

We face strong competition for customers, which conld prevent us from obtaining customers and may cause us te
pay higher interest rates to attract deposits.

The banking business is highly competitive and we experience competition in each of our markets from
many other financial institutions. We compete with commercial banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations,
mortgage banking firms, consumer finance companies, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money
market funds and other mutual funds, as well as super-regional, national and international financial institutions that
operate offices in our primary market areas and elscwhere.  We compete with these institutions both in attracting
deposits and in making loans. In addition, we have to attract our customer base from other existing financial
institutions and from new residents. Many of our competitors are well-established, larger financial institutions.
These institutions offer some services, such as extensive and established branch networks and trust services, which
we currcntly do not provide. There is a risk that we will not be able to compete successfully with other financial
institutions in our markets, and that we may have to pay higher interest rates to attract deposits, resulting in reduced
profitability. Competitors that are not depository institutions are generally not subject to the extensive regulations
that apply to us. In new markets that we may enter, we will also compete against well-established community banks
that have developed relationships within the community.

Changes in interest rates may reduce our profitability.

Our profitability depends in large part on our net interest income, which is the difference between interest
earned from interest-earning assets, such as loans and mortgage-backed securities, and interest paid on interest-
bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. Market interest rates for loans, investments and deposits are
highly sensitive to many factors beyond our control. Recently, interest rate spreads (the difference between interest
rates earned on assets and intercst rates paid on liabilities) have generally narrowed as a result of changing market
conditions, pelicies of various government and regulatory authorities and competitive pricing pressures as we
expand into new markets, and we cannot predict whether these rate spreads will narrow cven further. This narrowing
of interest rate spreads could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. In addition, we
cannot predict whether interest rates will continue to remain at present levels. Changes in interest rates may cause
significant changes, up or down, in our net interest income. Depending on our portfolio of loans and investments,
our results of operations may be adversely affected by changes in intercst rates.

At December 31, 2007 we were in a liability sensilive position, which generally means that changes in
interest rates affect our interest paid on liabilities quicker than our interest earned on assets since the rates paid on
our liahilities reset sooner than rates earned on our assets. Accordingly, we anticipate that interest rate decreascs by
the Federal Reserve Bank in the first quarter of 2008 will have a positive affect on our net interest income.

15




Our recent operating results may not be indicative of our future operating results.

We may not be able to sustain our historical rate of growth and may not even be able to grow our business
atall. If we continue 1o expand, it will be difficult for us te generate similar earnings growih. Consequently, our
historical results of operations are not necessarily indicative of our future operations. Various factors, such as
economic conditions, regulatory and legisiative considerations and competition may also impede our ability to
cxpand our market presence. 1f we experience a significant decrease in our rate of growth, our results of operations
and financial condition may be adversely affected because a high percentage of our eperating costs are fixed
expenses.

We could be adversely affected by the loss of one or more key personnel or by an inability to attract and retain
employees.

We believe that our growth and future success will depend in large part on the skills of our executive
officers. The loss of the services of one or more of these officers could impair our ability to continue to implement
our business strategy. In particular, Tracy R. Newton, our president and chief executive officer, has extensive and
long-standing tics within our primary market area and substantial experience with our eperations, and has
contributed significantly to our growth, If we lose the services of Mr. Newton, he would be difficult to replace and
our business and development could be materially and adversely affected. [n October 2007, we hired Danny F.
Dukes to serve as our principal financial officer and as the chief financial officer of the company and the bank.

Our success also depends, in part, on our continued ability to attract and retain experienced and qualified
employees. The competition for such employees is intense, and our inability to continue to attract, retain and
mativate employees could adversely affect our business.

The success of our growth strategy depends on our ability to continie to identify and recruit individuals with
experience and relationships in the markets in which we are expanding.

Over the last two years we have expanded our banking network in the North Georgia Mountains and other
surrounding fast-growing communities in North Carolina and Tennessee. We believe that to expand into new
markets successfully, we must continue 10 identify and recruit experienced key management members with local
expertise and relationships in these markets. Competition for qualified management in these markets is intense and
there are a limited number of qualificd persons with knowledge of and experience in the community banking
industry in these markets, Even as we identify individuals that we believe could assist us in establishing a presence
in a new market, we may be unable to recruit these individuals away from more cstablished banks. In addition, the
process of identifying and recruiting individuals with the combination of skills and attributes required to carry out
our strategy is often lengthy. Our inability to identify, recruit and retain talented personnel 10 manage new offices
effectively and in a timely manner will limit our growth and could materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations. We may fail to open any additional offices and those offices that we have
already opened may not be profitable.

We will face risks with respect to future expansion and acquisitions or mergers.

We may expand into new lings of business or offer new products or services. Any expansion plans we
undertake may also divert the attention of our management from the operation of our business, which would have an
adverse effect on our results of operations. We may also seck to acquire other financial institutions or parts of those
institutions. Any of these activities would involve a number of risks such as the time and expense associated with
evaluating new lines of business or new markets for expansion, hiring or retaining local management and integrating
new acquisitions. Even if we identify new lines of business or new products or services, they may not be profitable.
Nor can we say with certainty that we will be able to consummate, or if consummated, successfully integrate, future
acquisitions, if any, or that we will not incur disruptions or unexpected expense in integrating such acquisitions.
Any given acquisition, if and when consummated, may adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition,



Our growth may require us to raise additional capital that may not be available when it is needed or may not be
available on terms acceptable to us,

We are required by regulatory authorities to maintain adequatc levels of capital to support our operations.
To support our continued growth, we may need to raise additional capital. Our ability to raise additional capital, if
needed, will depend in part on conditions in the capital markcets at that time, which are outside our control.
Accordingly, we cannot assure you of our ability to raisc additional capital, if needed, on terms acceptable to us. If
we cannot raise additional capital when needed, our ability to further expand our operations through internal growth
and acquisitions could be materially impaired.

We are subject to extensive regulation that could limit or restrict our activities.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and are subject to examination, supervision and comprehensive
regulation by various regulatory agencics. Qur compliance with these regulations is costly and restricts certain of
our activities, including payment of dividends, mergers and acquisitions, investments, loans and interest rates
charged, interest rates paid on depesits and locations of offices. We are also subject to regulatory capital
requirements established by our regulators, which require us to maintain adequate capital to support our growth, If
we fail to meet these capital and other regulatory requirements, our ability to grow, our cost of funds and FDIC
insurance, our ability to pay dividends on common stock. and our ability to make acquisitions could be materially
and adversely affected.

The laws and regulations applicable to the banking industry could change at any time, and we cannot
predict the effects of these changes on our business and profitability. Because government regulation greatly affects
the business and financial results of all banks and bank holding companics, our cost of compliance could adversely
affect our ability to operate profitably.

There is a limited trading market for our common stock

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “APAB.” There is, however,
a limited trading market for our common stock, with average trading volumes of approximately 3,500 shares per
day. There can be no assurance that a holder of our common stock, particularly a large block of stock, will have the
ability to dispose of such shares.

Efforts to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act involve significant expenditures, and non-compliance with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act may adversely affect us.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the related rules and regulations promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission that are now applicable to us, have increased the scope, complexity and cost of corporate
governance, reporting and disclosure practices. We have experienced, and we expect to continue to experience,
greater compliance costs, including costs related to internal controls, as a result of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. For
example, for the year ended December 31, 2009, we will be required to fully comply with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and our auditors will be required to attest to our management report on our internat controls.
We expect these new rules and regulations to continue to increase our accounting, legal and other ¢osts, and to make
some activities more difficult, time consuming and costly. In the event that we are unable o maintain or achieve
compliance with the Sarbancs-Oxley Act and related rules, we may be adversely affected. 1f we identify significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting that we cannot remediate ina
timely manner, the trading price of our common stock could decline, our ability to obtain any necessary equity or
debt financing could suffer and the trading market for our common stock could be materially impaired.




ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.



ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our executive offices and the operations center for the company, the bank and the thrift are located at 822
Industrial Boulevard, Eliijay, Georgia, between the business districts of Ellijay and East Ellijay. We own this
property. In addition to this facility, we operate thirteen branch offices, of which 6 are owned and 7 are subject to
either building or ground leases. During 2007, we constructed two new branch offices, one in Dawsonville, Georgia
and one in Chatsworth, Georgia. We began banking operations in these facilities in December 2007 and February
2008, respectively. In March, 2008, we principally agreed to terms for the purchase of land for the future
construction of a permancnt branch location in Dahlonega, Georgia, which is currently in a leased location. At the
time of this filing, the contract outlining the specific terms and cost of the purchase had not been executed. In
addition, we own land in Murphy, North Carolina and Dawson County, Georgia. Both of these properties could be
used to replace current lcased facilities and are near two of our current branch locations.

We also own a building in Ellijay, Georgia, which previously housed our operations center. This building
is approximately 14,200 square feet, including approximately 8,000 square feet of commercial space that we have
leased to various third parties in the past. We have two tenants occupying sections of this building and at this time
we are using the remaining space as a storage facility for all of our branches and operations.

We believe that all of our properties are adequately covered by insurance, Further disclosures pertaining to
our properties may be found in the notes to our ¢onsolidated financial statements.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of operations, we are a party to various legal proceedings from time to time. We do
not believe that there is any pending or threatened proceeding against us, which, if determined adversely, would
have a material effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition,

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No malters were submitted to a vote of shareholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by
this report.




PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “APAB”. As of March 14, 2008,

we had approximately 1,279 shareholders of record.

The following table shows the reported high and low sales prices reported by the Nasdaq Global Market for

each of the four quarters in 2007 and 2006.

Estimated Price

Range Per Share
High Low

Year End 2007:

First Quarter $ 2192 § 18.35

Second Quarter 19.75 17.10

Third Quarter 17.84 13.97

Fourth Guarter 15.24 9.43
Year End 2006:

First Quarter $ 2085 % 17.70

Second Quarter 21.73 17.62

Third Quarter 24.39 18.50

Fourth Quarter 24.00 19.25

To date, we have not paid cash dividends on our common stock. For the foreseeable future we do not

intend to declare cash dividends, We intend to retain earnings to grow our business and strengthen our capital base.
Our ability to pay cash dividends is dependent upon receiving cash dividends from our subsidiaries. In addition,
Georgia and federal banking regulations restrict the amount of cash dividends that can be paid to the company from

its subsidiaries. See “Subsidiary Dividends™ in the section entitled “*Supervision and Regulation.”
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Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities

Total Number
of Shares (or
Units)
Purchased as

Total Number Part of Publicly

Maximum
Number (or
Approximate
Dollar Value) of
Shares (or Units)
that May Yet Be

of Shares (or Avcrage Price Announced Purchased Under
Units) Paid per Share (or Plans or the Plans or
Period Purchased(!) Unit) Programs Programs

3/1707 to 3/31/07 — — — $2.500,000
4/1/07 to 4/30/07 — — — $2,500,000
5/1/07 to 5/31/07 — — — $2,500,000
6/1/07 to 6/30/07 — — — $2,500,000
711107 1o 73107 o — — $2,500,000
8/1/07 to 8/31/07 25,000 $16.18 25,000 $2,095,500
9/1/07 to 9/30/07 — — — $2,095,500
10/1/07 to 10/31/07 — — — $2,095,500
11/1/07 1o 11/30/07 — — — £2.095,500
12/1/07 10 12/31/07 10,000 £10.79 10,000 $1,987,600

(1) On March 2, 2007, we announced a program to repurchase up to an aggregate of $2.5 million of our common
stock over the twelve month period ending February 27, 2008.




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Qur selected consolidated financial data presented below as of and for the years ended December 31, 2003
through 2007 is derived from our audited conselidated financial statements. Our audited consolidated financial
statements as of Deccmber 31, 2007 and 2006 and for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31,
2007 are included elsewhere in this report. All per share data has been adjusted to reflect a 10% common stock
dividend on Juiy 1, 2003.

At and for the Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands, except shares and per share data)

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Assels $ 971,200 § 758214 § 592,606 $ 472811 § 409,617
Investment sccurities 80,510 74,725 71,570 64,655 35,363
Loans, held for sale 6,503 733 — — —
Leoans 807,522 631,053 457418 377,352 332,307
Allowance for loan losses 9,808 7,670 6,059 4,349 3,610
Deposits 807,597 651,134 473,310 381,498 332,919
Short-term borrowings 21,048 4,738 24,892 15,470 12,086
Accrucd interest payable 2,059 1,454 728 340 671
FHLB advances 57,350 25,050 24,950 31,950 25,693
Subordinated long-term

capital notes 6,186 6,186 6,186 6,186 6,186
Other liabilitics 3,297 2,889 2,715 1,084 981
Shareholders' equity 73,663 66,763 59,825 36,083 31,082

Summary Results of Operations Data
Interest income b 72,127 § 53,193 § 34,750 § 25736 % 23,090
Interest cxpense 34,800 22,494 11,880 7,558 8,257
Net interest income 37,327 30,699 22,870 18,178 14,833
Provision for loan losses 4,726 3,253 2,211 1,235 1,465
Net intcrest income after
provision for loan losses 32,601 27,446 20,659 16,943 13,368
Non-interest income 5,518 3,971 3,303 2,829 2,703
Non-interest expense 29,786 22,561 16,338 13,840 11,732
Income before taxes 8,333 8,856 7,624 5,932 4,339
Income tax expense 2,763 2,852 2,502 1,885 1,253
Net income g 5570 § 6,004 § 5122 § 4,047 § 3,086
Per Share Data

Net income - basic £ 1.06 § 1.16 $ 1.24 % 1.09 § 0.86
Net income - diluted 1.06 1.14 1.21 1.04 0.81
Book value 13.94 12.83 11.62 9.58 8.49
Cash dividends declared per

common share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.60

Weighted average number shares
outstanding:
Basic 5,265,555 5,170,687 4,123,403 3,724,095 3,609,728
Diluted 5,276,200 5,278,711 4,247,334 5,885,490 3,809,625
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Performance Ratios
Return on average assets
Return on average equity
Net interest margin (1)
Efficiency ratio (2)

Loan to deposit ratio

Asset Quality Ratios
Nonperforming loans to total loans
Nonperforming assets to total assets
Net charge-offs to average total loans
Allowance for loan losses to
nonperforming loans
Allowance for loan losses to
total loans

Capital Ratios
Average equily 10 average assets
Leverage ratio
Tier | risk-based capital ratio
Total risk-based capital ratio

Growth Ratios and Other Data
Percentage change in net income
Percentage change in diluted net

income per share
Percentage change in assets
Percentage change in loans
Percentage change in deposits
Percentage change in equity

At and for the Years Ended December 31,

(1) Taxable Equivalent.

(2) Computed by dividing noninterest expense by the sum of net interest and noninterest inceme, excluding gains and losses on the sale of assets

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
0.65 % 0.91 % 0.99 % 0.91 % 0.78
7.93 9.57 12.18 12.23 10.85
4.68 5.04 477 443 4.15

69.53 65.07 62.42 65.81 66.83
99.99 97.03 96.64 98.91 99.82
0.57 % 0.55 % 0.24 % 0.41 % 0.50
0.64 0.62 0.21 0.44 0.58
036 0.30 0.12 0.14 0.35

212.57 220.21 555.36 279.14 219.05
1.21 1.21 1.32 1.15 1.09
8.14 % 9.49 % 8.11 % 742 % 7.23
8.30 9.55 11.35 8.53 8.58
9.36 10.69 13.27 10.32 10.46
10.55 11.85 14.52 11.45 11.55
(7.23)% 1722 % 2656 % 3114 % 15.67
(7.02) (5.79) 16.35 28.40 6.58
28.09 27.95 25.34 15.43 6.66
27.96 38.12 21.22 13.56 11.49
24,03 37.57 24.07 14.59 5.26
10.34 11.60 65.80 16.09 21.32
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following diseussion reviews our resulls of operations and assesses our financial condition, You should
read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with our “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Report,

Overview

We were incorporated in 1996 to serve as the holding company for Gilmer County Bank (now Appalachian
Community Bank), Since April 2007, we also serve as the holding company for Appalachian Community Bank,
F.S.B. Since 1996, we have experienced consistent growth in total assets, total loans, total deposits and
shareholders’ equity.

The following table sets forth selected measures of our financial performance for the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{(In thousands)

Net income h 5570 % 6,004 % 5,122
Total assets 971,200 758,214 592,606
Total loans " 807,522 631,786 457,418
Total deposits 807,597 651,134 473,310
Shareholders’ equity 73,663 66,763 59,825

{1} Loans are net of unearned income

Like most community banks and thrifts, we derive the majority of our income from interest and fees
received on our loans. Gur primary sources of funds for making these loans and investments are our deposits and
advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB). Consequently, one of the key measures of our
success is our amount of net interest income, or the difference between the income earned on our interest-carning
assets, such as loans and investments, and the interest paid on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and
advances from the FHLB. Another key measure is the spread between the yield we earn on these interest-earning
assets and the rate we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities, which is called our net interest spread.

We have included a number of tables to assist in our description of these measures. For example, the
“Average Balances, Income and Expense and Rates” 1ables show for the periods indicated the average balance for
each category of our assets and liabilities, as well as the yield we earned or the rate we paid with respect to each
category. A review of these tables show that our loans typically provide higher interest yields than do other types of
interest-earning assets, which is why we intend 1o channel a substantial percentage of our earning assets into our
loan portfolio. Similarly, the “Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income™ table helps demonstrate the impact of
changing interest rates and changing volume of assets and liabilitics during the periods shown. We also track the
sensitivity of our various categories of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates, and we have included an
“Interest Sensitivity Analysis™ table to help explain this. Finally, we have included a number of tables that provide
detail about our investment securities, our loans, our deposits and other borrowings.

There are risks inherent in all loans, so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb probable losses
on existing loans that may become uncollectible. We maintain this allowance by charging a provision for loan losses
against our operating earnings for each period. We have included a detailed discussion of this process, as well as
several tables describing our allowance for loan losses.

In addition to earning interest on our loans and investments, we earn income through fees and other charges

1o our customers. We have also included a discussion of the various components of this noninterest income, as well
as of our noninterest expense, included in the “Noninterest Income and Expense” section.
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The following discussion and analysis also identifies significant factors that have affected our financial
position and operating results during the periods included in the accompanying financial statements. We encourage
you to read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with our financial statements and the other statistical
information included in this Report.

Critical Accounting Policies

In the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, we have adopted various accounting policies
that govern the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as well as the general
practices within the banking and thrift industry. Our significant accounting policies are deseribed in the notes to our
audited consolidated financial statements included in this Report.

Certain accounting polictes involve significant judgments and assumptions by management that may have a
material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilitics. We consider such accounting policies to be
critical accounting policies. The judgments and assumptions we use are based on historical experience and other
factors, which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Because of the nature of the judgments and
assumptions we make, actual results could differ from these judgments and estimates. These differences could have
a maicrial impact on our carrying values of assets and liabilities and our results of operations.

We believe the determination of the allowance for loan losses is the critical accounting policy that requires
the most significant judgments and estimates when preparing our consolidated financial statements. Some of the
more critical judgments supporting the amount of cur allowance for loan losses include judgments about the credit
worthiness of borrowers, the estimated value of the underlying collateral, cash flow assumptions, determination of
loss factors for estimating credit losses, the impact of current events and other factors impacting the level of
probable inherent losses. Under different conditions or using different assumptions, the actual amount of credit
losses incurred by us may be different from management’s estimates provided in our consolidated financial
statements. Refer 1o the section entitled “Allowance for Loan Losses” for a more complete discussion of our
processes and methodology for determining our allowance for loan losses.

Results of Operations
Income Statement Review
Overview

For the year ended December 31, 2007, our net income was $5.6 miltion, or $1.06 basic net income per
common share, as compared to $6.0 million, or $1.16 basic net income per common share, for the year ended
December 31, 2006, and compared to $5.1 million, or $1.24 basic net income per common share, for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

Our earnings during 2007 reflect the continued strong growth in loans and deposits primarily due to our de
novo branch expansion initiative. However, because we were negatively impacted by declining interest rates, our
net interest margin decreased 36 basis points from 2006 to 2007, to 4.68%. Operating expenses grew during 2007 to
$29.8 million, or 32%, from 2006. This growth in operaling expenses relates primarily to our de novo branch
expansion and from hiring additional employees to staff our new banking offices and to support our continued
growth. 1n 2007, we opened one new loan production office and converted it to a full service branch. Then, in 2007,
we converted two existing loan production offices into full service branches. In addition, we opened two additional
branches. This activity added 21 full-time equivalent new employees during 2007.

Net Interest ncome
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2003

Our primary source of revenue is net interest income, which represents the difference between the income
on interest-earning assets and expense on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income increased $6.6 million, or
21.6%, to $37.3 million for 2007, compared to $30.7 million for 2006. Net interest income increased $7.8 million,
or 34.2%. to $30.7 million for 2006, compared 10 $22.9 million for 2005, Generally, the overall increase in net
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interest income was primarily the resuit of the growth in our loan pertfolio. Our average total loans increased 33.2%
from 2006 to 2007, and 30.5% from 2005 to 2006. The continued growth of our loan portfolio is primarily due to
growth in our new expansion markets as well as our existing markets. These new markets ate the primary reasons
for the increase in interest income. However, the increase in interest expense is largely the result of the significant
growth of deposits and alternative funding sources, such as the FHLB and brokered deposits, required to fund our
asset growth. Due to the continued fierce competition for local deposits, the growth in less costly alternative funding
sources allowed us to more effectively manage the net interest margin.

The trend in net interest income is also evaluated in terms of average rates using the net interest margin and
the interest rate spread. The net intercst margin, or the net yicld on earning assets, is computed by dividing fully
taxable equivalent net interest income by average earning assets. This ratio represents the difference between the
average yicld returned on average earning assets and the average rate paid for funds used to support those carning
assets, including both interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing sources. The net interest margin for 2007 was 4.68%
compared 10 a net interest margin of 5.04% in 2006 and 4.77% in 2005. Net interest spread, the difference between
the average yield on earning assets and the average rate paid on interest-bearing sources of funds, was 4.25% in
2007, compared to 4.53% in 2006, and 4.46% in 2005. In the last quarter of 2007, we experienced two 0.25%
decreases in the prime rate. Our certificate of deposit rates for similar maturities did not follow these decreases, yet
our prime-based loan portfolio rates decreased immediately. However, our koan portfolio is comprised of 57% fixed
rate loans. Additionally, the average maturity of our certificate of deposit portfolio at the end of 2007 was slightly
over 6 months. We believe that these factors will be beneficial as we adjust 10 a lower interest rate environment and
continue to manage our margin, Although we continue to confront this margin compression with lower cost
alternative funding sources, we cannot totally avoid it if we are to continue to maintain and grow our market share.
In 2007, altemnative funding sources had an overall weighted average cost of 4.83% compared to competitors’
certificates of deposit, money market and interest checking account rates which ranged from 5.25% up te 6.01%.
We believe that, as our current temporary branch locations are converted to permanent banking facilities in our
expansion markets, we will continue to grow core deposits and this will allow us to replace alternative funding
sources with these core deposits. Until then, we will continuce to use alternative funding sources as secondary
sources to fund loan growth when necessary. We also belicve that the Federal Reserve’s recent rate drops will
dictate much lower competitive deposit rates because this interest margin squeeze is a banking industry concern and
nol unique to our company.

The continued strong demand for loans alse provides us with the opportunity to develop business as the
communities we serve continue to grow. Qur expansionary activities during the second half of 2006 and in 2007
have generated significant growth in loans and deposits. Four of the new branch offices became profitable during the
last half of 2007, and two of those have been profitable since March 2007. We believe that our investment in these
locations will enable us to take advantage of the growth in these markets and office profitability will continue to
improve.
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Average Balunces, Income and Expenses, and Rates. The following table shows, for years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the average daily balances outstanding for the major categorics of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and the average interest rate earned or paid. Such yields are calculated
by dividing income or expense by the average daily balance of the corresponding asscts or liabilities,

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Yiclds
Average Income/ Yields/ Average Income/ Yields/ Average  Income/ /
Balance  Expense  Rates Balance Expcnse  Rates Balance  Expense  Rates
{Dollars in thousands)
Earning assets:
Loans, held for sale $ 3356 % 205 6.11% 8 60 § 2 333% % — 3% —_ —%
Loans, nct of unearned
income ') 716,737 68,035 949 537914 49,869  9.27 412,307 32019 177
Investment securities™ 77,099 31839 498 72450 3338 4.6l 66,653 2,792 419
Interest-bearing deposits 1,497 78 5.21 632 30 475 677 20 295
Federal funds sold 6,176 338 5.47 6,539 351 5.37 5,986 218 3.64
Total interest-
carning assets B g 804,865 72,495 9.1 $ 617,595 53,590 8.68 $ 485,623 35,049  7.22
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits $ 62,943 1,389 221 % 74125 1,610 217§ 75670 1,057 140
Savings deposits 185,799 7,992 4.30 105,022 3,544 3.38 84,653 1,745 2.06
Time deposits 431,565 22986 533 315429 15,197 4.82 222,561 7330  3.29
Total deposits 620,307 32,367 476 494 576 20,351 4.12 382,284 10,132 265
Other short-term
borrowings 8,271 283 342 12,178 472 3.88 11.658 174 1.49
Long-term debt 43,226 2,150 4,97 34,976 1,671 4,78 35,803 1.574 440
Total interest-bearing
liabilities $ 731,804 34,800 4.76 S 541,730 22494 4,15 § 430,345 11,880 2.76
Net interest income/net
interest spread 37,695 425% 31,096 4.53% 23,169 446%
Net yield on earning asscts 4.68% 5.04% 4.77%
Taxable equivalent adjustment:
Loans 27 28 5
Investment sccurities 341 369 294
Total taxable equivalent
adjustment 368 397 299
Net interest income § 37,327 $ 30,699 § 22,870

(1)} Average loans exclude nonaccrual leans of $3.2, $1.6, and $1.3 mitlion for years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively. All loans and deposits are domestic.

(2} Average sccurities exclude unrealized gains/(losses) of $(257,000), ${839,000), and $(249.000) for years ended December 31, 2007, 2006

and 2005, respectively

(3} Tax equivalent adjustments have been based on an assumed tax rate of 39% for 2007 and 2006, 34% for 2005.
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Analysis of Changes in Ner Inferest Income. The following table sets forth a summary of the changes in
interest income and interest expense resulting from changes in interest rates and in changes in the volume of earning
asscts and interest-bearing liabilities, segregated by category. The change due to volume is calculated by multiplying
the change in volume by the prior year’s rate. The change duc to rate is calculated by multiplying the change in the
applicable rate by the prior year’s volume. Figures are presented on a taxable equivalent basis. The change in
interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated to volume and rate changes in proportion to the relationship
of the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income

For the Years Ended For the Years Ended
December 31, 2007 vs. 2006 December 31, 2006 vs. 2005
Volume Rate Net Change Volume Rate Net Change

(In thousands)
Earmning assets:

Loans, held for sale $ 200 $ 35 203 % 35 (s 2
Loans, net of unearned
income 16,955 1.211 18,166 10,926 6,924 17,850
Investment securities 222 279 501 254 292 546
Interest bearing deposits 45 3 48 (1) il 10
Federal funds sold (20) 7 (13) 22 111 133
Total earning assets 17,402 1,503 18,905 11,204 7,337 18,541
Interest-bearing labilities:
Demand deposits (246) 25 (221) (22) 575 553
Savings deposits 3,278 1170 4,448 493 1,306 1,799
Time deposits 6,054 1,735 7,789 3,730 4,137 7,867
Total deposits 9,086 2,930 12,016 4,201 6,018 10,219
Other short-term borrowings (138) (51} (189) 8 290 298
Long-term debt 408 71 479 37) 134 97
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 9,156 2,950 12,306 4,172 6,442 10,614

Net interest income/net
interest spread $ 8,046 % (1,447) § 6,599 § 7,032 § 89S § 7.927

Provision for Loan Losses
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

The provision for loan losses is based on the growth of the loan portfolio, the amount of net loan losses
incurred and management’s estimation of potential future losses based on an evaluation of the risk in the loan
portfolio. The provision for loan losses was $4.7 million for 2007, $3.3 million for 2006, and $2.2 million for 2005.
Please see the discussion below under “Allowance for Loan Losses” for a description of the factors we consider in
determining the amount of the provision we expensc cach period to maintain this allowance.

Noninterest Income
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Noninterest income for 2007, 2006 and 2005 totaled $5.5 million, $4.0 million, and $3.3 million,
respectively. These amounts are primarily from customer service fees, mortgage origination commissions, insurance
commissions, as well as other fees charged to customers such as safe deposit box rental and ATM fees. Customer
service fees increased from $1.4 million in 2003, to §1.7 million in 2006, and grew to $2.2 in 2007. The increase in
customer service fees for all years is primarily related to our deposit account growth though our expansion initiative
as well as our continuing efforts to increase the amount of deposit account charges based on our surveys of
competitors. As a result, non-sufficient funds (NSF) and returned check charges increased during 2007, Mortgage
origination commissions increased from $959,000 in 2005 to $1.3 million in 2006 and to $2.0 million in 2007. The
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increase in mortgage origination commissions for all years relates primarily to the additional mortgage activity
generated from our expansion initiative, which was responsible for 71% of the increase in 2007 compared to 2006.
In addition, we had continued loan demand in our market area,

Noninterest Expenses
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Noninterest expenses totaled $29.8 million in 2007, up from $22.6 million in 2006, and $16.3 million in
2005. As a percentage of total assets, our total noninterest expenses increased from 2.8% in 2005 to 3.0% in 2006,
and increased to 3.1% in 2007, Salaries and employee benefits increased $4.2 million or 31.3%, to $17.5 million in
2007, and incrcased $4.6 million or 52.6%, to $13.3 milliton in 2006 from 2005. This increase in salarics and
employee benefits was primarily due to the additional staff necessary to support our continued existing market
growth and our expansion initiative, as well as the addition of several management-level employees necessary to
provide the infrastructure to support our continued growth. Since December 31, 2006, we have added 21 full-time
equivalent employees. During 2006, 97 full-time equivalent employees were hired, of which 2007 was the first full
year that expericnced this staffing increase. In addition, certain of the agreements under our salary continuation plan
were amended in May and August of 2006, which caused an increase in nonintercst expenses of approximately
$153,000 from 2006 to 2007, and an increase of approximately $164,000 from 2005 to 2006.

Occupancy, furniture and equipment expenses totaled $3.7 million in 2007, $2.7 million in 2006, and $2.0
million in 2005. The 37.0% incrcasc from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due to our cxpansion initiative which increased
the number of branches and loan production offices from 4 locations to 13.

Other operating cxpenses increased from $5.6 million in 2005, to $6.5 million in 2006, and to $8.6 million
in 2007, These annual increases are primarily the result of increased marketing expenses, losses on sales of other
real estate, amortization, director fees, data processing, legal fees, business license fees, and supplies and postage.
Total marketing expenses increased $239,000, or 16.0% from 2006 to 2007, and increased $450,000, or 43.1% from
2005 to 2006. The additional marketing expenses are due to the increased advertising and promotional activities
necessitated by our growth in existing markets as well as our expansion initiative. We had additional losses on sales
of other real estate during 2007 of $232,000, as compared to 2006. Amortization expense increased by $188,000
primarily due to an additional non-compete agreement entered into in 2007 with a former employee. The 2007 non-
compele agreement has a contract period of six months. We expensed $105,525 of this agreement in 2007, Our
director and committee fees and other director compensation expenscs increased by $179,000, to $787,000,
compared to $608,000 in 2006 and $332,000 in 2005, This increase was due in part to the addition of community
directors for our new markets, and to expenses in 2007 that are attributable to stock option grants to our directors.
Data processing fees increased by $156,000 to $932,000, compared to $776,000 in 2006 and $653,000 in 2005.
Data processing increases were due to the addition of the thrift, as well as the other expansions. Legal fees
increased by approximately $151,000 to $597,000 in 2007, compared to $446,000 in 2006 and $238,000 in 2005.
The increase in legal expense for 2007 is primarily due the organization and opening of Appalachian Community
Bank, F.5.B., our new federal thrift subsidiary, assistance to our compensation committee duc to new compensation
disclosure requircments for our 2007 proxy statement, as well as general corporate matters associated with our
growing Company, Also, we had increases in business license fees, ATM costs, FDIC and State Exam assessments,
as well as supplies and postage expenses which were all necessary to support our new thrift charter, expanded
market growth and new branches.

Noninterest expenscs related to expansionary activities were approximately $5.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007, as compared to $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. These expenses consisted
of $3.6 in salaries and benefits, $542,000 in occupancy costs and $1.5 million in other expenses.

Balance Sheet Review
General

At December 31, 2007, we had total assets of $971.2 million, consisting principally of $797.7 million in net
loans (net of allowance of $9.8 million), $80.5 million in investments, $26.5 million in cash and cash equivalents,
and $33.0 million in net premises and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation of $5.9 million). Our liabilities at
December 31, 2007 wtaled $897.5 million, consisting principally of $807.6 million in deposits, $57.4 million in
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FHLB advances, $21.0 million of short-term borrewings and $6.2 million of subordinated long-term capital notes.
At December 31, 2007, our sharcholders’ equity was $73.7 million.

At December 31, 2006, we had total assets of $758.2 million, consisting principally of $623.4 million in net
loans {net of allowance of $7.7 million), $74.7 million in investments, $11.6 million in cash and cash equivalents,
and $23.4 million in net premiscs and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation of $5.4 million). Our liabilities at
December 31, 2006 totaled $691.5 million, consisting principally of $651.1 millien in deposits, $25.1 million in
FHLB advances, $4.7 million of short-term borrowings and $6.2 million of subordinated long-term capital notes. At
December 31, 2006, our shareholders” equity was $66.8 million.

Federal Funds Sold

Management maintains federal funds sold as a tool in managing daily cash needs. Federal funds sold at
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 were $12.8 million and $3.1 million, respectively. The increase in year-
end federal funds sold resulted from the timing of funding loan demand. Average federal funds sold for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were approximately $6.2 miltion or .77% of average earning assets, and
approximately $6.5 million, or 1.1% of average earning assets, respectively. Although we use federal funds as a source
of liquidity, we continue to try to minimize federal funds sold to maximize our use of earning assets.

Securities Portfolio

The primary objectives of our investment strategy are 10 maintain an appropriate level of liquidity, and to provide a
tool with which te control our interest rate position while, at the same time, producing adequate levels of interest income.

The following table presents the carrying amounts of the securities portfolio at December 31 in each of the last
three years.

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Securities Available-for-Sale:

Government sponsored agencics h) 33,159 % 43,396 § 37,357
State and municipal securities 14,031 13,148 14,806
Mortgage-backed securities 28,513 14,833 15,803
Equity securities 4,807 3,348 3,604

Total 3 80,510 § 74,725 % 71,570

Gross unrealized gains in the portfelio amounted to $847,000 at year-end 2007 and unrealized losses amounted to
$421,000. Gross unrealized gains in the portfolio amounied 1o $502,000 at year-end 2006 and unrealized losses amounted
to $837,000. Gross unrealized gains in the portiolio amounted to $574,000 at year-cnd 2003 and unrealized losses
amounted 10 $1,284,000,

At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 the percentage of the tolal carrying value of the securities portfolio to total
assets was 8.3%, 9.9%, and 12.1%, respectively.
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The maturities and weighted average vields of our investments in securitics (all available for salc) at December 31,
2007 are presented below. Taxable equivalent adjustments (using a 39% tax rate for 2007 and 34% for 2006 and 2005)
have been made in calculating yields on tax-exempt obligations.

Maturing
Within After One But After Five But After
One Year Within Five Years Within Ten Years Ten Years
Amount % Yield Amount % Yicld  Amount % Yield Amount % Yicld

(Dollars in thousands)

Securities Available-for-Sale:
Government sponsored

agencies 5 13,546 344% 3§ 15,166 478% § 4447 517% § —  0.00%
State and municipat — .00 514 7.63 3,533 827 9984 7.82
Mortgage-backed 23 6.05 584 449 3,008 394 24,808 425
Equity sccurities — 0.00 — 000 — 0.00 4807 5.53

Total Securities $ 13,569 3.44 $ 16.264 4.86 § 10988 581 3 39.689 5.29

There were no securitics held by us of which the aggregate value by issuer on December 31, 2007 exceeded 10%
of sharchelders’ equity at that date. Securities which are payable from and securcd by the same source of revenue or taxing
authority are considered to be securities of a single issuer. Securities of Government agencies and corperations are not
included.

Loan Portfolio

Loans make up the largest component of our earning assets. In 2007, average loans {excluding nonaccrual
loans of $3.2 million) represented 89.1%, while in 2006, average loans (excluding nonaccrual loans of $1.6 million)
represented 87.1% of average earning assets. Average loans increased from $338.0 million (excluding nonaccrual
loans of $1.3 million} with a yicld of 9.3% in 2006, to $716.7 million (excluding nonaccrual loans of $3.2 million)
with a yield of 9.5% in 2007. The ratio of total leans to total deposits was 100.0% in 2007 and 97.0 in 2006.

Our business model, which includes having strong connected local bankers in each of our geographic
markets, gives us a unique ability to monitor loan activity. We continue to see a slowing in the requests for
acquisition, development and construction loans. Consistent with much of the country, the residential real estate
market in North Georgia has slowed considerably, and it is estimated that there is between a 36 and 40 month supply
of housing on the market. While this is not conducive to the support of our prior growth levels, it is a temporary
economic cycle that many of our veteran staff has previously experienced.
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The following table shows the classification of loans by major category at December 31, 2007, and for each
of the preceding four years.

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Percent Pereent Percem Perc:nt Percent
Amount_ _of Toetal Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount «f Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial,
financial and

agricultural $ 48,749 6.0% $ 40,491 64% § 33778 74% $ 31,920 8.5% § 34613 10.4 %
Real esiate -

construction ! 389,695 483 320,406 50.7 201,538 a4.5 145,588 186 104,619 315
Real estate - other 332,856 41.2 241,560 18.2 193,704 423 173,955 46,1 166,598 50.1
Consumer 30,598 38 25,386 4.0 21,051 4.6 20,957 5.6 20,535 6.2
Other loans 5,624 0.7 3,934 0.7 5,347 1.2 4,932 1.2 5,942 1.8

807.522 100.0% 631,786 100.0% 457,418 100.0% 377,352 100.0% 332,307 100.0%
Allowance for loan

losses (9.808) (7.670) (6,059) {4,349) (3.610)
Net loans $ 797,714 $ 624,116 $ 451359 $ 373,003 $ 128,697

{1} The "real estate - construction” category includes residential construction and development loans and commereial construction loans.
(2) The "real estate - other” category includes one-to-four family residential, home equity, multi-family {five or more}
residential, commercial real estate and undeveloped agricultural real ¢state loans,

The following table shows the maturity distribution of selected loan classifications at December 31, 2007,
and an analysis of these loan maturitics.
Rate Structure for Loans

Maturity Maturing Over One Year
Over One
One Year Over Predetermined Floating or
Year or Through Five Interest Adjustable
Less Five Years Years Total Rate Rate

{In thousands)

Commercial, financial

and agricultural $ 31,276 § 14,806 § 2667 § 48749 § 12,098 % 5,375
Real estate - construction 351,437 37,229 1,029 389,695 27,848 10,410
Real estate - other 217,050 99,515 16,291 332,856 80,112 35,694

Total $ 599,763 § 151,550 § 19987 § 771,300 § 120,058 § 51,479
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Allowance for Loan Losses

We have established an allowance for loan losses through a provision for loan losses charged as an expensc
on our income statement. The allowance for loan losses represents an amount which we beligve will be adequate to
absorb probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. QOur judgment as to the adequacy of the
allowance for loan losses is based on estimated probable losses, which we believe to be reasonable, but which may
of may not prove to be accurate. In assessing adequacy, management relies predominantly on its ongoing review of
the loan portfolio, which is undertaken both to determine whether there are probable losses that must be charged off
and to assess the risk characteristics of the aggregate portfolio. This review takes into consideration the judgments of
the responsible lending officers and senior management, and also those of bank regulatory agencics that review the
loan portfolio as part of the regular bank examination process. In evaluating the allowance, management also
considers our loan loss experience, the amount of past due and nonperforming loans, current and anticipated
economic conditions, lender requirements and other appropriate information. Certain nonperforming loans are
individually assessed for impairment under Statement of Accounting Financial Accounting Standards (*SFAS™) No.
114 and assigned specific allocations. Other identified high-risk loans or credit relationships based on internal risk
ratings are also individually assessed and assigned specific allocations.

Periodically, we adjust the amount of the allowance based on changing circumstances, including changes in
general economic conditions, changes in the interest-rate environment, changes in loan concentrations in various
areas of our banking activities, changes in identified troubled credits, and economic changes in our market area. We
charge recognized losses to the allowance and add subsequent recoveries back to the allowance for loan losses.
There can be no assurance that charge-offs of loans in future periods will not exceed the allowance for loan losses as
estimated at any point in time or that provisions for loan losses will not be significant to a particular accounting
period.

The allocation of the allowance 1o the respective loan segments is an approximation and not nccessarily
indicative of future losses or future allocations. The entire allowance is available to absorb losses occurring in the
overall fean portfolio. In addition, the allowance is subject to examination and adequacy testing by regulatory
agencics, which may consider such factors as the methodology used to determine adequacy and the size of the
allowance relative to that of peer institutions, and other adequacy tests. Such regulatory agencies could require us to
adjust the allowance based on information available to them at the time of their examination.

At December 31, 2007, our allewance for loan losses was $9.8 million, or 1.21% of total outstanding loans,
compared to an allowance for loan losses of $7.7 million, or 1.21% of total outstanding loans, at December 31,
2006, and $6.1 million, or 1.32% of outstanding lcans, at December 31, 2005. Our allowance for loan losses at
December 31, 2005, included a specific allocation for an identified ioan relationship, in the amount of $850,000. In
the first quarter of 2006 we charged off approximately $751,000 of this specific reserve.
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The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our loans, net of unearned income, and the
allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2003 to 2007,

Allowance for loan losses, at beginning
of period
Loans charged off:
Commercial, financial, and agricultural
Real estate - construction
Real estate - other
Consumer
Total loans charged off

Recoveries on loans previously charged ofT:
Commercial, financial, and agricultural
Real estate - construction
Real estate - other
Consumer

Total recoverics on loans previously
charged off

Net loans charged off
Provision for loan losses

Allowance for loan losses, at end of period

Loans, net of uncarmmed income,
at end of period

Average loans, net of uncarned income,
outstanding for the period

Ratios:
Allowance at end of period to loans, net of
unearned income

Years ended December 31,

Allowance at end of period to average loans,

net of uncarned income

Net charge-offs to average loans, net of
unearned income

Net charge-offs to allowance
at end of period

Recoveries 1o prior year charge-offs

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except ratios)

$ 7670 F 6059 $ 4349 § 3610 § 3238

149 859 359 30 277

1.254 387 10 249 28

833 317 41 158 638

615 263 150 127 265

2,851 1,826 560 555 1,208

35 75 24 35 25

25 I — — 3

16 1 — 2 50

187 107 35 22 37

263 184 59 59 115

2,588 1,642 501 496 1,093

4,726 3,253 2,211 1,235 1,465

$ 9808 § 7670 $§ 6059 3 4349 § 3610

$ 807,522 $ 631,786 $ 457418 § 377,352 § 332,307

$ 719,926 $ 539,577 § 413,561 § 360,261 3§ 316,605
1.21% 1.21 % 1.32 % 1.15 % 1.09 o

1.36 1.42 1.47 1.21 1.14

0.36 0.30 0.12 0.14 0.35

26.39 21.41 8.27 11.40 30.28

14.40 32.86 10.63 4.88 14.09
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The following table scts forth the breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and the
percentage of loans in each category to total loans for the years ended December 31, 2003 to 2007.

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses
At December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{Dollars in thousands)

Domestic Loans "

Commercial, financial

and agriculural  § 2,392 6% § 2,266 6% § 3,209 7% % 548 8% § 1,257 10%
Real estate -

construction 31836 48 1,399 51 271 45 421 39 184 32
Real estate -

other 1,152 41 3,265 38 1,962 42 2,138 46 1,277 50
Consumer 1,981 4 199 4 202 5 425 6 267 6
Other 447 1 541 1 415 1 817 i 625 2
Total $ 9808 100% § 7.670 100% § 6,059 100% 5 4,349 100% §$ 3.610 100 %

{1) There are no foreign loans.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include nonperforming loans and foreclosed assets, Nonperforming loans include
loans classified as nonaccrual or restructured loans and loans past duc 90 days or more. Our general practice is to
place a loan on nonaccrual status when it is contractually past duc 90 days or more as to payment of principal or
interest, unless the collateral value is significantly greater than both the principal due and the accrued interest and
collection of principal and interest is probable. At the time a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, interest previously
accrued but not collected is reversed and charged against current carnings. Recognition of any interest after a loan
has been placed on nonaccrual status is accounted for on a cash basis. Nonperforming loans were 0.57% of total
loans at December 31, 2007 and 0.55% of total loans at December 31, 2006, compared to 0.24% of total loans at
December 31, 2005,

For each of the five years in the period ended December 31, 2007, the difference between gross interest
income that would have been recorded in such period, if the non-accruing loans had been current in accordance with
their original terms, and the amount of interest income on those loans, that was included in such period’s net
income, was immaterial.
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The following table shows our nenperforming assets as well as the ratio of the allowance for loan losses 1o
total nonperforming assets, the total nonperforming loans to total loans, and the total nonperforming assets to total
assets, for the years ended December 31, 2003 to 2007,

At December 31,
2007 2006 2003 2004 2003
{In thousands, except ratios)

Non-aceruing loans b 4250 § 26118 1,020 § 1,524 § 1,127
Loans past due 90 days or more 364 871 71 34 521
Restructured loans — — — — —

Total nonperforming loans 4614 3,482 1,091 1,558 1,648
Non-accruing securitics — — — — —
Other real estate 1,504 1,218 147 516 737
Other repossessed property 70 — — — —

Total nonperforming assets $ 6,188 § 4,700 $ 1,238 § 2074 § 2,385

Ratios:
Allowance to total

nonperforming assets 158.50%  163.19%  489.42%  209.69%  151.36%
Total nonperforming loans to total loans

(net of unearned interest) 0.57% 0.55% 0.24% 0.41% 0.50%
Total nonperforiming assets to total assets 0.64% 0.62% 0.21% 0.44% 0.58%

The $4.2 million in non-accruing loans consist of 25 loans broken down as follows: 18 loans totaling $3.1
million in real estate — construction loans, two loans totaling $739,000 million in real estate -- mortgage loans, one
loan totaling $354,000 in the commercial/financial/agricultural industry and four loans totaling $14,000 in consumer
loans. Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing consists of $158,000 in real estate -- construction loans,
$100,000 in real estate — mortgage loans, $58,000 in commercial/financial/agricultural loans and $48,000 in
consumer loans. We have in reserve for the nonaccrual loans approximately $2.0 million at December 31, 2007.
The majority of the nonperforming assets are secured by real estate with adequate loan to value ratios; therefore we
do not expect significant losses related to these assets.

Deposits and Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Deposits are the primary source of funds to support our earning assets. Average deposits increased 34.5%,
from $546.9 million in 2006 to $735.8 million in 2007. Average deposits increased 28.1%, from $426.8 million in 2005
to $546.9 million in 2006. At December 31, 2007, total deposits were $807.6 million, of which $751.0 million or
93.0%, was interest bearing. At December 31, 2006, total deposits were $651.1 million, of which $597.7 million or
91.8%, was interest bearing. Alternative funding sources such as FHLB Advances, national CDs and brokered deposits
were used to supplement funding sources. These alternative funding sources increased $93.4 million or 46.9% in 2007.
National CDs and brokered deposits were $236.7 million at December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2006, national CDs
and brokered deposits were $173.0 million. The increase in our national CDs and brokered deposits was necessary to
fund our growth in loans during the year ecnded December 31, 2007 at reasonable spreads. Altemnative funding sources
are a secondary source of funds utilized to fund loan growth. The cost of these alternative funding sources can be less
expensive than our local deposits as was the case in 2007
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The average amounts of, and the average rate paid on, each of the following categorics of deposits, for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, are as follows:

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Ratc
{Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest-bearing

demand deposits 3 55462 0.00% $ 52298  0.00% §% 43878 0.00%
Interest-bearing
demand deposits 62,943  2.21 74,125 2.7 75,670 1.40
Savings 185,799 430 105,022 3.37 84,653 206
Time deposits 431,565 5.33 315,429 4.82 222,561  3.29
Total interest-bearing deposits § 680,307 4.76 $ 494576 4.1 $ 382,884 2.65
Total average deposits $ 735769 440 § 546874 372 3§ 426,762 237

Our core deposits, which exclude brokered and national certificates of deposits, were $572.8 million at
December 31, 2007, an increase of 19.8% compared to $478.1 million at December 31, 2006. Core deposits as a
percentage of total deposits were approximately 70.9% and 73.4% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In
2005, we began using the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) in order to obtain FDIC insurance
on some of our larger customers. Although CDARS are required to be categorized as brokered deposits, these deposits
represent deposits greater than $100,000 originated in our local markets that are placed with other institutions that are
members in the CDARS network. By placing these deposits in these other institutions, the deposits of our customers
are fully insured by the FDIC. In return for the deposits that we place with network institutions, we receive from
network institutions, deposits that are approximately equal in amount of what was originated from our customers. In
addition, the CDARS are priced at local rates, which generally have lower rates than rates being offered for brokered
deposits. At December 31, 2007, CDARS represented $10.4 million of our deposits, or 1.3% and at December 31,
2006, CDARS represented $22.7 million of our deposits, or 3.5%. We continue 1o focus on in¢reasing our core deposit
base. The two categories of lowest cost deposits comprised the following percentages of average total deposits during
2007: average noninterest-bearing demand deposits, 7.5%: and average savings deposits, 25.3%. Of average time
deposits, approximately 32.9% were large denomination certificates of deposit.

Noninterest-bearing deposits increased $3.1 million, or 5.9%, from year-end 2006 to $56.6 million at
December 31, 2007, and interest-bearing deposits increased $153.3 million, or 25.7%. during the same period to $751.0
million. The increase in noninterest-bearing deposits has been the result of our focus on providing excellent customer
service to our small business customers, our expansion into new markets, as well as by the development of relationships
with new businesses that have moved into our communities. As we continue migration from temporary branch locations
to permanent facilities, we should continue to attract noninterest bearing deposits.
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The following table sets forth the maturities of our time deposits of $100,000 or more by catzgory at December 31,
2007.

(In thousands)

Three months or less 5 32,413
Over three through six months 140,134
Over six through twelve months 78,276
Over twelve months 13,510
Total $ 264,333
Borrowings

Short-Term Borrowings

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase amounted to $6.5 million at December 31, 2007, compared
to $4.7 million at December 31, 2006, and $3.7 million at December 31, 2005, The weighted average rates were
1.24%, 1.62%, and 1.24% for 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The total amount of securities sold under
agreements to repurchase is associated with the cash flow needs of our corporate customers who participate in
repurchase agreements, Included in our total FHLB line availability, as detailed under the FHLB Advances section
below, is the ability to obtain short-term daily rate credit advances. However there were no such short-term FHLB
advances at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and a balance of $14.0 million at December 31, 2005. These advance
rates float daily based on the overnight funds market. The line of credit has a one year term and matures in May of
each year. We have available $53.0 million in lines of credit to purchase federal funds, on an unsecured basis, from
commercial banks, of which $43.0 was available at December 31, 2007. We had federal funds purchased that
amounted to $10.0 million at year-end 2007, and $-0- at year-end 2006, compared to $7.2 million at year-end 2005.
We also have a $10 million line of credit with a third party financial institution that can be utilized to provide
additional capital for the bank if deemed necessary. As of December 31, 2007, $5,487,894 of this line was
available.

Short-term borrowings at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following:

As of December 31,
2007 2006 2003
(In thousands)
Federal funds purchased 3 10,000 $ — % 7,217
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 6,536 4738 3,675
FHLB line of credit — — 14,000
Other short-term line of credit 4512 —— —
3 21,048 §$ 4,738 § 24 892
FHLB Advances

Our total borrowed funds consist primarily of long-term debt with maturities from one to ten years. At
December 31, 2007 we were approved to borrow up to approximately $130.8 million under various shert-term and
long-term programs offered by the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. These borrowings are secured under a
blanket iien agreement on certain qualifying mortgage instruments in the loan and securities portfolios. At
December 31, 2007, the outstanding balance of our credit linc was $57.4 million, all of which was accounted for as
long-term debt.

Subordinated Long-term Capiral Notes

On August 28, 2003, Appalachian Capital Trust I (“the Trust”), a Delaware statutory trust established by
us, received $6.0 million principal amount of the Trust’s floating rate cumulative trust preferred securities in a trust
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preferred private placement. The proceeds of that transaction were used by the Trust to purchase an equal amount of
our floating rate-subordinated debentures. We have fully and unconditionally guaranteed all obligations of the Trust
on a subordinated basis with respect to the trust preferred securities. We account for the trust preferred securities as
long-term debt liability in the amount of $6.2 million. Interest only is payable quarterly at a variable per annum rate
of interest, resct quarterly, equal to LIBOR plus 3.00 % percent uniil the debt becomes due on August 8, 2033, The
interest rate on the Trust Preferred liability at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was 7.91% and 8.37% respectively. The
debt is callable by Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. on August 28, 2008 and every quarter thereafier. Subject o certain
limitations, the trust preferred securities qualify as Tier 1 capital and are presented in the consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K as “subordinated long-term capital notes™.

The sole assets of the Trust are the subordinated debentures issued by us. Both the trust preferred securities
and the subordinated debentures have approximately 30-year lives. However, both we and the Trust have options to
call our respective securities after five years, subject to regulatory capital requirements.

Capital Resources

Total sharcholders® equity was $73.7 million at December 31, 2007, an incrcase of $6.9 million from $66.8
million at December 31, 2006. This increase resulted primarily from nct carnings of $5.6 million during 2007. We
issued 32,797 sharcs of stock to our 401(k) Plan during 2007 for proceeds of $618,000. We had a $502,000
decrease in the accumulated other comprehensive loss on our available-for-salce securities, We purchased 67,010 of
our outstanding sharcs through treasury prior to retirement, as well as through our stock buy-back program in the
amount of $1.2 million, In addition, the effects of the stock-based compensation expense as well as the exercise of
114,715 options during 2007 increased equity by $1.4 million, including the tax benefit.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act establishes risk-based capital guidelines that
take into consideration risk factors, as defined by regulators, associated with various categories of assets, both on
and off the balance sheet. Under the guidelines, capital strength is measured in two tiers, which are used in
conjunction with risk-adjusted assets to determine the risk-based capital ratios. Qur Tier | capital, which consists of
common cquity, paid-in capital, retained earnings and qualifying trust preferred securities (less intangible assets and
treasury stock), amounted to $77.2 million at December 31, 2007. Tier 2 capital components include supplemental
capital components such as qualifying allowance for loan losses and trust preferred securities not qualified for Tier |
capital, Tier | capital, plus the Tier 2 capital components, are referred to as Total Capital and was $87.0 millien at
year-end 2007. The percentage ratics as calculated under regulatory guidelines were 9.36% and 10.55% for Tier |
and Total Capital. respectively, at year-end 2007. Our Tier | Capital and Total Capital exceeded the minimum ratios
of 4.0% and 8.0%, respectively.

Another important indicator of capital adequacy in the banking industry is the leverage ratio. The leverage

ratio is defined as the ratio which sharcholders” equity, minus intangibles, bears o total assets minus intangibles. At
December 31, 2007, our leverage ratio was 8.30%, exceeding the regulatory minimum requirement of 4.0%.
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The 1able following illustrates our regulatory capital ratios under federal guidelines at December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005:

Statutory Years ended Decemnber 31,
Minimum 2007 2006 2005
{In thousands, except ratios)
Tier 1 Capital % 77,180 § 70,730 § 64,301
Tier 2 Capital 9,808 7,670 6,057
Total Qualifying Capital b 86,988 3§ 78400 $ 70,358

Risk Adjusted Total Assets (including

off-balance sheet exposures) S 824,834 § 661431 § 484,577
Tier | Risk-Based Capital Ratio 400 % 936% 10.69 % 13.27 %
Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio 8.00 10.55 11.85 14.52
Leverage Ratio 4.00 8.30 9.55 11.35

Return on Equity and Assets

The following table summarizes certain of our financial ratios for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005.

2007 2006 2005
Return on average assets 0.65% 0.91% 0.99%
Return on average cquity 7.93 9.57 12.18
Dividend payout ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00
Average equity to average assets ratio 8.14 9.49 8.11

The decline in return on average equity and assets from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due our expansion
initiative during the tast half of 2006 and in 2007, lower interest margins experienced in 2007, as well as our loan
charge-offs in 2007. The decline in return on average equity from 2003 to 2006 is primarily due to the investment
that we made in our expansionary initiative during the last half of 2006, which has generated significant growth in
assets and deposits, but has operated at a net loss during 2006 and 2007. Additionally, our average shareholders’
equity was much higher in 2006. We sold .3 million shares of common stock during the fourth quarter of 2005 for
net proceeds of approximately $18.4 million.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Management

Interest rate sensitivity is a function of the repricing characteristics of our portfolios of assets and liabilities.
These repricing characteristics are the time frames within which the interest-bearing assets and liabilities are subject
to changes in interest rates, cither at replacement or maturity during the life of the instruments. Sensitivity is
measured as the difference between the volume of assets and liabilities in our current portfolio that is subject 10
repricing in future time periods. The differences are known as interest rate scnsitivity gaps and are usually calculated
scparately for segments of time, ranging from zero to 30 days, 31 to 90 days, 91 days to one year, one to five years,
over five years and on a cumulative basis.

The following table indicates that, in a rising interest rate environment, our earnings may be adversely
affected in the 0-365 day periods where liabilitics will reprice faster than assets, if rates move simultaneously. For
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purposes of this table, all demand and savings deposits are included in the 0 — 30 day period, but because these
deposits are not as sensitive to rate change, we do not anticipate these deposits to mature in this time period. We
anticipate that these deposits will mature over all time periods. As seen in the following table, for the first 30 days
of repricing opportunity, there ts an excess of earning liabilities over interest-bearing assets of approximately $406.9
million. For the first 365 days, interest-bearing liabilities exceed earning asscts by approximately $168&. Imillion.
During this one-ycar time frame, 94.7% of all interest-bearing liabilities will reprice compared 1o 75.5% of all
interest-earning assets, Changes in the mix of earning assets or supporting liabilities can either increase or decrease
the net interest margin without affecting interest rate sensitivity. In addition, the interest rate spread between an asset
and its supporting liability can vary significantly while the timing of repricing for both the asset and the liability
remain the same, thus impacting net intcrest income. It should be noted, therefore, that a matched interest-sensitive
position by itself would not ensure maximum net interest income.

The following table sets forth information regarding our rate sensitivity as of December 31, 2007 for each
of the intervals indicated.

0-30 31-90 91-363 1-5 Over 5
Days Days Days Years Years Total
(In thousands, except ratios)

Interest-earning assets '

Loans ¥ 26945 % 385383 % 236,602 § 147,129 % 7213 § 803,272
Sccurities @ 2,013 7,287 5,690 17,314 47,780 80,084
Interest-bearing deposits in
other banks 310 — — — — 310
Federal funds sold 12,797 — — — — 12,797
42,065 392,670 242,292 104,443 54,993 896,463
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits ¥ 107,482 — — — — 107,482
Savings deposits 214,196 — — — — 214,196
Time deposits 01,144 77,075 285,624 32,076 — 485,919
Other short-term
borrowings 21,048 —_ —_ — — 21,048
Long-term debt 15,050 10,000 17,300 15,000 — 57,350
Subordinated long-term
capital notes — 6,186 — — — 6,186
448,920 93,261 302,924 47.076 — 892,181
Intcrest sensitivity gap $ (406,855) § 299409 § (60,632) § 117367 §$ 54993 § 4,282
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap § (406,855) § (107,446) § (168,078) $§ (50.711) § 4,282
Ratio of interest-carning assets
to interest-bearing liabilitics 0.09 421 0.80 3.49 0.00
Cumulative ratio 0.09 0.80 0.80 0.94 1.00

Ratio of cumulative gap to total
intcrest-earning assets (0.45) (0.12) {0.19) (0.06) 0.00

(1) Excludes nonaccrual loans. Excludes unrealized gains/losses on sceurities.

(2) Securitics ar¢ at book value.

(3) Excludes matured certificates which have not been redeemed by the customer and on which no interest is accruing.
(4) Demand and savings depoesits typically reprice simultancously with market changes.

4}




Management continually evaluates the condition of the economy, the pattern of market interest rates and
other economic data to determine the types of investments that should be made and at what maturities. Using this
analysis, management from time to lime assumes calculated interest rate sensitivity gap positions to maximize net
interest income based upon anticipated movements in the general level of interest rates.

We also usc simulation analysis to monitor and manage our interest raie sensitivity. Simulation analysis is
the primary methed of cstimating earnings at risk and capital at risk under varying interest rate conditions.
Simulation analysis is used to test the sensitivity of our net interest income and shareholders’ equity to both the level
of interest rates and the slope of the yield curve. Simulation analysis accounts for the expected timing and magnitude
of assets and liability cash flows, as well as the expected timing and magnitude of deposits that do not reprice on a
contractual basis. In addition, simulation analysis includes adjustments for the lag between movements in market
interest rates on loans and interest-bearing deposits. These adjustments are made to reflect more aceurately possible
future cash flows, repricing behavior and ultimately net interest income.

The estimated impact on our net interest income before provision for loan loss sensitivity over a onc-ycar
time horizon is shown betow. Such analysis assumes a sustained parallet shift in interest rates and our estimate of
how interest-bearing transaction accounts will reprice in cach scenario. Actual results will differ from simulated
results due to timing, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes and changes in market conditions and
management’s strategies, among other factors.

Percentage Increase
{Decrease) in Interest
income/Expense Given

Interest Rate Shifts

Down 200 Up 200
Basis Points Basis Points
For the Twelve Months After December 31, 2007
Projected change in:
Interest income (14.83) % 1326 %
Interest expensc (29.48) 28.73
Net interest income 1.09 (3.68)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to a
change in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices. Our primary market risk is interest rate risk,

The primary objective of asset/liability management is to manage interest rate risk and achieve reasonable
stability in net interest income throughout interest rate cycles, This is achieved by maintaining the proper balance of
rate sensitive earning assets and rate sensitive liabilities. The relationship of rate sensitive carning assets to rate
sensitive liabilitics is the principal factor in projecting the effect that fluctuating interest rates will have on future net
interest income. Rate sensitive earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitics are those that can be repriced to current
market rates within a rclatively short time period. Management monitors the rate sensitivity of carning asscts and
interest-bearing liabilitics over the entire life of these instruments, but places particular emphasis on the first year
and through three years.

We have not expericnced a high level of volatility in net interest income primarily becausc of our
assct/liability management. Management continues to monitor the proper matching of asset/liability repricing to
keep our volatility at a low level.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we offer a variety of financial products to our customers to aid them in
mecting their requirements for liquidity, credit enhancement and interest rate protection. Generally accepted
accounting principles recognize these transactions as contingent liabilitics and, accordingly, they are not reflected in
the consolidated financial statements. Commitments to extend credit, credit card arrangements, commercial letters of
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credit and standby letters of credit all include exposure to some credit loss in the event of nonperformance of the
customer. We usc the same credit policies and underwriting procedures for making off-balance sheet credit
commitmenis and financial guarantces as it does for on-balance sheet extensions of credit. Because these
instruments have fixed maturity dates, and because many of them expire without being drawn upon, they do not
generally present any significant liquidity risk to us. Management conducts regular reviews of these instruments on
an individual customer basis, and the results are considered in assessing the adequacy of our allowance for loan
losses. Management does not anticipate any material losses as a result of these commitments. The following is a
discussion of these commitments:

Standby Letters of Credit. These agreements are used by our customers as a means of improving their
credit standings in their dealings with others. Under these agrecments, we agree to honor certain financial
commitments in the event that its customers are unable to do so. The amount of credit risk involved in issuing letters
of credit in the event of nonperformance by the other party is the contract amount, As of December 31, 2007 and
2006, we had issued standby letters of credit of approximately $5.0 million and $10.7 million, respectively. When
significant, we record a liability for the estimated fair value of standby letters of credit based on the fees charged.

Loan Commitments. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the bank had commitments outstanding to extend
credit totaling approximately $97.0 million and $107.7 miliion, respectively.

Contractual Obligations

We have various contractual obligations that we must fund as part of our normal operations. The following
table shows aggregate information about our contractua! obligations, and the periods in which payments are due.
The amounts and time periods are measured from December 31, 2007.

Payments due by period (in thousands)

Less than More than
Tolal 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Long-term debt 5 63,536 % 10,350 § 5,000 % 15,000 % 33,186
Operating lcase obligations 1,427 179 140 132 976
Time deposits 485,919 453,829 26,252 5,838 —
Total $ 550,882 § 464,358 % 31392 § 20,970 § 34,162

Impact of Inflation

The effect of relative purchasing power over time due to inflation has not been taken into account in our
consolidated financial statements. Rather, our financial statements have been prepared on an historical cost basis in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Unlike most industrial companies, our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary in nature. Therefore, the
effect of changes in interest rates will have a more significant impact on our performance than will the effect of
changing prices and inflation in general. In addition, interest rates may gencrally increase as the rate of inflation
increases, although not necessarily in the same magnitude. As discussed previously, we seek to manage the
relationships between interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide rate fluctuations,
including those resulting from inflation.

Recent Developments

In Scptember 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, cstablishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAPY), and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement does not require any new fair value
measurements, but applies under other accounting pronouncements, the Board having previously concluded in those
accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. The provisions of this statement
are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning afier November 15, 2007, and interim periods
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within those fiscal years. The Company does not expect the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its financial position, results
of operations or cash flows to be material.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities.” SFAS No. 1359 permits entities to make an irrevocable election, at specifted election dates, to
measure eligible financial instruments and certain other items at fair valuc. This statement also establishes presentation
and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different measurement
atiributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. The provisions of this statement arc cffective as of the beginning of
the first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting
SFAS No. 159, but has yet to complete its assessment.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB I[nterpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, an [nterpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax retumn.
FIN 48 provides a two-step process in the evaluation of a tax position. The first step is recognition. A company
determines whether it is more-likely-than-not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including a
resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based upon the technical merits of the position. The second
step is measurement. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured at the
largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate scttlement, FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 13, 2006. The Company’s adoption of FIN 48 did not have a
material impact to its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-4 (EITF 06-4}), “Accounting for
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life [nsurance
Arrangements.” EITF 06-4 requires an employer to recognize a liability for future benefits based on the substantive
agreement with the employee. EITF 06-4 requires a company to use the guidance prescribed in FASB Statement
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions™ and Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 12, “Omnibus Opinion,” when entering into an endorsement split-dollar life insurance agreement
and recognizing the liability. EITF 06-4 is eftective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2007. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting EITF 06-4 on its financial position, results of operations and
cash flows, but has yet to complete its assessment.

In September 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-5 (EITF 00-3), *Accounting for
Purchases of Life Insurance — Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB
Technical Bulletin No. 85-4." EITF 06-5 requires that a determination of the amount that could be realized under an
insurance contract should (1} consider any additional amounts beyond cash surrender value included in the
contractual terms of the policy and (2) be based on an assumed surrender at the individual policy or certificate level,
untess all policics or certificates are required to be surrendered as a group. EITF 06-5 is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company’s adoption of EITF Issue No. 06-5 did not have a material impact
on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information in response to this [tlem 7A is incorporated by reference from the following sections of liem 7
of this report: “Interest Rate Sensitivity Management” and “Markel Risk.”

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data required by Regulation S-X and by liem 302
of Regulation S-K are set forth in the pages below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Ellijay, Georgia

We have audited the consolidated statements of financial condition of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders” equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management, Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statcments are free of material misstatement. An audit includcs examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement prescntation. We belicve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2007 and 2006 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for cach of the three ycars in the period ended December 31,
2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We were not engaged to examine management’s assertion about the effectiveness of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.
and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 included under Item 9A

“Controls and Procedures” in Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiarics’ Annual Report on Form 10-K and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

/s/ Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Atlanta, Georgia
March 26, 2008
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31, 2007 and 2006
(In thousands)

2007 2006
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 13,392 S 7,940
Intercst-bearing deposits with other banks 310 541
Fedcral funds sold 12,797 3,107
Cash and Cash Equivalents 26,499 11,588
Securities available-for-sale 80,510 74,725
Loans, held for sale 6,503 733
Loans, net of unearned income 807,522 631,053
Allowance for loan losses {9,808) (7,670}
Net Loans 797,714 623,383
Premises and equipment, nct 32,966 23412
Accrued interest 9,797 8,157
Cash surrender value on life insurance 8,778 8,438
Intangibles, net 2,179 2,197
Other assets 6,254 5,581
Total Assets $ 971,200 $§ 758,214
Liabilities and Shareholders® Equity
Liabilities
Noninterest-bearing deposits 5 56,559 % 53,422
[nterest-bearing deposits 751,038 597,712
Taotal Deposits 807,597 651,134
Short-term borrowings 21,048 4,738
Accrued interest 2,059 1,454
FHLB Advances 57,350 25,050
Subordinated long-term capital notes 6,186 6,186
Other Liabilitics 3,297 2,889
Total Liabilities 897,537 691,451
Commitments and Contingencies
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, 20,000,000 shares authorized, none issued — —
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized,
5,285,026 and 5,280,497 shares issued a1t December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively 53 53
Paid-in capital 43,998 43,870
Retained earnings 29,331 23,761
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 281 (221)
Less cost of treasury stock, -0- and 75,973 shares at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. — (700)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 73,663 66,763
Total Liabilities and Shareholders® Equity $ 971,200 $ 758,214

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(In thousands, except shares and per share data)

Interest Income

Interest and fees on loans
Interest on securities:

Taxable securities

Nontaxable securitics
Interest on deposits with other banks
Interest on federal funds sold

Total Interest Income

Interest Expense
Interest on deposits
Interest on short-term borrowings
Interest FHLB advances
Interest on subordinated long-term capital notes
Total Interest Expense

Net Interest Income
Provision for loan losses

Net Interest Income After Provision For Loan Losses

Noninterest Income
Customer service fees
Mortgage origination commissions
Net gains on sales of securities
Other operating income
Total Noninterest Income

Noninterest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Qccupancy, furniture and equipment expense
Other operating expenscs
Total Noninterest Expenses

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net Income

Earnings Per Common Share
Basic
Diluted

Cash Dividends Declared Per Common Share
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

Basic
Diluted

2007 2006 2005
$ 68,213 3 49,843 % 32,014
2,859 2,301 1,843
639 668 655
78 30 20
338 351 218
72,127 53,193 34,750
32,367 20,351 10,132
283 472 174
1,629 1,180 1,170
521 491 404
34,800 22,494 11,880
37,327 30,699 22,870
4,726 3,253 2,211
32,601 27,446 20,659
2,235 1,650 1,434
1,988 1,348 959
7 — —
1,288 973 910
5,518 3,971 3,303
17,510 13,341 8,741
3,678 2,685 2,014
8,598 6,535 5,583
29,786 22,561 16,338
8,333 5,856 7,624
2,763 2,852 2,502
3 5570 § 6,004 § 5,122
$ 106§ 3 1.24
1.06 1.21
0.00 0.00 0.00
5,265,555 5,170,687 4,123,403
5,276,200 5,273,711 4,247,334

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Balance at December 31, 2004

Net income 2005
Unrealized losses on availablc-for-

sale securities, net of tax of ${436)

Comprehensive income

Proceeds from sale of common
stock to 401(k) plan

Effect of exercise and issuance of
stock options

Stock-based compensation cost

Proceeds from sale of common
stock through stock offering

Balance at December 31, 2005

Nect income 2006

Unrealized gains on available-for-
sale securities, net of tax of $128

Comprehensive income

Proceeds from sale of common
stock to 401(k) plan

Effect of exercise and issuance of
stock options

Stock-based compensation cost

Expense incurred from sale
of common stock through
stock offering

Balance at December 31, 2006

Net income 2007

Unrealized gains on available-for-
sale securitics, net of tax of $2352

Comprehensive income

Procecds from sale of common
stock to 401(k) plan

Effect of exercise and issuance of
stock options

Stock-bascd compensation cost

Purchase of treasury stock

Retirement of treasury stock

Purchase of stock cutstanding

Balance at December 31, 2007

(In thousands)

Accumulated

Other
Compre-
hensive
Common Paid-in Retained Income Treasury
Stock Capital Earnings {Loss) Stock Total
g 38 23732 5§ 12635 § 378§ (700) § 36,083
— — 5,122 — — 5,122
—_ — — (846) e (846)
— —_ — — — 4,276
— 494 — — — 494
1 582 — — — 583
—_ 19 — — — 19
i3 18,357 —_ — — 18,370
52 43,184 17,757 (468) (700) 59,825
— _— 6,004 —_— — 6,004
— —— — 247 — 247
6,251
— 50 - — — 50
| 444 — — —_— 445
— 204 — e — 204
— (12) — — — (12)
53 43,870 23,761 (221) (700) 66,763
— — 5,570 — — 5,570
— — — 502 — 502
— — — — — 6,072
— 618 — — — 618
| 1,066 — — — 1,067
— 327 — — — 327
(672) (672)
(i) {1.371) — — 1,372 —
— (512) — — — {(512)
$ 53 § 43998 § 29331 § 281§ — § 73,663

Sce notes 1o consolidated financial statements
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

(In thousands)

Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization, and accretion, net
Provision for loan losses
Deferred tax benefit
Realized security gains, nct
Loss on disposal of premises and equipment
Loss on disposition of other real estate

Increase in cash surrender value on life insurance

Increase in accrued interest receivable
Increase in accrued interest payable
Stock-based compensation cost

Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options

Net increase in loans held for sale
Other, net
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale
Procceds from maturity, calls and paydown of
securities available-for-sale
Purchase of securities available-for-sale
Net increase in loans
Capital expenditures, net
Proceeds from disposal of premises and equipment
Proceeds from disposition of other real estate
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

Financing Activities
Net increase in demand deposits, NOW accounts,
and savings accounts

Net increase in certificates of deposit

Net increase {decrease) in short-term borrowings

Issuance of FHLB advances

Repayment of FHLB advances

Issuance of common stock

Purchase of treasury stock

Purchase of stock

Excess tax benefits from cxercise of stock optiens
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

2007 2006 2005
5,570 °$ 6,004 § 5,122
558 968 926
4,726 3,253 2,211
(784) (1,363) (71)
(7) — —
39 15 59
219 32 80
(340) (295) (309)
(1,640) (3,406) (1,349)
605 726 188
327 204 19
(617) (88) (254)
(5,770} (733) —
923 (600) 1,544
3,809 4717 7,666
4,963 2,619 1,427
19,389 11,994 6,009
(29,275 ) (17,314) (15,690)
(179,804)  (178,002) (80,819)
(9,970) (7.648) (4,899)
— 12 161
225 1,622 541
(194472)  (186,717) (93,270)
71,892 20,132 49,184
84,571 157,692 42,628
16,310 (20,154) 9,422
60,000 20,000 4,000
(27,700) (19,900) (11,000
1,068 394 18,939
(672) — —
(512) _ —
617 88 254
205,574 158,252 113,427
14,911 (23,748) 27,823
11,588 35,336 7,513
26499 § 11,588 $ 35336

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.
(the “Company”) (a Georgia corporation) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Appalachian Community Bank (the
“Bank™) and Appalachian Community Bank, F.8.B. {the “Thrift”). All significant intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in conselidation, Unless otherwisc indicated herein, the financial results of the
Company refer to the Company, the Bank and the Thrift on a consolidated basis. The Bank and the Thrift provide a
full range of banking services to individual and corporate customers in North Georgia, Murphy, North Carolina,
Ducktown, Tenncssee and the surrounding areas.

The Company operates predominantly in the domestic commercial banking industry. The accounting and
reporting policies of the Company conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and to
general practice within the banking industry. The following summarizes the most significant of these policies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenuces and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on ¢stimnates that are particularly
susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions. In connection with the
determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent appraisals for significant collateral.
While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts
of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an
integral part of their cxamination process, periodically review the estimated losses on loans. Such agencies may require
the Bank and Thrift to recognize additional losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the
time of their examinations. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may
change materially in the near term. However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be cstimated.

Securities
Securities are classified as either held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading.

Held-to-maturity securities are securities for which management has the ability and intent to hold until
maturity. These securities are carried at amortized cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of
discount, to the earlier of the maturity or call date.

Securities available-for-sale represent those securities intended to be held for an indefinite period of time,
including securitics that management intends to use as part of its asset/liability strategy, or that may be sold in
responsc to changes in interest rates, changes in prepayment risk, the need to increase regulatory capital, or other
sirnilar factors. Securities available-for-sale arc recorded at market value with unrealized gains and losses net of any
tax cffect, added or deducted directly from shareholders” equity.

Securities carried in trading accounts are carried at market value with unrealized gains and losses reflected
in income.

Realized gains and losses are recorded on the trade date and are based on the specific identification method.
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The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recognized in interest income using the
interest method over the life of the securities.

Declines in the fair value of individual held-to maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost
that are other than temporary result in write-downs of the individual securitics to their fair value, The related write-
downs are included in earnings as realized losses.

The Company had no trading or held-to-maturity securities as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Loans Hceld for Sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated
fair value. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charge to income.

Loans

Loans are stated at unpaid principal balances, less the allowance for loan losses and adjusted for any deferred fees
and costs on originated loans.

Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination and commitment fecs, net of certain
origination costs, are deferred and amortized as a yield adjustment over the lives of the related loans.

Allowance for Loan Losses

A loan is generally classified as impaired, based on current information and events, if it is probable that we
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms
of the loan agreement. Uncollateralized loans arc measured for impairment based on the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the historical effective interest rate, while all collateral-dependent loans are
measured for impairment based on the fair value of the collateral. Smaller balance homogencous loans, which
consist of residential mortgages and consumer loans, are evaluated collectively for impairment.

The allowance for loan losses is established through charges to carnings in the form of a provision for loan
losses. Increases and decreases in the allowance due to changes in the measurement of the impaired loans are
included in the provision for loan losses. Loans continue to be classified as impaired unless they are brought fully
current and the collection of scheduled interest and principal is considered probable. When a loan or portion of a
loan is determined to be uncollectible, the portion deemed uncollectible is charged against the allowance and
subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance,

Management determines the loan loss allowance by first dividing the loan portfolio into two major
categories: (1 )satisfactory and past due loans and (2)impaired loans. Loan loss reserves arc calculated primarily
based upon the historical loss experience by segment for the satisfactory and past due portion of the portfolio and
adjusted for qualitative factors. Management uses a moving average three year net loan charge off/recovery
experience rate (net charge off percentage of total Joans) for the various segments in the loan portfolio. This
experience rate is applied to the satisfactory and past due loans by segment, in order to determine the reserve amount
for satisfactory and past due loans. Impaired loans are considered individually for loans over $100,000. Impaired
loans $100,000 and under are evaluated for impairment as a group. In management’s opinion, the loan loss
allowance is considered adequate at December 31, 2007 and 2006.
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Management’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on the past loan loss
experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrowers” ability to
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral, and an analysis of current economic conditions. While
management believes that it has established the allowance in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and has taken into account the views of its regulators and the current economic environment, there can be
no assurancc that in the future the Bank and Thrift’s regulators or its economic environment will not require further
increases in the allowance.

Income Recognition on Impaired and Nonaccrual Loans

Loans, including impaired loans, are generally classificd as nonaccrual if they are past due as to maturity or
payment of principal or interest for a period of more than 90 days, unless such loans are well collateralized and in
the process of collection. If a loan or a portion of a loan is classified as doubtful or is partially charged off, the loan
is generally classified as nonaccrual. Loans that are on a current payment status or past due less than 90 days may
also be classified as nonaccrual if repayment in full of principal and/or interest is in doubt.

Loans may be returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are
reasonably assured of repayment within an acceptable period of time, and there is a sustained period of repayment
performance by the borrower, in accordance with the contractual terms of interest and principal.

While a loan is classified as nonacerual and the future collectibility of the recorded loan balance is
doubtful, collections of interest and principal are applied as regular payments. When the future collectibility of the
recorded loan balance is expected, interest income may be recognized on a cash basis. In the case where a
nonaccrual loan has been partially charged off, recognition of interest on a cash basis is limited to that which would
have been recognized on the recorded loan balance at the contractual interest rate. Receipts in excess of that amount
are recorded as recoverics to the allowance for loan losses until prior charge offs have been fully recovered. Interest
income recognized on a cash basis was immaterial for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Other premises and equipment are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided generally by the straight-line method based principally on the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets. Estimated lives of premises and equipment are as follows: for buildings and improvements —
from ten to fifty years, for furniturc and cquipment — from three to fifteen years, for computer equipment and
software — from three to five years, and for automobiles — five years. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as
incurred, while major additions and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are included in
current operations.

Forcclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets includes both formally foreclosed property and in-substance foreclosed property. In-
substance foreclosed properties are those properties for which the Bank and the Thrift have taken physical
possession, regardless of whether formal foreclosure proceedings have taken place.

At the time of foreclosure, foreclosed assets are recorded at fair value lcss cost to sell, which becomes the
property’s new basis. Any write-downs based on the asset’s fair value at date of acquisition are charged to the
allowance for loan losses. After foreclosure, these assets arc carried at the lower of their new cost basis or fair value
less cost to sell.

Costs incurred in maintaining foreclosed assets and subsequent adjustments to the carrying amount of the

property are included in other operating expenses. The carrying amount of forecloscd assets of December 31, 2007
and 2006 was $1,573,440 and $1,217,942, respectively.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of the transactions reported in the consolidated financial
statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the basis of
available-for-sale sccurities, allowance for loan losses, estimated losscs on foreclosed real estate, deferred
compensation, and accumulated depreciation for financial and income tax reporting. The deferred tax assets and
liabilitics represent the future tax return consequences of thosc differences, which will either be taxable or
deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at
income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets or liabilitics are expected to be realized or
settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax asscts and liabilities are adjusted through the
provision for income taxes. The Company files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiarics.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123
(revised 2004}, entitled Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”) using the modified-prospective-transition
method, Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes compensation cost for all
share-based payments granted prior to but not vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123 and compensation cost for all sharc-based
payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R. Results for prior periods have not been restated.

Emplovee Benefit Plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit-sharing plan covering substantially all of its employces. Eligible
participating employees may elect to contribute tax-deferred contributions. Company contributions to the plan are
determined by the board of directors, not to exceed the amount that can be deducted for federal income tax purposes.
The Company is presently matching up to 3% of the employee’s salary if the employee contributes at least 10%.
The match is prorated if the employee contributes less than 10%.

Intangibles

Intangibles consist of goodwill and non-compete agreements with two former employees of the Bank. The
goodwill represents a premium paid on the purchase of assets and deposit liabilitics. Goodwill is stated at cost, net of
accumnulated amortization, which was provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 20
years, until the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB) issued SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, in June 2001, The carrying amount of goodwill at December 31, 2007 and 2006 is §1.991,891.

Goodwill is required to be tested annually for impairment, or whenever cvents occur that may indicate that
the recoverability of the carrying amount is not probable. In the event of impairment, the ainount by which the
carrying amount exceeds the fair value would be charged to earnings. The Company performs its annual test of
impairment each December 3 1st, and as of December 31, 2007 the Company determined that there was no
impairment of the carrying value.

The noncompete intangible represents agreements with twe former employees, one of which was entered
into in 2006 and the other in 2007. These employees agreed to certain stipulations concerning future employment.
The agreements are stated at cost, net of accumulated amortization, which is provided using the straight-linc method
over the contract period. The 2006 agreement has a contract period of two years. The carrying amount of the 2006
agreement at December 31, 2007 is $82,000, which consists of the original amount of $246,000, net of accumulated
amortization of $164,000. The 2007 agreement has a contract period of six months, The carrying amount of the
2007 agreement at December 31, 2007 is $105,525, which consists of the original amount of $211,050, net of
accumulated amortization of $105,525. Amortization expense incurred from these noncoempete agreements for the
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years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $228,525 and $41,000, respectively. The carrying amount of
$187,525 at December 31, 2007 will be expensed for the year ending December 31, 2008,

Off-Balance Shcet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments
consisting of commitments to extend credit, commitments under credit card arrangements, commercial letiers of
credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements
when they arc funded. See Note 13 for a further discussion of these financial instruments,

The Company also has available as a source of short-term financing the purchase of federal funds from
other commercial banks from available lines of up to $53 million, of which $43 million in funds were available at
December 31, 2007, Also, the Company has a line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (the “FHLB"), of up
to approximately $130,800,000, of which approximately $73,450,000 was available and unused, subject to proper
collateralizatton at December 31, 2007. [n addition, the Company had a short-term line of credit with another bank
in the amount of $10,000,000, of which $35,487,894 was available at December 31, 2007,

Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share are computed by dividing earnings available to sharcholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect per
share amounts that would have resulted if dilutive potential common stock had been converted to common stock, as
prescribed by SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share.

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Weighted average of common shares outstanding 5,265,555 5,170,687 4,123,403
Effect of dilutive options 10,645 103,024 123,931
Weighted average of common shares outstanding
effected for dilution 5,276,200 5,278,711 4,247.334
Options not considered in dilutive calculations 258,000 5,000 —

Stock Repurchase Plan

In March 2007, the Company announced a stock repurchase program which authorized the repurchase of
up to $2.5 miilion of its shares of common stock over a twelve month period ending on February 27, 2008. During
the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company repurchased a total of 35,000 shares at a weighted average
repurchase price of $14.64 per share. Since December 31, 2007, the Company has purchased another 16,000 shares
at a weighted average price of $11.44 prior to the plan ending date. These shares were retired and place into
aunthorized and unissued shares of commeon stock.
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Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in
net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-
sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the statement of financial condition,
such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income.

In the calculation of comprehensive income, certain reclassification adjustments are made to avoid double
counting items that are displayed as part of net income for a period that also had been displayed as part of other
comprehensive income in that period or earlier periods. The disclosure of the reclassification amounts and other
details of other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities

Unrealized gains (losscs) arising during period $ 761 % 375 % (1,283)
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses
included in net income (7) — —
Net unrealized gains {losses) 754 375 (1,283)
Income tax related to items of other
comprehensive income {252) (128) 436
Other comprehensive income (loss) $ 502§ 247 § (847)

Statements of Cash Flows

The Company includes cash, due from banks, and short-term investments as cash equivalents in preparing
the consolidated statements of cash flows. The following is supplemental disclosure to the statements of cash flows
for the three years ended December 31, 2007.

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands}
Cash paid during the year for intcrest $ 34,195 § 21,768 § 10,030
Cash paid during the year for income taxes 3,240 3,358 2,292

Non-cash Disclosures:

Loans transferred to foreclosed assets 4,556 2,824 252

Net increase (decreasc) in unrealized gains and

losses on securitics available-for-sale 502 375 (1,282)
Sales of foreclosed assets financed through loans 3,878 99 —
Increase in cash surrender value on life insurance 340 295 309
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Recent Developments

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 dcfines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP), and
cxpands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement does not require any new fair value
measurements, but applies under other accounting pronouncements, the Board having previously concluded in those
accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute, The provisiens of this statement
are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 13, 2007, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. The Company does not expect the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its financial position, results
of operations or cash flows to be material,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities.” SFAS No. 159 permits cntities to make an irrevocable election, at specified election dates, to
measure eligible financial instruments and certain other items at fair valuc. This statement also cstablishes presentation
and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different measurement
attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. The provisions of this statement are effective as of the beginning of
the first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting
SFAS No. 159, but has yet to complete its assessment,

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Intcrpretation No, 48 (FIN 48}, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
FIN 48 provides a two-step process in the evaluation of a tax position. The first step is recognition. A company
determines whether it is more-likely-than-not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including a
resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based upon the technical merits of the position. The second
step is measurerncnt. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition thresheld is measured at the
largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company’s adoption of FIN 48 did not have a
matcerial impact o its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-4 (EITF 06-4), “Accounting for
Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Doilar Life Insurance
Arrangements.” EITF 06-4 requires an employer to recognizc a liability for future benefits based on the substantive
agreement with the employee. EITF 06-4 requires a company to use the guidance prescribed in FASB Statement
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions” and Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 12, “Omnibus Opinion,” when entering into an endorscment split-dollar lifc insurance agreement
and recognizing the liability. EITF 06-4 is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2007. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting EITF 06-4 on its financial position, results of operations and
cash flows, but has yet to complete its assessment.

In September 2006, the EITF rcached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-5 (EITF 06-5), “Accounting for
Purchases of Lifc Insurance — Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB
Technical Bulletin No. 85-4.” EITF 06-5 requires that a determination of the amount that could be realized under an
insurance contract should (1) consider any additional amounts beyond cash surrender value included in the
centractual terms of the pelicy and (2) be based on an assumed surrender at the individual policy or certificate level,
unless all policics or certificates are required to be surrendered as a group. EITF 06-5 is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company s adoption of EITF Issue No. 06-5 did not have a material impact
on its financiai position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Note 2 — Restrictions on Cash and Due From Bank Accounts

The Company is required to maintain average reserve balances either in vault cash or on deposit with the
Federal Reserve Bank. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the average amount of the required reserves was $-0- and
$569.,000, respectively.

Note 3 — Securities

The carrying amounts of securities as shown in the consolidated statements of financial condition of the
Company and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are presented below.

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost (ains Losses Value

(In thousands)

December 31, 2007:
Government sponsored

agency securities £ 32964 % 240§ 45 3 33,159
State and municipal securities 13,651 421 41 14,031
Mortgage-backed securities 28,483 186 i56 28,513
Equity securities 4,986 — 179 4,807

S 80,084 3§ 847 § 421 § 80,510

December 31, 2006:
Government sponsored

agency securities 5 43933 % 0 S 547 % 43,396
Statc and municipal securities 12,681 479 12 13,148
Mortgage-backed securities 15,098 13 278 14,833
Equity securitics 3,348 — — 3,348

|
: 3 75,060 § 502 3§ 837 $§ 74,725

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s available-for-sale securities reflected net unrealized gains of
. $425,566 that resulted in an increase in stockholders” equity of $280,874 net of deferred taxes. At December 31,
2006, the Company’s available-for-sale securities reflected net unrealized losses of $334,786 that resulted in a
decrease in stockholders’ equity of $220,959 net of deferred taxes.
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Note 3 — Securities — Continued

The following tables show the Company’s securitics” gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by
security category and length of time that individual securitics have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Gross (iross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(In thousands)

December 31, 2007:
Government sponsored

agency sccurities $ — 5 — 8 8841 § 45 8 8841 § 45
State and municipal
securitics 1.445 30 605 11 2,050 41
Mortgage-backed
securities 6,694 77 6.421 79 13,115 156
Equity securitics 671 179 — — 671 179
$ 8810 § 286 $ 15867 § 135 § 24677 3§ 421

December 31, 2006;
Government sponsored

agency securities S 6,733 § 78 29176 § 540§ 35909 S 547
State and municipal
securities 574 12 — — 574 12
Mortgage-backed
securities },535 — 11,821 278 13,356 278
$ 8842 3§ 19 § 40,997 § 818 § 49,839 § 837

Management evaluates securitics for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and
more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the
length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, {2) the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. The securities at a loss for 12 months or
more at December 31, 2007 arc in 18 sccuritics, that are insured agencics of the United States Government and the
losses can be attributable to changes in interest rates. In addition, there was onc municipal security at a loss for
more than 12 months at December 31, 2007, with an Aaa and an AAA rating. Because the declines in value are not
attributed to credit quality and the Company has the ability and intent to hold the sccurities until a market price
recovery or maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.
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Note 3 — Securities — Continued

The contractual maturities of sccurities available-for-sale at December 31, 2007 are shown as follows.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penaltics.

Estimated
Amortized Fair
Cost Value

(In thousands)

Due in one year or less $ 13,608 § 13,569
Dug after one year through five years 16,050 16,264
Due after five years through ten years 10,929 10,988
Due afier ten years 34,511 34,882
Equity securities 4,986 4.807

b 30,084 $ 80,510

Mortgage-backed securities have been included in the maturity table based upon the guaranteed payoff date
of each sccurity.

Giross realized gains and losses on the sale of securities available-for-sale for cach of the threc ycars in the
period ended December 31, 2007, were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)

Gross realized gains $ 7% — 5 —
Gross realized losses — — —

Equity securities include a restricted investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock, which must be
maintained to secure the available line of credit. The amount of investment in this stock amounted to $3,944,600 and
$2,312,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In addition to the restricted investment in Federal Home
L.oan Bank, the Company also had an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank preferred stock with a carrying value
of $671,000 and $850,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Equity securities also include an
investment in Appalachian Capital Trust 1. The amount of investment in the trust amounted to $186,000 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, Additionally, equity sccurities contains an investment of §5,500 in a mortgage
cooperative at December 31, 2007, in order to enable the bank and thrift 1o participate in larger loan pools to attain
preferable rates on certain loans. There was no investment in this mortgage cooperative at December 31, 2006.

The carrying value of investment securities pledged to secure public funds on deposit, securities sold under

agreements to repurchase, and for other purposcs as required by law amounted to $35,169,336 and $42,134,460 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Note 4 - Loans

The Company grants loans to customers primarily in the North Georgia area. The major classifications of
loans as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultural b 48,749 § 40,491
Real estate - construction 389,695 320,406
Real estate - moertgage 332,856 240,836
Consumer 30,598 25,386
Other loans 5,624 3,934

Total loans " 807,522 631,053
Allowance for loan losses (9,808) {7,670)

Net loans 3 797,714 % 623,383

™ Total loans are net of deferred fees of $87,070 and $32,183 (not stated in thousands), at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Total loans which the Company considered to be impaired at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $8,230,538 and
$4,645,796, respectively, Of these loans, $4,250,322 and $2,611,282 were on nonaccrual status at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. Allowances on the impaired loans at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $1,983,084 and $1,222,904,
respectively. Impaired loans consisted primarily of real estate — construction, real estate — mortgage and commecrcial loans
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $7,268,104, $3,906,000 and $3,811,000, respectively. No material amount of
interest income was recognized on nenaccrual loans for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003. For other
impaired loans we collected approximately $226,289 during the year ended December 31, 2007 and $184,000 in interest
during each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the difference
between gross interest income hat would have been recorded in such period if the nonaccruing loans had been current in
accordance with their original terms and the amount of interest income on those loans that was included in such period’s
net income was approximately $181,665. In the years ended Decernber 31, 2006 and 2005, the amount was approximately
$115,480 and $70,000, respectively.

The Company has no commitments to loan additional funds to the borrowers of impaired loans.

Al December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had loans past duc 90 days or more and still accruing
interest of $364,005 and $871,744, respectively.

Commercial and residential real estate loans pledged to sccure Federal Home Loan Bank advances and
letters of credit amounted to $83,265,638 and $72 441,162 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Note 5 - Allowance for Loan Losses

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for each of the three years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and

2005 are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of year 5 7,670 § 6,059 § 4,349
Charge-offs (2,851) (1,826} (560)
Recoveries 263 184 59
Net charge-offs (2,588) (1.642) (501)
Provision for loan losses 4,726 3,253 2,211
Balance at end of year 3 9.808 % 7,670 % 6,059
Note 6 - Premises and Equipment
Premises and Equipment
Premises and cquipment were as follows:
December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands}
Land b 8288 § 5,129
Buildings and improvements 14,401 13,841
Furniture and equipment 5,873 5,710
Computer equipment and software 2,038 2,159
Automobiles 451 400
Construction in progress {estimated cost to complete $1.7 million) 7,176 1,618
38,827 28,857

Allowance for depreciation (5.861) (5,445)

M 32966 § 23.412

The provision for depreciation charged to occupancy and furniture and cquipment expense for the years

ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $1,369,844, §1,006,378 and $870,339, respectively.

Leases

The Company has a number of operating lease agrecements, involving land, buildings and equipment. These
leases are noncancellable and expire on various dates through the year 2028. The leases provide for renewal options
and generally require the Company to pay maintenance, insurance and property taxes. For the years ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, rental expense for operating leases was approximately $329,628, S|
£69,684, respectively.
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Note 6 - Premises and Equipment — Continued

Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating ieases at December 31, 2007, arc as
follows:

(In
Years Ending December 31, thousands)
2008 g 179
2009 74
2010 66
2011 66
2012 66
Thereafier 976
Total mintmum lease payments $ 1,427

Note 7 - Deposits

The aggregate amounts of time deposits of $100,000 or more, including certificates of deposit of $100,000
or more at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $264,333,054 and $236,627,667, respectively. The Company had
brokered time deposits at December 31, 2007 and 2006 of $146,527,403 and $123,982,411, respectively. Demand
deposits reclassified as loan balances as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted 10 $142,641 and $2435,601,
respectively.

The maturities of time certificates of deposit and other time deposits issued by the Company at December
31, 2007, are as follows:

Years ending December 31, (In thousands)
2008 $ 453,829
2009 21,067
2010 5,185
2011 1,448
2012 4,390
3 485,919

Note 8 - Short-term Borrowings
Short-term borrowings at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consist of the following:

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Federal funds purchased b 10,000 § —
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 6,536 4,738
Short-tcrm notes payable 4,512 —

3 21,048 § 4,738
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Note 8 - Short-term Borrowings — Continued

Securities sold under repurchase agreements, which arc secured borrowings, generally mature within one to
nipety days from the transaction date. Securities sold under repurchase agreements are reflected at the amount of
cash received in connection with the transaction. The Company may be required to provide additional collateral
based on the fair value of the underlying securities. The Company monitors the fair value of the underlying
securities on a daily basis

Note 9 — Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)
totaling $57,350,000 and $25,050,000, respectively.

FHLB advances consist of the following at December 31:

2007 2006
{In thousands)

Notes payable on line of credit at FHLB, with varying maturitics from
January 2008 through January 2018, interest rates varying from
2.89% to 5.95%, and secured by residential mortgages $ 57,350 % 25,050

The maturitics of FHLB advances at December 31, 2007, are as follows:

Years ending December 31, Fixed Convertible
(In thousands)

2008 $ 10,350 % —
2009 — 5,000
2010 — —
2011 — —
2012 — 15,000
Thereafier — 27,000

$ 10,350 § 47,000

Note 10 - Subordinated Long-term Capital Notes

On August 28, 2003, Appalachian Capital Trust [ (“the Trust™), a Delaware statutory trust established by
the Company, reccived $6,000,000 principal amount of the Trust’s floating rate cumulative trust preferred securities
(the “Trust Preferred Securities”) in a trust preferred private placement. The proceeds of that transaction were then
used by the Trust to purchase an equal amount of floating rate-subordinated debentures {the “Subordinated
Debentures™) of the Company. The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed all obligations of the Trust
on a subordinated basis with respect to the Trust Preferred Securities. The Company accounts for the Trust Preferred
Sccurities as a long-term debt liability to the Trust in the amount of $6,186,000. Interest only is payable quarterly at
a variable per annum rate of interest, reset quarterty, equal to LIBOR plus 3.00% until the debt becomes due on
August 8, 2033, The interest rate on the Trust Preferred liability at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was 7.91% and
8.37%, respectively. Subject to certain limitations, the Trust Preferred Securitics qualify as Tier 1 capital.

The sole asset of the Trust is the Subordinated Debentures issucd by the Company. Both the Trust

Preferred Securities and the Subordinated Debentures have stated 30-year lives. However, both the Company and
the Trust have options to call their respective securities after five years, subject to regulatory capital requirements.
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Note 11 - Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenscs consist of the following;

Profcssional fees
Advertising

Data processing

Director & committee fees
Marketing and promotional
Stationary and supplies
Other

Note 12 - Income Taxes

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

$ 1,344 § 665 § 1,275
961 882 510

932 776 653

787 608 332

774 614 535

559 531 321

3,240 2,459 1,757

3 g598 § 6,535 § 5.583

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 arc as

follows:

Current
Federal
State

Deferred
Federal
State

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
s 3,166 § 2,886 § 2,906
288 468 401
{647) (343) (738)
(44) (159) (67)
3 2,763 % 2852 § 2,502

The principal reasons for the difference in the effective tax rate and the federal statutory rate are as follows

for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

Statutory federal income tax rate

Effect on rate of?
Tax-cxempt securities
Tax-exempt loans
Interest expense disallowance
State income tax, net of federal tax
Other

Effective income tax rate

2007 2006 2003
34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
2.6) (2.6) (2.9)
0.2) (0.2) (0.1)

0.5 0.4 0.3
1.9 2.3 29
0.3) (1.7) (1.4)
33.3% 32.2% 32.8%
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Note 12 - Income Taxes — Continued

The tax effects of each type of income and expense item that gave rise to deferred taxes are:

2007 2006
{In thousands)

Net unrealized gains on securitics available-for-sale $ (145) § 114
Depreciation (1,1186) (737)
Allowance for loan losses 3,457 2,450
Deferred compensation 446 338
Other 160 112

$ 2802 § 2,277

Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Bank and Thrift offer a variety of financial products to their customers
to aid them in meeting their requirements for liquidity, credit enhancement, and interest rate protection. Generally
accepted accounting principles recognize these transactions as contingent liabilities and, accordingly, they are not
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Commitments to extend credit, credit card arrangements,
commercial letters of credit, and standby letters of credit all include exposure to some credit loss in the event of
nonperformance of the customer. The Bank and Thrift use the same credit policies and underwriting procedures for
making off-balance sheet credit commitments and financial guarantees as they do for on-balance sheet extensions of
credit. Because these instruments have fixed maturity dates, and because many of them expire without being drawn
upon, they do net generally present any significant liquidity risk to the Bank and Thrift. Management does not
anticipate any material losscs as a result of these commitments,

Following is a discussion of these commitments:

Standby Letiers of Credit: These agreements are used by the Bank and Thrift customers as a means of
improving their credit standings in their dealings with others. Under these agreements, the Bank and the Thrift agree
10 honor certain financial commitments in the event that its customers are unable to do so. The amount of credit risk
involved in issuing letters of credit in the event of nonperformance by the other party is the contract amount. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank and the Thrift have issued standby letters of credit of approximately
$5,025,314 and $10,723,000. When significant, we record a liability for the estimated fair value of standby letters of
credit based on the fees charged.

Loan Commitments: As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank and Thrift had commitments
outstanding to extend credit totaling approximately $97,006,761 and $107,671,000, respectively. These
commitments gencrally require the customers to maintain certain credit standards. Management does not anticipate
any material losses as a result of these commitments.

Litigation: The Company is party to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of business.
Management believes that the liabilities, if any, arising from such litigation and claims are not material to the
consolidated financial statements.

Note 14 - Concentrations of Credit
Substantially all of the Bank and Thrift’s loans, commitments and standby letters of credit have been
granted to customers in their market areas. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in Note 4 and

include a concentration on loans sccured by real estate. The commitments to extend credit relate primarily te unused
real estate draw lines. Commercial and standby lctters of credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers.
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Note 15 — Stock Based Compensation

The Company has a 1997 Employee Stock Incentive Plan and a Directors’ Nonqualified Stock Option Plan
{“the 1997 Plan™), a 2003 Stock Option Plan (“the 2003 Plan™) and a 2007 Equity Incentive Plan {“the 2007 Plan™)
under which it has granted statutory and nenstatutory stock options to certain directors and employees. The Plans
provide for up to 440,000 stock option awards granted for cach of the 1997 Employee and Director Plans, 163,000
stock option awards for the 2003 Plan, and 300,000 stock option awards from the 2007 Plan. The options granted
provide for these directors and employees the opportunity to purchase shares of the Company’s $0.01 par value
common stock at the market valuc at the dates of grant. Market value is determined by the closing price for the
1997 and the 2007 Plans and by averaging the high/low prices as of the date of grant for the 2003 Plan. The options
granted may be generally vest over five years of continuous service and must be exercised within ten years from the
date of grant. Either at the Board’s discretion or as stated under the plans, in the event of a change in control, any
outstanding options covered by such an agreement shall be fully vested, nonforfeitable and become exercisable as of
the date of the change in control. At December 31, 2007, there were outstanding 152,220, 140,240 and 15,000 stock
option awards issued from the 1997 Plan, the 2003 Plan and the 2007 Plan, respectively. Shares available for future
grants to employces and directors under the 1997 Plan, the 2603 Plan and the 2007 Plan were -0-, 24,760, and 285,000
shares, respectively.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton
option valuation model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatilities are based on
historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercises,
employee terminations and forfeitures within the valuation model; separate groups of employees that have similar
historical exercise behavior are considered separately for valuation purposes. The expected term of options granted
is estimated based on the short-cut methed. The risk-free rate for periods within the estimated life of the option is
based on the U.S. Treasury yicld curve in effect at the time of grant.

The following assumptions were used for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.

2007 2006 2005
Dividend Yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility 17.59-21.06% 1552-1921% 15.84-16.40 %
Risk-free interest rate 371 -5.04% 411-503% 396-4.36%
Annual forfeiture rate 1.20-3.88% 0.00-3.42% 3.16-3.42%
Expected life of options (in years) 7.50 years 7.50 years 7.50 years
Weighted-average grant-date fair value % 608 § 6.81 § 4.89
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Note 15 — Stock Based Compensation — Continued

The following table represents stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Weighted
Average Agpregate
Weighted Remaining Intrinsic
Average Contract Life Value
Shares Exercise Price (Years) ($000)

Qutstanding at January 1, 2007 456,675 % 13.35
Granted 30,500 16.14
Exercised (114,715) 3.93
Forfeited or expired (65,000) 17.20
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 307,460 § 16.33 586 8 —
Exercisable at December 31, 2007 125,520 $ 12,25 435 % —

Total intrinsic value of options exercised was $1,672,069, $788,574 and $1,027,164 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The total fair value of options vested during the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $338,238, $79,005 and $50,566, respectively.

The compensation cost charged against income for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 was
$326,966, $204,392 and $18,745, respectively. Income tax benefits recognized for the respective years were $52,988,
$27,557 and $-0-,

Cash received from the exercise of options was $450,965 for the year ended December 31, 2007, The tax
benefit realized for the tax deductions from the option exercise of the share-based payment arrungements totaled
$616,852 for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The following summarizes our nonvested stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2007

Number of Weighted Average

Shares Grant-Date Fair Value
Nonvested stock options beginning of period 247,150 § 6.48
Granted 30,500 6.08
Vested (52,210) 6.48
Forfeited (43.500) 17.47
Nonvested stock options end of period 181,940 § 6.64

As of December 31, 2007, there was $1,011,779 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the
nonvesied share-based compensation arrangements granted under the option plan. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.55 years.
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Note 16 — Regulatory Matters
Dividends

Bank. The board of directors of any state-chartered bank in Georgia may declare and pay cash dividends
on its outstanding capital stock without any request for approval of the Bank’s rcgulatory agency if the following
conditions are met:

L. Total classified assets at the most recent examination of the Bank do not exceed 80% of equity capital.

2. The aggregate amount of dividends declared in the calendar year does not exceed 50% of the pridr year’'s net
income,

3. The ratio of equity capital to adjusted assets shall not be less than 6%.

As of December 31, 2007, the Bank could declare dividends of approximately $3,377,000 without
regulatory consent, subject to the Bank’s compliance with regulatory capital restrictions. It is anticipated that any
such dividends would be used for the payment of long-term debt service.

Thrift. Federal regulations impose certain limitations on the payment of dividends and other capital
distributions by the Thrift. Under these regulations, a savings institution, such as the Thrift, that will meet capital
requirements {as defined by OTS regulations) subsequent to a capital distribution is generally permitted to make
such a capital distribution without OTS approval, subject to certain limitations and restrictions as described in the
regulations. A savings institution with total capital in excess of current minimum capital requirements is permitted
to make, without OTS approval, capital distributions of between 25% and 75% of its net earnings for the previous
four quarters less dividends alrcady paid for such period. A savings institution that fails to meet current minimum
capital requirements is prohibited from making any capital distributions without prior approval from the OTS. The
Thrift’s current compliance with fully phased-in capital requirements would permit payment of dividends of $-0-
due to the Thrift having a net loss in the previous four quarters. In addition, for the first three years of operations of
the Thrift, our business plan does not in¢clude the payment of dividends.

Capital Adequacy

The Company, Bank and Thrift subject to various regulatory capital requircments administered by the
federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requircments can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly
additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material cffect on the
Company, Bank and Thrift and the consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework from prompt corrective action, the Company, Bank and Thrift must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilitics, and certain off-balance sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors,

Quantitative measures established by regulation to cnsure capital adequacy require the Company and the
Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 Capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 Capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined).
Management believes, as of December 31, 2007, that the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy
requirements to which they are subject. The minimum capital standards of the OTS generally require the Thrift to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Tangible capital (as defined in the
regulations), Core capilal (as defined) and Risk-Based capital (as defined).
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As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the applicable regulatory agencies categorized
the Bank and the Thrifl as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To become
well capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum Total Capital, Tier | Capital and Tier | Leverage ratios as set
forth in the following table. To become well capitalized the Thrift must maintain minimur Tangible Capital, Core
Capital and Risk-Based Capital ratios as set forth in the following table. Prompt corrective action provisiens are not
applicable to bank holding companies.

The Company's, Bank’s, and Thrifi’s actual capital amounts and ratios arc presented in the table below.

To be Well
Capitalized
Under Prompt
For Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
As of December 31, 2007:
Total Capital
Consolidated $ 86988 10.55% 3 74,433 800% $ N/A N/A %
Appalachian Community Bank 81.787 10.41 62,853 8.00 78,566 10.00
Appalachian Community Bank, F.8.B. 8,434 20.81 3,423 §.00 4,054 10.00
Tier 1 Capital
Consolidated 77,180 9.36 32,993 4.00 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank 72,538 9.23 31,426 4.00 47,140 6.00
Appalachian Community Bank, F.5.B. 7,927 19.56 1,374 4,00 2,061 6.00
Tier | Leverage
Consolidated 77.180 8.30 37,217 4,00 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank 72.538 8.05 36,035 4.00 45,043 5.00
Core Capital
Appalachian Community Bank, F.5.B, 7,927 16.91 1,875 4.00 2,813 6.00
Tangible Capital
Appalachian Community Bank, F.S.B. 7,927 16.91 703 1.50 2,344 5.00
As of December 31, 2006:
Total Capital
Consolidated § 78,400 11.85% § 52914 R00% § N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank 67,270 10.18 52,874 8.00 66,093 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital
Conselidated 70,730 10.69 26,457 4.00 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank 59,600 9.02 26,437 4.00 39,656 6.00
Tier | Leverage
Consolidated 70,730 9.55 29,6018 4.00 N/A N/A
Appalachian Community Bank 59,600 B.06 20.593 4.00 36,992 5.00

Note 17 - Employee Benefit Plan

The Company adopted a defined contribution plan covering substantially all employees; that is qualified
under Section 401(k} of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the provisions of the plan, cligible participating
employees may cleet to contribute up to the maximum amount of tax deferred contribution allowed by the Internal
Revenue Code. Employer and employee contributions may be made in the form of cash or Company stock. The
Company’s contribution to the plan is determined by its board of directors. The Company made discretionary cash
contributions to the plan of approximately $866,785 in 2007, $563,518 in 2006 and $472.200 in 2005.
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Note 17 - Employee Benefit Pian — Continued

The Company has various deferred compensation plans providing for death and retirement benefits for
certain officers and directors. Expenses recognized for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 related
to these plans were $665,369, $336,946 and $277.426, respectively. The estimated amounts to be paid under the
compensation plan have been partially provided for through the purchase of life insurance policies on certain
officers and directors. Accrued deferred compensation of $1,191,289, and $900,843 is included in other liabilities as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Cash surrender values of $8,778,080 and $8,438,378 on the
insurance policies is included in other assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note 18 - Related Party Transactions

Loans: Certain directors, executive officers and principal shareholders, including their immediate families
and associates were loan customers of the Bank during 2007 and 2006. There were no such relationships with the
Thrift at December 31, 2007, Such loans are made in the ordinary course of business at normal credit terms,
including interest rates and collateral and do not represent more than a normat risk of collection. A summary of
activity and amounts outstanding are as follows:

(In
thousands)
Balance at Beginning of Year 3 17,509
New loans 21,087
Repayments (8,768)
Change in related parties —
Balance at End of Year $ 29,828

Deposits: Deposits held from related partics were $7,206,701 and $2,667,125 at December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Conunstruction contracts: During 2006, the Bank used as a construction contractor, a company owned by one
of the directors of thc Company. Amounts paid to this construction contractor in 2006 amounted to $191,138, which
represented the fair market price for the services provided.

Purchases: The Bank and the Thrift purchase telecommunication, internet, cable and advertising services
from a local telecommunications company. One of the directors of the Company, Bank and the Thrift, serves as
execulive vice president and chicef operations officer of this telecommunications company., Amounts paid to the
telecommunication company in 2007 and 2006 amounted to $493,345 and $458.587, respectively, which
represented the fair market price for the services provided.

Note 19 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrumnents for which it is practicable o cstimate that value:

Cash_and_Short-term Investments: For those short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable
estimate of fair value.

Sccurities: For securities and marketable equity securities, fair values are based on quoted market prices or

dealer quotes. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar
securitics.
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Note 19 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments — Continued

Loans: For certain homogeneous categories of loans, such as some residential mortgages, credit card
receivables. and other consumer loans, fair value is estimated using the quoted market prices for securities backed
by similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. The fair value of other types of loans is estimated
by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with
similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Accrucd Interest Receivable: The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair
value.

Deposits: The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and cerlain money market deposits is the
amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated
using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturitics.

Accrued Interest Payable: The carrying amount of acerued interest payable approximates its fair value.

Short-terin Borrowings: The fair value of short-term borrowings, including securities sold under
agreements Lo repurchase, is estimated to be approximately the same as the carrying amount.

FHLB Advances and Subordinated Debt: Rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar
terms and remaining maturities are used to cstimate fair value of existing debt.

Commitments to Extend Credit, Letters of Credit, and Financial Guarantees Written: The fair value of

A A A A ey e e ey

commitments and letters of credit is estimated to be approximately the fees charged for these arrangements.
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Note 19 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Continued

The estimated fair vatues of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as
follows:

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
{1n thousands})

Financial assets

Cash and short-term investments $ 26,499 § 26,499 § 11,588 S 11,588
Securities 80,510 20,510 74,725 74,725
Loans held for sale 6.503 6.503 733 733
Loans 797,714 797,957 623,383 621,415
Accrued interest receivable 9,797 9,797 8,157 8,157

Total Financial Asscts $ 921,023 § 921,266 $ 718,586 § 716,618

Financial Liabilities

Deposits b 807,597 § 809,455 % 651,134 § 630,745
Short-term borrowings 21,048 21,048 4,738 4738
Accrucd interest payable 2,059 2,059 1,454 1,454
Long-term debt 63,536 63,455 31,236 31,365

Total Financia! Liabilitics $ 894,240 § 896,017 $ 688,562 § 688,302

Unrecognized financial instruments
Commitments to extend credit s 97,007 3% 567 § 107,671 % 624
Standby letters of credit 5,025 29 10,723 62

Total Unrecognized Financial
Instruments 5 102,032 § 396 § 118394 3 686
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Note 20 — Condensed Parent Information

Statements of Financial Condition

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Investment in subsidiaries
Sccuritics available for sale
Income taxes receivable
Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Note payable

Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest in the Company's

subordinated debentures
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

Total Sharchoiders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Sharcholders’ Equity

Statements of Income

Income
Other income

Expenses
Interest
Other expenses

Loss before income tax benefits and equity in undistributed

earnings of subsidiaries
Income 1ax benefits

Loss before equity in undistributed earnings
of subsidiarics

Equity in undistributed carnings of subsidiaries

Net Income

74

December 31,

2007 2006

(In thousands)

$ 8 S 10,498
62,926 61,576
186 186
1.440 814
49 56
$ 84,639 S 73,130
3 4,512 § —
6,186 6,186
94 75
184 106
10,976 6,367
73,663 66,763
3 54,639 % 73,130
Y ears ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
19 $ 15 3 11
602 491 404
1,185 1.250 1.016
1,787 1.741 1,420
(1,768) (1,726) (1,409)
667 596 504
(1,101) (1,130) (905)
6,671 7,134 6,027
5570 % 6,004 3 5,122




Note 20 - Condensed Parent Information — Continued

Statements of Cash Flow

Operating Activities

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
used in operating activities
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable
Compensation associaied with issuance of options
Excess tax benefits from exercisc of stock options
Other

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Capital injection in subsidiaries
Other adjustments to equity capital
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities

Financing Activities

Net increase in notes payable

Issuance of common stock

Purchase of stock

Purchase of treasury stock

Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Cash paid during the year for interest

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

$ 5570 % 6,004 § 5,122
(6,671) (7,134) (6,027)

19 @) 31

— 48 19
(617) (88) (234)

76 (195) 302
{1,623) (1,369) (807}
(13,850) (5,750) (3,500)

- {156) —
(13,850) (5,906) {3,500)

4,512 — —

1,068 — —

(512) — —

(672} 394 19,193

617 83 254

5,013 482 19,447

(10,460) (6,793) 15,140

10,498 17,291 2,151

$ 83 % 10498 § 17,291

b 583 3§ 495 § 374
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Note 23 - Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly results of operations for the four quarters of each of the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006 are as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter (uarter
{In thousands, except per share data)
2007:
Total interest income S 16,564 § 17,966 § 18,529 § 19,068
Total interest expensc 7,694 3.532 9,154 9.420
Provision for loan losses 636 947 677 2,466
Net interest income after

provision for loan losses 8,234 8,487 8,698 7,182
Total noninterest income 1,372 1,260 1,499 1,387
Total noninterest expense 7,297 7,435 8,085 6,969
Income tax expensc 750 811 705 497
Net income g 1,559 § 1,501 3% 1,407 $ 1,103

Per Common Share:

Basic earnings 3 0.30 $ 029 % 0.27 % 0.21
Diluted carnings 0.30 0.29 0.27 0.21
2006:
Total interest income 3 11,063 § 12,513 § 14,124 § 15,494
Total interest expense 4,075 5,087 6,188 7,144
Provision for loan losses 885 823 751 794
Net interest income after
provision for loan losscs 6,103 6.603 7,185 7,556
Total noninterest income 859 937 1,049 1,125
Total noninterest expense 4,586 5,326 6,155 6,294
[ncome tax expensc 841 776 491 744
Net income $ 1,535 § 1438 § 1,388 % 1,643

Per Common Share:
Basic carnings $ 030 $ 028 §% 027 % 0.32
Diluted earnings 0.29 0.27 0.26 0.31
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iITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None,
ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Otficer have evaluated our disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the fiscal year covered by this Report and have concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures are effective.

Management’s Annual Report on Interned Control over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. The Company’s management, including its Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial
Officer, conducted an cvaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in “lnternal Control—Integrated Framework™ issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, the Company’s management concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered
public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to
attestation requirements by the Company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management's report in this Annual
Report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the fourth quarter of 2007, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
that have materially affected, or that are reasonably likely to materially affect, the our internal control over financial
reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On March 27, 2008, we entcred into an amended and restated salary continuation agreement with Tracy R.
Newton, our president and chief executive officer, which, agreement, as amended and restated, is intended o bring
Mr. Newton’s original salary continuation agreement into compliance with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue
Code and, further, to provide Mr. Newton with certain additional benefits and incentives for his continued
employment with the company and the bank. A copy of this agreement is attached to this report, as Exhibit 10.14.
The agreement provides that, upon his projected normal retirement date (as defined in the agreement), Mr. Newton,
for a prescribed number of years, will receive an annual benefit in the approximate amount of $279,000, which
annua) amount increases for inflation, at three percent {(3%) per year, for each year beyond his projected normal
retirement date, until the year in which his actual retirement occurs. The agreement also provides for payments to
Mr. Newton upon his disability or death prior to his actual retirement, or upon his voluntary carly termination or
termination as a result of a change of control (as those terms are defined in the agreement). In the event of pre-
rctirement death, or death during payment of any benefit under the agreement, the designated benefits shall be paid
to Mr. Newton's beneficiary or, as the case may be, his estate.
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PART 111
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information appearing under the headings “Election of Directors,” “Executive Officers,” “Section
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Corporate Governance and Board Matters™ in the Proxy
Statement (the “2008 Proxy Statement™) relating to our 2008 Annual Mceting of Shareholders is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The informaticn appearing under the heading “Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors™ in the
2008 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information appearing under the heading “Ownership of Commen Stock™ in the 2008 Proxy Statement
is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information appearing under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” in the
2(08 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.,

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information appearing under the caption “Independent Public Accountants” in the 2008 Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

{a) 1. Financial Statgments.

The fellowing consolidated financial statements are located in Item 8 of this Report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Quarterly Results {Unaudited)

2. Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedules to the consolidated finangial statements are omitted, as the required information is not
applicable,

3. Exhibits.
The following exhibits are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this Report:

Exhibit Number Description of Exhibit

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as Restated
(included as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterty Report
on Form 10-Q, dated August 15, 2003 and incorporated
herein by reference).

3.2 Bylaws of the Company, as Amended and Restated (included
as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, dated October 25, 2007 and incorporated herein by
reference).

4.1 Sec Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions in the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws defining the rights of
holders of the common stock

4.2 Form of Certificate of Common Stock (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-2, File No. 333-127898).

10.1 1997 Directors” Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (included
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996 and
incorporated herein by reference). *

10.2 1997 Employee Incentive Stock Incentive Plan (included as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-
KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996 and
incorporated herein by reference).*
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Exhibit Number

Description of Exhibit

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10,10

10.1¢

10.12

Adoption Agreement for the Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.
Employees’ Savings & Profit Sharing Plan Basic Plan
Document and related documents (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Plan’s Annual Report on Form 11-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference).

Pentegra Services, Inc. Employees’ Savings & Profit Sharing
Plan Basic Plan Document and related documents (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Plan’s Annual Report on Form 11-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference).

Form of Deferred Fee Agreement between Gilmer County
Bank and certain directors and executive officers, with
addendum (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended June 30, 1997
and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Data Processing Agreement by and between
Appalachian Community Bank and Fiserv Solutiens, Inc,,
effective as of July 26, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended September 30, 2003 and incorperated herein by
reference).

2003 Stock Option Plan (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 30, 2003 and incorporated hercin by reference).*

Form of Stock Option Agreement {included as Exhibit 10.2
to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended Junc 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference).*

Form of Change in Control Agreement for Named Executive
Officers (and description of benefits for each Mamed
Executive Officer) (included as Exhibit 10.1 o the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).®

Form of Salary Continuation Agreement for MNamed
Executive Officers (and  description of benefits for each
Named Executive Officer) {included as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Salary Continuation Agreement for the Direclors of
Appalachian Community Bank (and description of benefits
for cach of the Directors) (included as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Amended Salary Continuation Agreement dated August 11,
2006 by and among Appalachian Community Bank,
Appalachian Bancshares. Inc. and Joseph T. Moss, Ir.
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/s/J. Ronald Knight Date: March 28, 2008
J. Ronald Knight, Chairman and Director

/s/ Kenneth D. Warren Date: March 28, 2008
Kenneth D. Warren, Director
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Exhibit Number

Description of Exhibit

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Adoption Agreement for the Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.
Employees’ Savings & Profit Sharing Plan Basic Plan
Document and related documents (filed as Exhibit 10.2 o the
Plan’s Annual Report on Form 11-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference).

Pentegra Services, Inc. Employees’ Savings & Profit Sharing
Plan Basic Plan Document and related documents (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Plan’s Annual Report on Form 11-K for
the fiscal ycar ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference).

Form of Deferred Fee Agreement between Gilmer County
Bank and certain directors and executive officers, with
addendum (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended June 30, 1997
and incorporated hercin by reference).

Form of Data Processing Agreement by and between
Appalachian Community Bank and Fiscrv Solutiens, Inc.,
effective as of July 26, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended September 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference).

2003 Stock Option Plan (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period
ended June 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Stock Option Agreement (included as Exhibit 10.2
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2003 and incorporated herein by
reference).*

Form of Change in Control Agreement for Named Executive
Officers (and description of benefits for each Named
Executive Officer) (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
cnded June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Salary Continuation Agreement for Named
Executive Officers (and  description of benefits for each
Named Executive Officer) (included as Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Salary Continuation Agreement for the Directors of
Appalachian Community Bank (and description of benefits
for each of the Directors) (included as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2004 and incorporated hercin by reference).*

Amended Salary Continuation Agreement dated August 11,
2006 by and among Appalachian Community Bank,
Appatachian Bancshares. Inc. and Joseph T. Moss, Jr.

80




Exhibit Number

Description of Exhibit

10.13

10.14

21

23.1

24.1

3

312

32

(included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q, dated August 11, 2006 and incorporated
herein by reference). *

Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. 2007 Equity [ncentive Plan
(included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, dated October 10, 2007, and
incorporated herein by reference) *

Amended and Restated Salary Continuation Agreement dated
March 27, 2008 by and among Appalachian Community
Bank, Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and Tracy R. Newton,*

Code of Ethics for CEQ and Senior Financial Officers
(included as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Consent of Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
Power of Attorney (included a part of the signature page).

Certification of Chicf Exccutive Officer Pursuant to Section
302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certifications Pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002,

* The referenced exhibit is a compensatory contract, plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Sccuritiecs Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thercunto duly authorized, on the 28th day
of March 2008.

APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC.

By: /s/ Tracy R. Newton
Tracy R. Newton
President and Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that cach person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Tracy R. Newton, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, 1o sign any and all amendments to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and 1o file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto attorney-in-fact and agent fuli power and
authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises,
as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that
attorney-in-fact and agent, or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Tracy R. Newton Date: March 28, 2008
Tracy R. Newton, President, Chief
Executive Officer and Director (principal
executive officer)

/s/ Danny F. Dukes Date: March 28, 2008
Danny F. Dukes, Exccutive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer {principal
accounting and financial officer)

/s/ Alan S. Dover Date: March 28, 2008
Alan S. Dover, Director

/s/ Charles A. Edmondson Date: March 28, 2008
Charles A. Edmondson, Director

/s/ Roger E. Futch Date: March 28, 2008
Roger E. Futch, Director

/s! Joseph C. Hensley Date: March 28, 2008
Joseph C. Hensley, Director

s/ Frank E. Jones Date: March 28, 2008
Frank E, Jones, Director
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/s/ J. Ronald Knight

J. Ronald Knight, Chairman and Director

/s{ Kenneth D. Warren

Kenneth D. Warren, Dircctor

33

Date: March 28, 2008

Date: March 28, 2008




EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are filed as part of this report {in addition to those exhibits listed in [tem 15 which
arc filed as a part of this report and incorporated by reference):

Exhibit Number Description of Exhibit

10.14 Amended and Restated Salary Continuation Agreement dated
March 27, 2008 by and among Appalachian Community
Bank, Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. and Tracy R. Newton,

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
23.1 Consent of Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
3L Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to

Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

3.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32 Certifications Pursnant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.
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EXHIBIT 10.14

APPALACHIAN COMMUNITY BANK
SALARY CONTINUATION AGREEMENT
|[As Amended and Restated to Comply with
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code]

THIS SALARY CONTINUATION AGREEMENT, as amended and restated (the “Agreement™), is adopted
as of the first day of August, 2004, by and among APPALACHIAN COMMUNITY BANK, a state-chartered
commercial bank located in Elijay, Georgia (the "Bank"), APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES, INC., the parent
company of the Bank (the “Holding Company™), and TRACY R. NEWTON (the "Executive™).

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide to the Executive, as a member of a select group which
contributes materially to the continued growth, development and future business success of the Bank and the
Holding Company, the specificd benefits, as well as incentives for continued employment with the Bank and
Holding Company, as set forth herein. This Agreement shall be unfunded for 1ax purpeses and for purposes of Title
I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA™), as amended from time to time. The Bank
will pay the benefits provided under this Agreement from its general assets.

The Bank, the Holding Company and the Executive, for and in consideration of the above stated contributions
of the Exccutive and other good and valuable consideration, do hereby agree as foltows:

Article 1
Definitions

Whenever used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings specified:

i1 “Accrual Balance” means the liability that should be accrued by the Bank, under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles ("GAAP"}, for the Bank’s obligation to the Executive under this Agreement, by
applying the Discount Rate. Any amortization method, if acceptable under GAAP, may be used to
determine the Accrual Balance. However, once chosen, the method must be consistently applied. The
Accrual Balance for each Plan Year shall be reported annually by the Bank to the Executive in the form of
Schedule A of this Agreement.

1.2 “Beneficiary” means each designated person, or the estate of the deceased Executive, entitled to benefits, if
any. upon the death of thc Executive, and as otherwise determined pursuant to Article 3 and Article 4.

1.3 “Beneficiary Designation Form™ means the form established from time to time by the Plan Administrator
that the Executive completes, signs and returns to the Plan Administrator to designate one or more
Beneficiaries.

1.4 “Change of Control” means the occurrence of any of the following conditions:

(1) Any “Person” [which term, for purposes of this Section 1.4, shall mean an individual
{other than the Executive), individuals acting in concert or as a “group” under the Securitics
Exchange Act of 1934, or a corporation, partnership, trust or other form of entity, (other than the
Holding Company, the Bank, a securities underwriter of the shares of the Holding Company or the
Bank, a corporation owned by stockholders of the Holding Company in the same proportions as
their ownership of stock in the Holding Company, or a fiduciary holding securities under an
employee benefit plan of the Holding Company or Bank)] becomes, directly or indircctly, the
“beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934) of
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1.6

1.7

sceurities of the Holding Company or Bank which represent twenty-five percent (25%) or more of
the voting power of the then outstanding securities of the Holding Company or Bank; or

{ii) Any Person acquires, directly or indirectly, the ability to control the clection of a majority
of the directors of cither the Bank or the Holding Company; or

(iii) Any Person acquires, directly or indirectly, the ability to exercise a controlling influence
over the management of policies of either the Holding Company or the Bank; or

(iv) During any period of two (2) consecutive years, the “Continuing Directors” (which term,
for purposes of this Section 1.4, means these individuals who, (a) at the beginning of such two-
year period, constitute the board of directors of either the Holding Company or the Bank or (b)
whose election or nomination as directors of the Holding Company or the Bank were approved by
a vote of least two-thirds of these previously elected directors) cease for any reason to constitute at
lcast two-thirds of the board of directors of cither the Holding Company or the Bank; or

) The consummation of a merger or statutory share exchange of the Holding Company or
the Bank with any Person, other than a merger or statutory share exchange which would (a) result
in the voting sccurities of the Holding Company or Bank outstanding immediately prior thereto,
continuing to represent at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the combined voting power of the
voting securities of the Holding Company, Bank or such other surviving entity, outstanding
immediately after such merger or statutory share exchange, in substantially the same proportions
as their ownership immediately prior to such merger or statutory share exchange, or (b) effect or
implement a recapitalization of the Holding Company or Bank (or similar transaction), in which
no Person acquires more than fifty percent (50%) of the combincd voting power of the then-
outstanding securities of the Holding Company or Bank; or

(vi} The sharcholders of the Holding Company or Bank approve a plan of completc
liquidation of the Holding Company or the Bank, or an agrcement for the sale or disposition by the
Holding Company or the Bank of all or substantially all of the assets of thc Holding Company or
the Bank.

“Change_of Control Benefit” means the benefit provided to the Executive under Section 2.4 of this
Agreement, pursuant io the terms of this Agreement. The amount of the Change of Control Benefit, as
determined under Section 2.4, is an annual amount cqual to the projected annual benefit to be paid to the
Executive at 65, as set forth in Section 2.1.1, which annual amount shall be paid 1o the Executive in equal
monthly payments for each of the fifieen (15) consccutive twelve (12) month periods next following the
Exccutive’s Normal Retirement Age, or at such later date as may be required under this Agreement or by
applicable law (including Code Section 409A).

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Disability” means the Executive: (i) is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of
any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can
be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve (12) months; or (ii) is, by rcason of any
medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be
expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve (12) months, receiving income replacement
benefits for a period of not less than threc (3) months under an accident and health plan covering
employees or dircctors of the Bank. Medical determination of Disability may be made by either the Social
Sccurity Administration or by the provider of disability insurance covering employees or directors of the
Bank provided that the definition of “disability” applied under such insurance program complies with the
requirements of the preceding sentence. Upon the request of the Plan Administrator, the Exceutive must
submit proof to the Plan Administrator of the Social Security Administration’s or the provider’s
determination.

“Disability Benefit” means the benefit provided to the Executive under Section 2.3 of this Agreement,
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pursuant o the terms of this Agreement. The amount of the Disability Benefit, as determined under
Section 2.3 is an annual amount equal to the projected annual benefit to be paid to the Executive at age 63,
ag set forth in Section 21,1, which annual amount shall be paid to the Executive in equal monthly payments
for each of the fifteen (15} consecutive twelve (12) month periods next following the Executive’s Normal
Retirement Age.

1.9 “Discount Rate” means the rate used by the Plan Administrator for determining the Accrual Balance. The
initial Discount Rate is seven percent {7%). However, the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion, may
adjust the Discount Rate to maintain the rate within reasonable standards according to GAAP.,

1.10 “Early Inveluntary Termination™ means a termination of Executive’s employment, by the Bank or the Holding
Company, prior to Executive’s Normal Retirement Age, for reasons other than death, Disability, a Termination
for Cause, or a Termination of Employment following a Change of Control.

L1l “Early Involuntary Termination Benefit” means the benefit provided to the Executive pursuant to the
provisions of Section 2.6 of this Agreement, and as set forth in Schedule A of this Agreement, as updated
annually pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The amount of the Early Involuntary Termination
Bencfit, as determined under Section 2.6 and as set forth in Schedule A, is an annual amount to be paid to
the Executive in equal monthly payments for each of the fifieen (135) consecutive twelve {12) month
periods next following the Executive’s Normal Retirement Date, or at such later date as may be required
under this Agreement or by applicable law (including Code Section 409A).

1.12 “Early Termination” means a termination of the Executive’s employment, with the Bank or the Holding
Company, by the Executive, prior to Executive’s Normal Retirement Age, for reasons other than death,
Disability, or a Termination for Good Reason,

1.13 “Early Termination Benefit” means thc benefit provided to the Executive under Section 2.2 of this
Agreement, and as set forth in Schedule A of this Agreement, as updated annually pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement. The amount of the Early Termination Benefit, as determined under Section 2.2 and as set
forth in Schedule A, is a one-time, lump-sum amount to be paid to the Executive within thirty (30) days
following the Executive’s Early Termination Date, or at such later date as may be required under this
Agreement or by applicable law (including Code Section 4(09A),

1.14 “Early Termination Date” means the date on which Early Termination occurs.

1.15 “Effective Date” mcans June 1, 2004.

.16 “Normal Retirement Age” means the earlier of the Executive’s 65" birthday or the date upon which the
Executive compleles 20 years of employment with the Bank and/or Holding Company.

1.17  “Nonmal Retirement Benefit™ means the benefit provided to the Executive pursuant to the provisions of
Section 2.1 of this Agreement, and as set forth in Schedule A of this Agreement, as updated annually
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The amount of the Normal Retirement Bencfit, as determined
under Section 2.1 and as set forth in Schedule A, is an annual amount to be paid to the Executive in equal
monthly payments for each of the fifteen (15) consecutive twelve (12) month periods next following the
Executive’s Normal Retirement Date, or at such later date as may be required under this Agreement or by
applicable law (including Code Section 409A).

1.18 “Normal Retirement Date” means the date of the Executive’s Termination of Employment, occurring on or
after the Exccutive’s Normal Retirement Age,

1.19  “Plan Administrator” means the plan administrator described in Article 8,

1.20 “Plan Year” means cach twelve-month period commencing on the Effective Date.
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1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

21

2.2

“Termination for Cause™ has that meaning set forth in Article 5.

“Termination for Good Reason” means a termination, by the Executive, of the Executive’s employment
with the Holding Company and Bank, following the occurrence, without prior approval of the Executive, of
any one of the following cvents:

(i) a material reduction in the Executive’s responsibilities, title or authority;
(ii) a material reduction, without reasonable cause, of the Executive’s salary and other benefits; and
(iii) a relocation, without consent of the Executive, of the Executive’s principal executive offices of more

than fifty (50) miles, or relocation of the Exccutive outside of Ellijay (or, if applicable, outside of
place of relocated principal executive offices).

“Termination_for Good Reason Benefit” means the benefit provided to the Executive pursuant to the
provisions of Section 2.7 of this Agreement, and as set forth in Schedule A of this Agreement, as updated
annually pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The amount of the “Termination for Good Reason
Benefit”, as determined under Section 2.7 and as set forth in Schedule A, is an annual amount to be paid to
the Executive in equal monthly payments for each of the fifleen (15) consecutive twelve (12) month
periods next following the Executive’s Normal Retirement Date, or at such later date as may be required
under this Agrecment or by applicabte law (including Code Section 409A).

“Termination of Employment” means termination of the Executive’s employment with the Bank or
Holding Company, for reasons other than death. Whether a Termination of Employment has occurred shall
be determined in accordance with the requirements of Code Section 409A, based on the applicable facts
and circumstances required to be considered thereunder.

Article 2
Benefits During Lifetime

Normal Retirement Benefit. The benefit payable to the Executive under this Scetion 2.1 is the Normal
Retirement Benefit, an annual benefit set forth in Schedute A of this Agreement (as updated annually) for
the Plan Ycar during which the Executive’s Normal Retirement Date oceurs. Upon the Executive’s Normal
Retirement Date, the Bank shall pay to the Exccutive the Normal Retirement Benefit, as described in this
Section 2.1, in lieu of any other benefit under this Article.

2.1.1  Amount of Benefit. The annual benefit under this Section 2.1 for the first Plan Year is One
Hundred Sixty-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Ninc Dollars ($168,909). Commencing on the firsi
day of the second Plan Year, and on the first day of each Plan Year thereafter, the annual benefit
shall be increased three percent (3%) from the previous Plan Year, until, and including, the Plan
Year in which the Executive’s Normal Retirement Date occurs. The Executive’s projected annual
benefit, as of the first day of the Plan Year occurring in the calendar year during which the
Executive reaches age 63, is Two Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-Onc
Dollars ($279,181).

2.1.2  Payment of Benefit. The Bank shall pay the Normal Retirement Benefit to the Executive in equal
monthly installments, commencing on the first day of the month following the Executive’s
Normal Retirement Date, or at such later date as may otherwise be required by this Agreement or
by applicable law (including Code Section 409A). This annual benefit shall be paid to the
Exccutive for each of the fifteen (15) consecutive twelve (12) month periods next following the
Executive’s Normal Retirement Date, for a total of 180 consecutive equal monthly payments.

Early Termination Benefit. Upon the Executive’s Early Termination, the Bank shall pay to the Executive
the Early Termination Benefit, as described in this Section 2.2, in licu of any other benefit under this
Article.
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22,1 Amount of Benefit. The benefit payable to the Exccutive under this Scction 2.2 is the Early
Termination Benefit, a one-time, lump-sum amount sct forth on Schedule A of the Agreement (as
updated annually) for the Plan Year during which the Executive’s Early Termination Date occurs,
The amount of the Early Termination Benefit payable to the Executive in any Plan Ycar shall be
cqual te the Executive’s Accrual Balance accrued under this Agreement for all Plan Years.

2.2.2  Payment of Benefit. The Bank shall pay the Early Termination Benefit to the Executive, as a one-
time, lump-sum amount, within thirty (30) days following the Executive’s Early Termination
Date, or at such later date as may otherwise be required by this Agreement or by applicable law
(including Code Section 409A).

23 Disability Benefit. Upon the Executive’s Termination of Employment due to Disability prior to Normal
Retirement Age, the Bank shall pay to the Executive the benefit described in this Section 2.3, in licu of any
other benefit under this Article.

23.1  Amount of Benefit The benefit payable to the Exccutive under this Section 2.3 is the Disability
Benefit, an annual benefit in an amount equal to the projected annual benefit to be paid to the
Executive at age 65, as set forth in Section 2.1.1 of this Agreement.

2.3.2  Payment of Benefit. The Bank shall pay the Disability Benefit to the Exccutive in cqual monthly
installments, commencing with the month following the Executive’s Normal Retirement Age, or
at such later date as may otherwise be required by this Agrcement or by applicable law (including
Code Section 409A). This annual benefit shall be paid to the Executive for each of the fifteen (15)
consccutive twelve (12) month periods next following the Executive’s Normal Retirement Age,
for a total of 180 consecutive equal monthly payments.

24 Change of Control Benefit. Upon a Change of Control followed by the Exccutive’s Termination of
Employment (other than a Termination for Cause), the Bank shail pay to the Execcutive the Change of
Control Benefit, as described in this Section 2.4, in liew of any other benefit under this Article.

241  Amount of Benefit The benefit payable to the Executive under this Section 2.4 is an annual
benefit in an amount cqual to the projected annual benefit to be paid to the Executive at age 65, as
set forth in Section 2.1.1 of this Agreement.

2.4.2  Payment of Benefit. The Bank shall pay the Change of Control Benefit to the Executive in equal
monthly installments commencing with the month following the Executive’s Normal Retirement
Age, or at such later datc as may otherwise be required by this Agreement or by applicable law
{including Code Section 409A). This annual benefit shall be paid to the Executive for each of the
next fifteen {15) consecutive years next following the Executive’s Normal Retirement Age, for a
total of 180 consecutive equal monthly payments.

25 Failure to be Nominated or Reelected. Upon the failure of the Execulive to be nominated or reelected as a
director of either of the Bank or the Holding Company (for any reason other than for a Termination for
Cause), the Bank shall pay to the Executive the benefit described in this Scction 2.5.

251 Amount_of Benefit. The benefit payable to the Executive under this Section 2.5 is an annual
benefit in an amount equal to the projected annual benefit to be paid to the Executive at age 65, as
set forth in Section 2.1.1 of this Agreement.

2.52.  Payment of Benefit. The benefit payable under this Section 2.5 shall be paid to the Executive in
equal monthly instaliments, commencing with the month following the Executive’s Normal
Retirement Age, or at such later date as may otherwise be required by this Agreement or by
applicable law (inctuding Code Section 409A). This annual benefit shall be paid to the Exccutive
for each of the fifieen (15) consecutive years next following the Executive's Normal Retirement
Age, for a total of 180 consecutive equal monthly payments.
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Early Involuntary Termination Benefit. Upon the Executive’s Involuntary Early Termination, the Bank
shall pay to the Executive the Involuntary Early Termination Benefit, as described in this Section 2.6, in
lieu of any other benefit under this Article.

2.6.1  Amount of Benefit. The benefit payable to the Executive under this Section 2.6 is an annual
benefit equal to the Normal Retirement Benefit, computed through the Plan Year during which
such Early Involuntary Termination occurred, to be paid to the Executive at the Exccutive’s
Normal Retirement Age, as set forth in Schedule A (as updated annually) pursuant to the
provisions of Section 2.1.1 of this Agreement.

2.6.2  Payment of Benefit. The Bank shall pay the Early Involuntary Termination Benefit to the
Executive in twelve (12) equal monthly installments, commencing with the month following the
Executive’s Normal Retirement Age. or at such later date as may otherwise be required by this
Agreement or by applicable law (including Code Section 409A). This annual benetit shall be paid
to the Executive for each of the fifteen (15) years, for a total of 180 consecutive equal monthly
payments.

Termination for Good Reason Benefit. Upon the Exccutive’s Termination for Good Reason, the Bank shall
pay to the Executive the Termination for Good Rcason Benefit, as described in this Section 2.7, in lieu of
any other benefit under this Article.

2.7.1  Amount of Benefit. The benefit payable to the Executive under this Section 2.6 is an annual
benefit equal to the Normal Retirement Benefit, computed through the Plan Year in which such
Termination for Good Reason occurred, to be paid 1o the Executive at the Executive’s Normal Retircment
Age, as set forth in Schedule A (as updated annually) pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.1.1 of this
Agreement.

2,72  Payment of Benefit. The Bank shall pay thc Termination for Good Reason Benefit to the
Execcutive in twelve (12} equal monthly installments, commencing with the month following the
Executive’s Normal Retirement Age, or at such later date as may be required under this
Agreement or by applicable law (including Code Section 409A). This annual bencfit shall be paid
to the Executive for fifteen (15) years, for a total of 180 consecutive equal monthly payments.

Restriction on Commencement of Distributions. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, if the Executive is considered a “specified employee”, within the meaning of Codc Section 409A,
the provisions of this Section 2.8 shall govern all distributions hereunder. 1f benefit distributions which
would otherwise be made to the Executive due to Termination of Employment are limited because the
Executive is a “specified cmployee”, then such distributions shall not be made during the first six (6)
months following Termination of Employment. Rather, any distribution which would otherwise be paid to
the Exccutive during such period shall be accumulated and paid to the Exccutive in a lump sum on the first
day of the seventh month following Termination of Employment. All subsequent distributions shall be
paid in the manncr specified.

Distributions Upon Taxation of Amounts Deferred. If, pursuant to Code Section 409A, the Federal
Insurance Contributions Act or other state, local or foreign tax, the Executive becomes subject to tax on the
amounts deferred hercunder, then the Bank may make a limited distribution to the Executive in a manncr
that conforms 1o the requirements of Code Section 409A. Any such distribution will decreasc the
Executive’s benefits distributable under this Agreement.

Chanee in Form or Timing of Distributions. For distribution of benefits under this Article 2, the Executive,
the Holding Company and the Bank may, subject to the terms of Section 7.1, amend this Agreement to
delay the timing, or to change the form, of such distributions; provided however, that any such amendment
(including the implementation of such amendment), and any delay in the timing, or change in the form, of
such distributions thereunder, shall conform in all respects to the requirements of Code Section 409A.
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Article 3
Death Benefits

Death During Active Employment. 1f the Executive dies while in the active employment of the Bank and
the Holding Company, the Bank shall pay to the Bencficiary the benefit described in this Section 3.1. This
benefit shall be paid in licu of the benefits under Article 2.

3.1.1  Amount of Benefit. The benefit under this Section 3.1 is the Pre-Retirement Death Benefit, an
annual benefit in an amount cqual to the projected annual benefit to be paid to the Executive at the
Executive’s Normal Retirement Age, as set forth in Scction 2.1.1 of this Agreement.

3.1.2  Payment of Benefit. The Bank shall pay the Pre-Retirement Death Benefit, to the Beneficiary in
equal monthly installments. commencing with the month following the Executive’s death. The
Pre-Retirement Death Benefit shall be paid to the Beneficiary (as provided under this Article 3 and
Article 4) for a period of fifteen (15) consecutive twelve (12) month periods next following the
death of the Exccutive, for a total of 180 consecutive equal monthly payments.

Death During Payment of a Benefit. [f the Exccutive dies after any benefit payments have commenced
under Article 2 of this Agreement, but before receiving all such payments, the Bank shall pay the remaining
benefits to the Beneficiary at the same time and in the same amounts that would have been paid to the
Executive had the Executive survived.

Death After Termination of Employment But Before Payment of a Benefit Commences. [ the Executive is
entitled to any benefit payments under Article 2 of this Agreement, but dics prior to the commencement of
said benefit payments, the Bank shall pay the same benefit payments to the Beneficiary that the Executive
was entitled to prior to death, cxcept that the benefit payments shall commence on the first day of the
month following the date of the Executive’s death,

Death of a Beneficiary prior to Full Payment of Benefit. [f a Beneficiary dies prior to receipt of the full
benefits to be paid to the Beneficiary under this Agreement, the remaining benefit payments, otherwise

payable to the Beneficiary under the terms of this Agreement, shall be paid to the personal representative of
the cstate of the Benefictary. The personal representative of the cstate of the Beneficiary, and any
beneficiary to whom such bencefits are paid by or from the Beneficiary’s cstate, shall each be a
“Beneficiary” for purposes of this Agreement.

Article 4
Bencficiaries

Beneficiary Designation. The Executive shall have the right, at any time, to designate a Beneficiary(ies) to
receive any benefits payable under this Agreement upon the death of the Executive. The Beneficiary
designated under this Agreement may be the same as or different from the bencficiary designation under
any other benefit plan of the Bank in which the Executive participates.

Beneficiary Designatign: Changre. The Exccutive shall designate a Beneficiary by completing and signing

the Beneficiary Designation Form, and delivering it to the Plan Administrator or its designated agent. The
Executive's Beneficiary designation shall be deemed automatically revoked if the Bencficiary predeceases
the Executive or if the Excculive names a spouse as Beneficiary and the marriage is subsequently
dissolved. The Exccutive shall have the right to change a Beneficiary by completing, signing and
otherwise complying with the terms of the Beneficiary Designation Form and the Plan Administrator’s
rules and procedures, as in cffect from time to time. Upon the acceptance by the Plan Administrator of a
new Beneficiary Designation Form, all Beneficiary designations previously filed shall be cancelled. The
Plan Administrator shall be entitled to rely on the last Beneficiary Designation Form filed by the Executive
and accepted by the Plan Administrator prior to the Executive’s death.

Acknowledgment. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, no designation or change
in designation of a Beneficiary shall be effective until received, accepted and acknowledged in writing by
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the Plan Administrator, or its designated agent.

No Beneficiary Designation. If the Executive dies without a valid beneficiary designation, or if all
designated Beneficiaries predecease the Executive, then the Exceutive’s spouse, if married to Executive at
the date of Executive’s death, shail be the designated Beneficiary. If the Executive has no spouse at the
Exccutive’s date of death, the benefits shall be made to the personal representative of the Executive's estate.
The personal representative of the Exccutive’s estate and any beneficiary to whom such bencfits are paid
by or from the Executive’s estate, shall each be a “Beneficiary™ for purposes of this Agrecment.

Facility of Payment. If the Plan Administrator determines in its discretion that a benefit is to be paid to a
minor, to a person declared incompelent, or 1o a person incapable of handling the disposition of that
person’s properly, the Plan Administrator may direct payment of such benefit to the guardian, legal
representative or person having the care or custody of such minor, incompetent persen or incapable person.
The Plan Administrator may require proof of incompetence, minority or guardianship as it may deem
appropriate prior to distribution of the benefit. Any payment of a benefit shall be a payment for the account
of the Exccutive and the Executive’s Beneficiary, as the case may be, and shall be a complete discharge of
any lability under the Agreement for such payment amount.

Article 5
General Limitations

Termination for Cause. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Bank shall
not pay any benefit under this Agreement if the board of directors or sharcholders of either the Bank or the
Holding company terminates the Executive's employment for:

(a) Gross negligence or gross neglect of duties to the Bank;
(b) Cominission of a fetony or of a gross misdemeanor involving moral turpitude;
{c) Fraud or willful violation of any law or significant Bank policy committed in connection with the

Executive's employment and resulting in a material adverse effect on the Bank; or

(d) Issuance of an order for removal of the Executive by the banking regulators of the Bank or the
Holding Company.

Suicide or Misstatement. The Bank shall not pay any benefit under this Agreement if the Executive
commils suicide within two years after the Effective Date. In addition, the Bank shall not pay any benefit
under this Agreement if the Executive has made any material misstatement of fact on any application for
life insurance owned by the Bank on the Executive’s life.

Competition After Termination of Emptoyment. The Bank shall not pay any benefit under this Agreement
if the Executive, without the prior written consent of the Bank or, if earlier, within 1 year from the
Executive’s Termination of Employment, engages in, directly or indirectly, as a sole proprietor, as a partner
in a partnership, or as a holder of more than five percent (3%) of the voting shares in a corporation, or
bccomes associated with, in the capacity of employee, director, officer, principal, agent or trustee, any
enterprise conducted within a 25-mile radius of any office of the Bank existing at the time of the
Executive’s Termination of Employment, which enterprise is, or may deemed to be, competitive with the
business of banking carried on by the Bank as of the date of the Executive’s Termination of Employment.
This section shall not apply to a Termination of Employment (other than a Termination for Causc)
following a Change of Control or to an Early Involuntary Termination.
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Article 6
Claims And Review Procedures

6.1 Claims Procedure. An Executive or Beneficiary (“claimant™) who has not reccived benefits under the
Agreement that he or she belicves should be paid shall make a claim for such benefits as follows:

6.1.1  Initiation — Written Claim. The claimant initiates a claim by submitting to the Plan Administrator
a written claim for the benefits.

6.1.2  Timing_of Plan Administrator Response. The Plan Administrator shall respond to such claimant
within 90 days after receiving the claim. If the Plan Administrator determines that special
circumstances require additional time for processing the claim, the Plan Administrator can extend
the respense period by an additional 90 days by notifying the claimant in writing, prior to the end
of the initial 90-day period, that an additional period is required. The notice of extension must set
forth the special circumstances and the date by which the Plan Administrator expects to render its
decision.

6.1.3  Notice of Decision. If the Plan Administrator denies part or all of the claim, the Plan
Administrator shall notify the claimant in writing of such denial. The Plan Administrator shall
write the notification in a manner calculated to be understood by the claimant. The notification
shall include:

(a) The specific reasons for the denial;
{b) A reference to the specific provisions of the Agreement on which the denial is based;
(c) A description of any additional information or material necessary for the claimant to
perfect the claim and an explanation of why it is needed; and
{(d} A description of the applicable review procedures and the time limits applicable to such
procedures.

6.2 Review Procedure. If the Plan Administrator denies part or all of the claim, the claimant shall have the

opportunity for a full and fair review by the Plan Administrator of the denial, as follows:

6.2.1 Initiation — Writien Request. To initiate the review, the claimant, within 60 days after receiving
the Plan Administrator’s notice of denial, must file with the Plan Administrator a written request
for review.

6.2.2  Additional Submissions — Information Access. The claimant shall then have the opportunity to
submit written comments, documents, records and other information relating to the claim. The
Plan Administrator shall also provide the claimant, upon request and free of charge, reasonable
access to, and copies of, all documents, records and other information relevant to the claimant’s
claim for benefits,

6.23  Considerations on Review. In considering the review, the Plan Administrator shall take into
account all materials and information the claimant submits relating to the claim, without regard to
whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial benefit determination.

6.2.4  Timing of Plan Administrator Response. The Plan Administrator shall respond in writing to such
claimant within 60 days after receiving the request for review. If the Plan Administrator
determines that special circumstances require additional time for processing the claim, the Plan
Administrator can extend the response period by an additional 60 days by notifying the claimant in
writing, prior to the end of the initial 60-day period, that an additional period is required, The
notice of extension must set forth the special circumstances and the date by which the Plan
Administrator expects to render its decision.

6.2.5  Notice of Decision. The Plan Administrator shall notify the claimant in writing of its decision on
review. The Plan Administrator shall write the notification in a manner calculated to be
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understood by the claimant. The notification shall include:

(a) The specific reasons for the denial;
(b) A reference to the specific provisions of the Agreement on which the denial is based; and
{c) A statement that the claimant is entitled to receive, upon request and free of charge,

rcasonable access to, and copies of, all documents, records and other information relevant to the
claimant’s ¢laim for benefits.

Article 7
Amendments and Termination

Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by a written agrecment signad by the Bank, Holding

Company and the Executive. However, the Bank or Holding Company may unilaterally amend this
Agreement to conform with written directives to the Bank or Holding Company from its auditors or
banking regulators or to comply with legislative changes or tax law, including without limitation Code
Section 409A.

Plan_Termipation Generally; Code Section 409A This Agreement may be terminated only by a written

agreement signed by the Bank, Holding Company and the Executive. The benefit shall be the Accrual
Balance, as of the date of the agreement of termination, or as otherwise provided in the agreement of
termination; provided, however, that the amount, the form, and the timing, of any distribution to be made
thereunder shall comply, in all respects, with the provisions of Scction 409A of the Code.

Article 8
Administration of Agreement

Plan Administrator Duties. This Agresment shall be administered by a Plan Administrator which shall
consist of the Board, or such committee or person(s) as the Board shall appoint. The Executive may be a
member of the Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator shall also have the discretion and autherity to
(i} make, amend, interpret and enforce all appropriate rules and regulations for the administration of this
Agreement and (ii) decide or resolve any and all questions including interpretations of this Agreement, as
may arise in connection with the Agreement.

Agents. In the administration of this Agreement, the Plan Administrator may employ agents and delegate
to them such administrative dutics as it sees fit, {(inctuding acting through a duly appointed representative},
and may from time to time consult with counsel who may be counsel to the Bank.

Binding Effect of Decisions. The decision or action of the Plan Administrator with respect to any question
arising out of or in connection with the administration, interpretation and application of the Agreement and
the rules and regulations promulgated hercunder shall be final and conclusive and binding upon all persons
having any interest in the Agreement. No Executive or Beneficiary shall be deemed to have any right,
vested or nonvested, regarding the continued use of any previously adopted assumptions, including but not
limited to the Discount Rate.

[ndemnity of Plan Administrator. The Bank shall indemnify and hold harmless the members of the Plan
Administrator against any and all claims, losses, damages, expenses or liabilities arising from any action or
failure to act with respect to this Agreement, except in the case of willful misconduct by the Plan
Administrator or any of its members.

Bank Information. To cnable the Plan Administrator to perform its functions, the Bank shall supply full
and timely information to the Plan Administrator on all matters relating 1o the date and circumstances of the
retirement, Disability, death, or Termination of Employment of the Executive, and such other pertinent
information as the Plan Administrator may reasonably require.

Annual Statement. The Plan Administrator shall provide to the Exccutive, within 120 days after the end of
each Plan Year, in the form of Schedule A of this Agreement, a statement setting forth the benefits payable
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under this Agreement. It is hereby agreed that such annual statement, in the form of Schedule A, shall be
incorporated into, and thercby shall be a part of, this Agreement.

Article 9
Miscellancous

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall bind the Exccutive, the Company and the Bank, and their
beneficiaries, survivors, executors, successors, administrators and transferees.

No_Guarantee of Employment. This Agreement is not a policy or contract regarding the continued
employment of the Exccutive, as a director of the Bank and/or the Holding Company. It does not give the
Executive the right to remain as an employee or dircctor of the Bank or the Holding Company, nor does it
interfere with the right of the Bank or the Holding Company, or their respective shareholders, to remove the
Executive from office. It also docs not require the Executive to remain a director of the Bank or Holding
Company nor interfere with the Executive's right to terminate employment with the Bank or Holding
Company at any time.

Non-Transferability. Benefits under this Agreement cannot be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged, aitached
or encumbered in any manner.

Tax Withholding. The Bank shall withhold any taxes that, in its rcasonable judgment, are required to be
withheld from the benefits provided under this Agreement. The Executive acknowledges that the Bank’s
sole liability regarding taxes is 10 forward any amounts withheld to the appropriate taxing authority(ies).

Applicable Law. The Agreement and all rights hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Georgia, except to the extent preempted by the laws of the United States of America. Further, the parties
intend for this Agreement, including the payment of benefits hereunder, te comply with the provisions of
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as said Section may be amended from time to time,
and, therefore, hereby agree that the provisions of this Agreement and the benefits payable hereunder shall
be, and hereby are, modificd, but only to the extent necessary, to achieve compliance therewith,

Unfunded Arrangement. The Executive and Beneficiary (and any other parties with rights under this
Agreement) are general unsecured creditors of the Bank for the payment of benefits under this Agreement.
The benefits represent the mere promise by the Bank to pay such benefits. The rights to benefits are not
subject in any manner to anticipation, alicnation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance,
attachment, or garnishment by creditors. Any insurance on the Executive's life is a general assct of the
Bank to which the Executive and Beneficiary have no preferred or secured claim.

Merger or Reorganization. Neither the Bank nor the Holding Company shall merge or consolidate with, or
reorganize inte, another company or bank, or be sold 1, or sell substantially all of its assets to, another
company or bank, firm, or person, unless such succeeding or continuing company, bank, firm, or person
agrees to asswme and discharge the obligations of the Bank and Holding Company under this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of such event, the terms “Bank™ and “Holding Company”, as used in this Agreement,
shall also be decmed to refer to the successor or survivor company or bank.

Entirc Agrecement. This Agrecment constitutes the entire agreement between and among the Bank, the
Holding Company and the Exccutive as to the subject matter hereof, No rights are granted 1o the Executive
by virtue of this Agreement other than those specifically set forth herein.

[nterpretation.  Wherever the fulfillment of the intent and purpose of this Agreement requires, and the
context will permit, the use of the masculine gender includes the feminine and use of the singular includes
the plural.
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Alternative Action. In the event it shall become impossible for the Bank, the Holding Company or the Plan
Administrator to perform any act required by this Agreement, the Bank, the Holding Company or Plan
Administrator may in its discretion perform such alternative act as most nearly carries out the intent and
purpose of this Agreement and is in the best interests of the Bank.

Headings. Articlc and section headings are for convenicnt reference only and shall not control or affect the
meaning or construction of any of its provisions.

Validity. In casc any provision of this Agreement shall be illegal or invalid for any reason, said illegality or
invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts hereof, but this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as
if such illegal and invalid provision has never been insertcd herein,

Notice. Any notice or filing required or permitted to be given to the Bank or Plan Administrator under this
Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing and hand-delivered, or sent by registered or certified mail, to the
address below:

Appalachian Community Bank
829 Industrial Blvd.
Ellijay, Georgia 30540

Such notice shall be deemed given as of the date of delivery or, if delivery is made by mail, as of the date
shown on the postmark on the receipt for registration or certification.

Any notice or filing required or permitted to be given to the Executive under this Agreement shall be
sufficient if in writing and hand-delivered, or sent by mail, to the last known address of the Executive.

409A Gross-Up. If it is determined that any benefit provided under this Agreement would be subject to
accelerated income taxation under Section 409A of the Code, or to related penalties (the present value of
such income tax acceleration (based on the time value of money), together with any such penaltics, being
collectively referred to herein s as the “excise tax™), then the Executive shall be entitled to receive any
additional payment, determincd by the Bank’s outside accounting firm, equal to such excise tax, including
any excise tax on such additional payments. Payments under this Section 9.14 shall be due not later than
thirty (30) days following the date the Executive’s tax liability becomes due, or as soon as administratively
practicable thereafter,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Executive and a duly authorized representative of each of the Bank and

Holding Company have signed this Agreement on this 27" day of March, 2008,

“EXECUTIVE:”

/s/ Tracy R. Newton
Tracy R. Newton,
President and Chief Executive Officer

“BANK:”
Appalachian Community Bank

By: /s/ . Kcith Hales

Title: Chief Operating Officer
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“HOLDING COMPANY:”
Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.

By: /st J. Keith Hales

Title:_ Chief Operating Officer
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[ designate the following as beneficiary of benefits under the Agreement payable following my death:

Primary:

Contingent:

Note: To name a trust as beneficiary, please provide the name of the trustee(s) and the exact name and date
of the trust agreement.

I understand that 1 may change these beneficiary designations by delivering a new written designation to the Plan
Administrator. | further understand that the designations will be automatically revoked if the beneficiary

predeceases me, or, if | have named my spouse as beneficiary and our marriage is subsequently dissolved,

Name:

Signature: Date:

SPOUSAL CONSENT (Required if Spouse not named beneficiary):

I consent to the beneficiary designation above, and acknowledge that if 1 am named beneficiary and our marriage is
subsequently dissolved, the designation will be automatically revoked.

Spouse Name:

Signature: Date:

Received by the Plan Administrator this day of ,20

By:

Title:
Executive Name Plan Anniversary Date 06/01
Normal Retirement * Normal Retirement Date 06/02/2021
Age (Estimated)
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Normal
Retirement
Benefit Early Termination Benefit
Plan Year Accrual (annual benefit | (one-time, lump-sum benefit
Discount Rate Ending Balance amount) amount)
7% $ 5 $
ok
Early
¥ Involuntary
*okk *EE Termination Termination
Change of Pre-retirement for Good Benefit
¥R Control Benefit Death Benefit | Reason Benefit (annual
Disability Benefit (annual benefit | (annual benefit | (annual benefit benefit
(annual benefit amount) amount) amount) amount) amount)
$279,181 $279,181 $279,181 $ $

The parties to this Salary Continuation Agreement hereby further agree that this Schedule A shall be updated
annually to include any changes in the Accrual Balance and the various benefit fevels described hereon. Further,
this Schedule A, as it now exists and as it may be further updated, is and shall continue to be, a part of this Salary

Continuation Agreement.

* The earlier of Age 65 or the date on which the Executive completes 20 years

of employment as an employee of the Bank and/or the Holding Company.

The annual benefit amount to be entered here for the Executive is the annual benefit

amount set forth in Section 2.1.1 of the Agreement, as increased by 3% on each anniversary
of the Effective Date.

dhdek

benefit amount set forth in Section 2.1.1 of the Agreement.

The annual benefit amount to be entered here for the Executive is the projected annual




EXHIBIT 21 - SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Subsidiaries — Direct/Wholly-owned

State of Incorporation

Appalachian Capital Trust |
Appalachian Community Bank
Also doing business under the registered trade names “Gilmer County Bank”

and “Banco Fuerza”

Appalachian Community Bank, FSB

Subsidiaries — Indirect/wholly-owned by Appalachian Community Bank

Appalachian Information Management, Inc.
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Delaware

Georgia

United States (thrift
charter)

Georgia




EXHIBIT 23.1 - CONSENT OF MAULDIN & JENKINS, LLC

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements (File Numbers 333-146601, 333-111706
and 333-27127) on Form S-8 of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. of our report dated March 26, 2008 relating to our

audit of the consolidated financial statements, which appears in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Appalachian
Bancshares, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2007.

/s/ Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Atlanta, Georgia
March 26, 2008

101




EXHIBIT 3L.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

[, Tracy R. Newton, certify that:

[ have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc.;

Bascd on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statcment of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact nceessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(c¢)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the 1egistrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating 1o the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within thosc entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

¢} evaluated the cffectivencss of the registrant’s disclosure controls and proccdurcs and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedlures, as of the cnd of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

&) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter {the regisirant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual repert) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

The registrant’s other certifying officer{s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
controls over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committce of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons perfonning the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record. process,
summarize and report financial information: and
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b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees whe have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2008

/s{ Tracy R. Newton

Tracy R. Newton

President and Chief Executive
Officer (principal executive officer)
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Danny F. Dukes., certify that:
1. [ have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report dees not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash tlows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for cstablishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢f) and 15d-15(f}) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to cnsure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being preparcd;

reporting to be designed under our supervision, o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conctusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

|
‘ b} designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
|
|
|
|

: d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affecied, or is rcasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
controls over financial reporting, te the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and
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b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other cmployees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2008
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/s/ Danny F. Dukes

Danny F. Dukes

Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Otficer (Principal
Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Appalachian Bancshares, Inc. {the “Company™) on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securitics and Exchange Commission on the date hereof {the
“Report’}, the undersigned, Tracy R. Newton, President and Chicf Executive Officer of the Company, and Danny F.
Dukes., Exccutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Scction
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and
) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company.

By:
/sf Tracy R. Newton
Tracy R. Newton
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 28, 2008

/s/ Danny F. Dukes

Danny F. Dukes

Exccutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
March 28, 2008
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Investor Information

www.apab.com

Investor and sharehofder information regarding Appalachian
Bancshares, inc., including all filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, is available through the company’s
web site.

Copies may also be obtained without charge upon
written request to:

Cathy Murphy

Investor Relations Department
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